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Dear Stakeholder,

2024 was an extraordinary year, in which we overcame important challenges and generated real, sustainable,
measurable value.

We ended 2024 with numbers that exceeded the challenging forecasts of the 2023-2027 Business Plan,
demonstrating our ability to navigate an uncertain and volatile international landscape, turning complexity into
opportunity. The return to profit, with a positive operating result for the year of euro 27 million, demonstrates
our ability to compete at the highest global level, leveraging our approach combining financial rigour, operational
excellence and innovation. EBITDA grew by 28% to euro 509 million, with an EBITDA margin of 6.3% (compared
to 5.2% in 2023), made possible by initiatives to improve efficiency and digitalize our shipyards. The debt-to-E-
BITDA ratio, excluding extraordinary items, fell to 3.3x, highlighting a deleveraging process that is much faster
than expected.

Our commitment to sustainability continued with the implementation of our 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan.
Our vision is not just to adapt to ESG principles, but to bring them forward and turn them into competitive levers.

Fincantieri achieved the highest market capitalization in its history, an achievement that reflects the confi-
dence of shareholders and the strength of our industrial strategy. The capital increase, successfully completed
on 16 July, was a key step in the acquisition of Wass Submarine Systems (‘WASS'), consolidating our leadership
in the underwater sector and further strengthening the Group's industrial base. This operation is not just a fillip
to growth but a sign of a clear, long-term vision to create an integrated, competitive and sustainable technology
ecosystem.

These numbers are the result of our ability to interpret the growth in key sectors. The value of new orders has
more than doubled since 2023, thanks to the outstanding performance of the Shipbuilding segment. Between
2024 and early 2025, we signed historic agreements with Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings and Carnival Corpora-
tion to build the largest ships ever built by the Group. This leap in scale was made possible by an infrastructure
investment plan amounting to approximately euro one billion (2023-2026), which will enable us to build vessels
of the same size as the main European players. These orders project the visibility of the backlog to 2036, further
stabilizing the cruise ship business.

The defence segment also experienced a significant acceleration in 2024, thanks to new contracts won in
South-East Asia and the Middle East. Our export growth strategy complements our established strategy for the
Italian and US navies, in a global context increasingly focused on security, deterrence and the protection of stra-
tegic infrastructure. National defence budgets are rapidly expanding and Fincantieri is ready to respond with the
latest technological solutions.

The Group's expansion in the fast-developing underwater segment continues apace, also thanks to the ac-
quisition of WASS and Remazel Engineering, and the new agreements concluded in both the defence and civil
fields, which led to the establishment of an underwater technological Cluster within the Company. In particular,
Fincantieri signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with EDGE at the end of 2024, subsequently exten-
ded and strengthened in February 2025, to assist with the supply of advanced solutions for underwater systems
in the United Arab Emirates, and with Sparkle for the development of innovative technologies for the surveillance
and protection of submarine telecommunications cables. These agreements, in addition to those already con-
cluded over the past two years, contribute to Fincantieri's strategy of a single, integrated offer for technological
solutions for seabed mapping and the inspection of underwater infrastructures and activities. These initiatives
make Fincantieri central to the development programs in the underwater domain, promoted in Italy by the Natio-
nal Underwater Hub, with a role as supply chain orchestrator and integrator.

In the offshore segment, the positive trend in wind power has been accompanied by a recovery in demand
for multi-use vessels for the energy market, including Oil & Gas. In this scenario, VARD has strengthened its lea-
dership, with a backlog accounting for about one third of the global order book for SOV/CSOV specialized vessels
at the end of 2024.

We have made Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) a strategic pillar, summed up in the 'everyDEI’ claim, which
promotes a corporate culture based on respect and valuing people. We were the first Italian shipbuilding company to
obtain the UNI/PDR 125:2022 gender equality certification, recognition of our solid commitment in this area.
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In 2024, Fincantieri also expanded 'Respect for Future', the project presented in November 2023 on the In-
ternational Day for the Elimination of Violence Against Women, with a tour of the company's shipyards throughout
Italy. For the first time, an industrial group has developed an innovative internal communication project that shifts
the perspective, focusing on preventing violence through education on respect and relationships. This process
has also led to the establishment of ten “Punti Viola” (Viola points), where potential victims of violence can find
support, and the voluntary involvement of company employees as company Antennae, contact persons for those
who have suffered or may suffer violence.

But the 'S" in ESG for us also means Safety. Not only safety in the workplace, strengthened with the 'Safety
On Board' project, but also the protection of people, infrastructure and networks, with advanced solutions to build
the resilience of the industrial and logistics ecosystem. Our commitment was recognized with the 'Top Employer
Italy' certification for the fourth consecutive year.

As proof of our focus on people, in November 2024 we launched the first Employee Share Ownership Plan,
which saw significant take-up. Because Fincantieri is not just a company, it is a community, and we want those
who work with us not only to take an active part in but also to benefit from our growth.

Fincantieri's ability to combine this enhancement of human capital with technological innovation finds tan-
gible reflection in our shipyards. With the '‘Open shipyards, a view of the future' roadshow, we aimed to open
our shipyards to the institutions, showcasing the future of the shipbuilding industry, where lItalian ingenuity is
transformed into production excellence and world leadership.

We also continue to innovate on the environmental front. In February 2024, we delivered 'Sun Princess' to
Princess Cruises, our first LNG-powered cruise ship, a technology that drastically reduces emissions and marks
a turning point in the industry's green transition.

Financial, social and environmental sustainability is not a constraint for us, but a strategic driver that guides
all our decisions. The results achieved in 2024 demonstrate Fincantieri's ability to keep faith with its commitmen-
ts to its Shareholders and Stakeholders, achieving, and indeed constantly exceeding, the targets in the Business
Plan and Sustainability Plan.

Ours is a Group with strong roots, based on a solid past of tradition and experience and a unique business
model, but also able to face the future with great courage and ambition, adapting to changes in the global market
and the energy and digital transition, thanks to its technological excellence and a continuous process of innova-
tion.

We are already investing to build the first zero-emission cruise ship by 2035 and to develop advanced
solutions for the protection of underwater networks, increasingly strategic infrastructure in the age of artificial
intelligence. We are convinced that this strategic approach will allow the Group to consolidate its leadership in
its core markets and be a lead player in the future of the European maritime industry, while contributing to the
preservation of fundamental strategic skills for the national production system.

All this is possible thanks to our people. It is their talent, passion and commitment that make Fincantieri gre-

at, in Italy and throughout the world. Innovation is not just about technology, it is about the ability of a community
to build the future. And we are ready to do so.

Prege fuasadros

Biagio Mazzotta
Presidente

prt 7o

Pierroberto Folgiero

Amministratore Delegato
e Direttore Generale
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Board of Directors Three-year period 2022-2024
Chairman Biagio Mazzotta!
Chief Executive Officer and General Manager Pierroberto Folgiero
Directors Paolo Amato

Barbara Debra Contini
Alberto Dell’Acqua
Massimo Di Carlo
Paola Muratorio
Cristina Scocchia

Valter Trevisani

Alice Vatta
Secretary Alessandra Battaglia
Board of Statutory Auditors Three-year period 2023-2025
Chairman Gabriella Chersicla
Standing Auditor Elena Cussigh

Antonello Lillo

Alternate Auditor Ottavio De Marco
Arianna Pennacchio

Marco Seracini

Manager responsible for preparing financial reports

Felice Bonavolonta
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Supervisory body Pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/01 Three-year period 2024-2026
Chairman Attilio Befera
Member Davide Carlino

lole Anna Savini

Indipendent auditors Nine-year period 2020-2028
Deloitte & Touche S.p.A.

For detailed information on the composition and functions of the Board Committees (the Control and Risk Committee, which 1is also
responsible for the functions of the committee responsible for related party transactions except for resolutions on remuneration,
the Remuneration Committee, which is assigned the functions of the committee responsible for transactions with related parties in
the case of resolutions on remuneration associated with related party transactions, the Nomination Committee and the Sustainability
Committee) reference should be made to the Report on corporate governance and ownership structure available on the Company website
in the “Ethics and Governance - Corporate Governance System - Corporate Governance Reports”.

DISCLAIMER

Forecast data and information must be regarded as forward-looking statements and therefore, not being based on simple historical
facts, contain, by their nature, an element of risk and uncertainty because they also depend on the occurrence of future events
and developments outside the Company’'s control. Actual results could therefore be materially different from those expressed in
forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements refer to the information available at the date of their publication; Fincan-
tieri S.p.A. undertakes no obligation to revise, update or correct its forward-looking statements after such date, other than in the
circumstances strictly required by applicable regulations. The forward-looking statements provided do not constitute and shall not be
considered by users of the financial statements as advice for legal, accounting, tax or investment purposes nor is it the intention
for such statements to create any type of reliance and/or induce such users to invest in the Company.

1 0On 1 August 2024, Biagio Mazzotta was co-opted as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Fincantieri S.p.A. following the untimely
death of Claudio Graziano on 17 June 2024.
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Vision Creating a sustainable, high-tech maritime fleet of ships, where new technologies and innovation are integrated M ission on Board Global leadership in the development and lifecycle management of digital and green ships.

Purpose on Board

seamlessly in order to reduce environmental impact and improve naval system efficiency.

We move society forward by crafting, shaping and leading the Green and Digital future of the international shi-
pbuilding industry.

Future on Board: is the signature of the Fincantieri brand. We bring on board a future based on our proven exper-
tise and credibility as a digital design authority and integrator of complex solutions. A future in which the power
of our workforce is integrated with technology, big data and artificial intelligence and in which ships, powered by
non-polluting fuels and next-generation engines, will have zero impact on the planet.

Values
> People
Everything we do focuses on enabling the growth, enhancement and training of people,
based on the daily attention that we pay to the quality of our work and our relations with others.
Safety
We ensure high levels of occupational
health and safety.
Integrity
We take responsibility for our actions and we put great care into our work,
adhering to strict principles of ethics, loyalty and professional fairness.
Customer focus
We meet customer requirements
and we rigorously honour our commitments.
Innovation <€
We aim to continuously improve our products and working methods
through technological innovation.
14

Who We Are

Shareholders

Our every action, project, initiative or decision is based on strict observance of the law, labour protection and pro-
tection of the environment, safeguarding the interests of our shareholders, employees, clients, trade and financial
partners, local communities and groups, creating value for every stakeholder.

Fincantieri is one of the world’s leading shipbuilding groups, the only one active in all areas of high technology
shipbuilding. It is a leader in the construction and conversion of cruise ships, with a market share of over 40%,
defence and offshore vessels. It operates in the wind, oil & gas, fishing vessel and specialized vessel segments,
as well as in the production of mechatronic and electronic marine systems, naval accommodation solutions and
the provision of after-sales services such as logistical support and assistance to fleets in service.

In recent years, the transition to the construction of green products has continued, characterized by the ever in-
creasing application of new propulsion technology and new fuels on board, enabling the Group to become a mar-
ket leader in the design and construction of vessels operating in offshore wind farms. This achievement testifies
its commitment and ability to be a player in the ecological transition, with a clear sustainability strategy setting
out a detailed roadmap to respond to increasingly stringent regulations. The Group also operates in digital and
cyber security, engineering services, critical infrastructure monitoring systems, advanced energy management
systems for land-based applications and facility management.

The Group stands out in terms of its industrial expertise and capacity, developed over the years, to manage highly
complex projects, enabling it to offer one of the most advanced integrated platforms in the world.

With over 230 years of history and more than 7,000 ships built, Fincantieri maintains its know-how and ma-
nagement centres in Italy, where it has almost 12,000 employees. The production network stretches across 18
shipyards on three continents and employs more than 22,000 direct workers.

71.30% of Fincantieri S.p.A’s Share Capital of euro 878,288,065.70 is held, through the subsidiary CDP Equity
S.p.A., by Cassa Depositi e Prestiti S.p.A., a company controlled by the Ministry of Economy and Finance. The
remaining Share Capital is distributed between a number of private investors (none of whom hold significant
interests of 3% or above) and treasury shares (of around 0.13% of shares representing the Share Capital).

28.57%
General market

0.13%
Fincantieri S.p.A.
(treasury shares)

71.30%
CDP Equity S.p.A.

15
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Shipyards and Docks Main subsidiaries
Europe Europe Asia
Italy Italy China
Trieste Cetena Fincantieri (Shanghai)
Monfalcone Isotta Fraschini Motori Trading
Marghera Fincantieri Oil&Gas India
Sestri Ponente Marine Interiors Fincantieri India
Genoa Marine Interiors Cabins Vard Electrical Installation
and Engineering (India)
Riva Trigoso - Muggiano Fincantieri NexTech
. atar
Ancona Seanergy A Marine Q

Castellammare di Stabia
Palermo

Norway

Brattwaag

Langsten

Sgviknes

Romania

Braila

Tulcea

Asia
Vietnam

Vung Tau

Americas
USA
Marinette
Sturgeon Bay
Green Bay
Brazil

Suape

€ 8- 1 bln Revenues 2024

+7,000 50

Principal Western shipbuilder

Years
+2 3 of history

> 22,000 355 0z

47% Other countries; 53% ltaly

1 8 Shipyards

for diversification
nr- and 1innovation

Interiors Company
Fincantieri Sl

Fincantieri Infrastructure
Opere Marittime

Fincantieri Infrastrutture
Sociali

IDS Ingegneria Dei Sistemi
SOF

Issel Nord

MI

E-Phors

BOP6

HMS IT

S.L.S. - Support Logistic Services
Operae A Marine Interiors Company
MTM

Norway

Vard Group

Vard Design

Vard Electro

Vard Interiors

Seaonics

Romania

Vard Shipyards Romania
France

Team Turbo Machines
Croatia

Vard Design Liburna
Poland

Seaonics Polska

Fincantieri Services Doha
Singapore

Vard Holdings

Vard Shipholdings
Singapore

Japan

FMSNA YK

Vietnam

Vard Vung Tau

United Arab Emirates
Fincantieri Naval Services
Saudi Arabia

Fincantieri Arabia for Naval Services

Americas
USA

Fincantieri Marine Group

Fincantieri Marine System
North America

Fincantieri Services USA
Fincantieri USA

Canada

Vard Marine

Brazil

Vard Promar

merios € D1.2 bln

sustiors +7,000

9 Vessels
in order book

16

Continents 3
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Group Overview The Group operates through the following three segments:

° Shipbuilding: includes the Cruise Ships, Defence Vessels and Ship Interiors business areas;

e  Offshore and Specialized Vessels: encompassing the design and construction of high-end offshore support
vessels for offshore wind farms and the Oil & Gas industry, specialized ships such as cable-laying vessels and
ferries, unmanned vessels, offering innovative products with reduced environmental impact;

° Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure:includes the following business areas: i) Electronics and Digital Pro-
ducts Cluster?, which focuses on advanced technological solutions, from the design and integration of com-
plex systems (system integration) to telecommunications and critical infrastructure, ii) Mechanical Systems
and Components Cluster?, i.e., integration of mechanical components and power electronics in naval and
onshore applications and iii) Infrastructure Cluster, which includes the design, construction and installation
of steel structures for large-scale projects as well as the production and construction of maritime works and
the supply of technology and facility management for the health segment, industry and the service sector.

It should be noted that, following a reorganization at the beginning of the year within the Equipment, Systems
and Infrastructure segment, the activities of the Vard Electro group, included in the Mechanical Systems and
Components Cluster until 31 December 2023, were reallocated to the Electronics and Digital Products Cluster.
Comparative figures as at 31 December 2023, appropriately reclassified, are shown below as restated values.

It should also be noted that as from February 2024, the newly acquired company Remazel Engineering S.p.A. is
consolidated within the Mechanical Systems and Components Cluster.

The structure of the Fincantieri Group and overview of the companies included in its consolidation will now be
presented.

Tl

e

2 At 31 December 2023 named Electronics Cluster.
3 At 31 December 2023 named Mechatronics Cluster.
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N Segments Shipbuilding and Specialized Vessels and Infrastructure Other
- Business aess = | LA p==4 G TTU
4
Cruise Naval Ship Offshore o Sileﬁgf g:ﬁiucts Mechanical Systems Infrastructure Corporate
ships vessels Interiors and Specialized Vessels g and Components cluster functions
Cluster Cluster
Contemporary Aircraft carriers Cabins Drilling units Design and Energy generation/ Design, construction Strategic direction and
Premium Destroyers Wet units integration of complex | storage systems: and assembly of steel coordination:
) i ) Offshore support vessels systems (system e Electrical, structures on large e Governance, Legal and
Upper Premium Frigates Public areas (AHTS-PSV-0SCV) integration) with a electronic and projects such as: Corporate Affairs
Luxury Corvettes Catering focus on automation electromechanical e Bridges e Accounting and Finance
Exploration/Niche Patrol vessels Glazing Special vessels A integrateq systems o Viaducts e Human Resources
o i o ) . . Cyber security e Stabilization, e Airports e |nformation Systems
Expe(?mon cruise Amphibious ships Interior Design Fishery/Aquaculture propulsion, e Ports * Research & Innovation
vessels Logistic Telecommunications positioning and e Maritime/hydraulic e Purchasing
support ships Wind offshore power generation works
Multirole and Critical infrastructures systems e Large commercial

Business areas

research vessels
Special vessels
Submarines

Product lifecycle

management:

e |ntegrated
logistic support

e In-service
support

Training
and assistance

Ship repairs Refitting

Refurbishment

Conversions

e Steam turbines

and industrial
buildings

Main Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint Ventures

Fincantieri S.p.A.

e Monfalcone

e Marghera

e Sestri Ponente

e Cantiere Integrato Navale
Riva Trigoso e Muggiano
Ancona

Castellammare di Stabia

Arsenale Triestino San Marco
Bacino di Genova

CSSC - Fincantieri Cruise
Industry Development Ltd.

FMSNA Inc.
Fincantieri Services Doha LLC
Fincantieri Services USA LLC

Fincantieri Marine
Group Holdings Inc.

FMG LLC
e Sturgeon Bay

M1 S.p.A.

Fincantieri India Pte Ltd.
Fincantieri USA Inc.

Fincantieri Arabia for Naval
Services LLC

Fincantieri (Shanghai)
Palermo Trading Co. Ltd.

Etihad Ship Building LLC

Orizzonte Sistemi
Navali S.p.A.

Naviris S.p.A.
Marine Interiors Cabins S.p.A.
Marine Interiors S.p.A.

Seanergy a Marine Interiors
company S.r.l.

OPERAE a Marine Interiors

Marinette Marine
Corporation LLC
e Marinette

Company S.r.I.

Fincantieri Naval Services —

Sole Proprietorship LLC

ACE Marine LLC
e Green Bay

MTM S.c.a.r.l.

Fincantieri S.p.A.

Fincantieri Oil&Gas S.p.A.

Vard Group AS
e Brattvaag
e |angsten
e Sgviknes

Vard Promar SA
e Suape

Vard Vung Tau Ltd.
e Vung Tau

Vard Shipyards Romania SA

e Tulcea
e Braila

Vard Interiors AS
Vard Design AS

Vard Marine Inc.

Fincantieri NexTech
S.p.A.

Issel Nord S.r.l.
Cetena S.p.A.
E-PHORS S.p.A.

IDS Ingegneria
Dei Sistemi S.p.A.

HMS IT S.p.A.

S.L.S. - Support
Logistic Services S.r.1.

Vard Electro AS

Fincantieri S.p.A.
* Riva Trigoso

Isotta Fraschini
Motori S.p.A.

Fincantieri SI S.p.A.
Power4Future S.p.A.
FINMESA S.c.a.r.l.

Remazel
Engineering S.p.A.

Seaonics AS

Team Turbo
Machines S.A.S.

BOP6 S.c.a.r.l.

Fincantieri
Infrastructure S.p.A.

Fincantieri
Infrastructure
Opere Marittime
S.p.A.

Fincantieri
Infrastructure
Florida Inc.

Fincantieri
Infrastrutture
Sociali S.p.A.

SOF S.p.A.

Fincantieri S.p.A.
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Highlights

Economic and financial results Operational performance

o Total backlog*

o Revenue and income

Total backlog, euro 51.2 billion,

Revenue and income at euro 8,128 million,
equivalent to 6.3 times 2024 revenues.

+6.2% compared to 2023 (euro 7,651 million).

01,2

6.3X 2024 revenues

wr 8,128 ..

7,651 m||I|on in 2023 ; +6.2%

euro 3 .0 billion

Backlog
Offshore Equipment,Systems

1,371 M 1,498 M £fs| euro 31.0 billion
- and Specialized Vessels and Infrastructure
- | | | |

Offshore and Equipment,Systems
Specialized vessels and Infrastructure

e D09 ..

| 397 million in 2023 ; +28.0% |

euro 26.5 billion euro 2.2 billion

Shipbuilding

Cruise ships: 3,913 M
5’990 M 4E Naval vessels: 2,015 M

Ship interiors: 62 M

Shipbuilding

Soft Backlog
euro 202 billion

EBITDA
O

EBITDA of euro 509 million (+28.0% vs 2023)

and EBITDA margin at 6.3% (vs 5.2% in 2023). Order intake
O

Order intake euro 15.4 billion,
with a book-to-bill ratio of 1.9.

15,4 .

Book to Bill ratio 1.9

396 M

103 M

67 M EBITDA margin

6.3%

euro 13.2 billion

euro 1 .6 billion

euro 1 .4 billion

Shipbuilding 6.6% Offshore and Specialized Equipment,Systems vs 5.2% in 2023 Shipbuilding 0ffshore Equipment,Systems
Vessels 4.97% and Infrastructure 6.9% e and Specialized Vessels and Infrastructure
Net financial position | | |
o
Debt of euro 1,281 million (including the effects of the capital increase 5 Deliveries

and the reclassification to current portion of the financial receivable gran-
ted to a shipowner in December 2023), an improvement on 2023
(euro 2,271 million at 31 December 2023).

wio 1,281 e

2,271 m|II|on debt in 2023

net 10 6 4
x of capital _
increase Offshore Naval Cruise

5.7 x in 2023 | | |

o Vessels in order book
euro 5 ; m|||on

‘ loss of 7 milion in 2023

euro 2; m|I|on

loss of 53 milion in 2023

20...

‘ from 9 shipyards ‘

Leverage ratio (NFP/EBITDA)

Leverage ratio (Net Financial Position/EBITDA) of 2.5x

at 31 December 2024 and 3.3x net of the capital increase
(5.7x at 31 December 2023),

falling at an accelerated rate compared to the Plan forecast.

o Adjusted profit/(loss) for the year

Positive at euro 57 million,
a clear improvement on the negative result
of euro 7 million in 2023

98 Ships

ships for delivery until 2033

o Profit/(loss) for the year

Return to profit, earlier than forecasted in the Plan,
with a positive result for the year of euro 27 million
(negative at euro 53 million in 2023) after extraordinary or
non-recurring charges (negative at euro 39 million).

The values per segment are shown before adjustments between operating segments.

4 Sum of backlog and soft backlog.

24 25



The Fincantieri Group

[}

Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited

emarket
sdir storoge

Group Report on operations

Consolidated Sustainability Statement Fincantieri Group Consolidated Financial Statt

2025 Guidance

1
|,

[m]

CERTIFIED

Sustainability

Revenue
[}

Environmental information

Revenues expected to grow to about euro 9 billion.

euro - 9 billion

Fincantieri's commitment to the environment translates into reducing the environmental impact of its
cesses and developing low impact solutions, with a particular focus on reducing air emissions and en

cation for their energy management system, which monitors consumption and promotes continuous impr
ment in energy performance. In terms of technological advancement, in 2024 Fincantieri delivered the

EBITDA margin

cruise ship, Sun Princess, powered mainly by LNG.

Estimated marginality higher than 7%.

7%

pro-
ergy

efficiency, including through partnerships and collaborations. To monitor and reduce its impact, the Group
adopts ISO 14001-certified environmental management systems. Some sites also boast ISO 50001 certifi-

ove-
first

Greenhouse gas (GHG) Scope 1 and 2 emissions® 1 1 5 1 6 6 tCO

o Leverage ratio (NFP/EBITDA)

Expected leverage ratio in line with 2024, a clear im-
provement on the 2025 Business Plan target (between
4.5x and 5.5x).

e 2024

| +0.3% compared to 2023

872,716 MWh

. Profit/(loss) for the year

+3.6% compared to 2023

Positive net profit for the year
in line with Plan guidance.

Net Profit

Electricity from renewable sources 9 0 o/

85% in 2023

Percentage of waste sent for recovery 8 7 o/

85% in 2023

5 Market-based, emissions from electricity purchased by considering emission factors expressed in CO, relative to the residual
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Social information Information on Governance
The Group's social commitment focuses on spreading the values of diversity, equity and inclusion, ensuring In 2024, the Group's best-in-class position on sustainability issues was recognized by external bodies and or-
occupational health and safety, and supporting local communities. Among the initiatives undertaken in 2024, ganizations, including the leading rating companies. The Group maintained its A- Climate Change rating from
of particular importance is the EveryDEI program, which defines actions to develop a working environment ba- CDP (formerly Carbon Disclosure Project) and the Advanced rating given by Moody's, and was included for the
sed on mutual respect, support for people with disabilities, and cooperation between different generations and second consecutive year in the Sustainalytics. ESG Top Rated Companies List 2025. These results reflect sound
cultures. In addition, gender equality is monitored through a UNI/PdR 125:2022 certified management system. corporate sustainability management, underpinned by a variable remuneration system with a built-in sustaina-
The Safety Enhancement Plan, on the other hand, outlined initiatives aimed at raising employees' awareness of bility objective, structured around environmental, social and governance targets. Fincantieri's commitment to
safety at work, training them on the subject and structuring new forms of dialogue. To support local communities, sustainability extends to its supply chain, where it actively promotes an ESG culture. A role played effectively, as
Fincantieri promoted the WOW - Wheels on Waves - Around The World project, a three-year initiative including evidenced by the 85 ESG audits carried out in 2024, all of which met expectations. In particular, the PartnerShip
a round-the-world voyage on board the catamaran 'Lo Spirito di Stella', which is fully accessible to people with program, based on Supplier Identity, was run in 2024. Supplier management is an integral part of governance,
motor disabilities. The project aims to raise awareness of the importance of removing architectural barriers. which is intended as a whole to ensure the ethical conduct of the Group.
Diversity in the Board of Directors CDP Climate Change rating, which assesses a company's
4 O % WO m e n commitment to climate change management. A
|
‘ scale from 'A', maximum, to 'D', minimum
Frequency rate for work-related injuries® Rating issued by Sustainalytics, which assesses ‘ ‘ ’ ’
5 ! the effectiveness of company ESG risk management. 1 3 4 I OW R I s k
| |
6.6 in 2023 scale O best, >40 worst
Percentage of employees trained Supplier ESG performance evaluation program,
o integrated within the e-NGAGE platform, o
o identifying strengths and areas for improvement. o
90% in 2023 ‘ compared to the 50% expected for 2024
Employee Engagement Survey Award promoted by FERPI, in collaboration
engagement rate’” o with Borsa Italiana and Bocconi University,
o in recognition of the clear and thorough presentation Sca r I I a n c I o
of economic and ESG issues.
75% in 2023 Large Listed Companies category
6 Number of injuries/Number of hours worked) x 1,000,000 (LTIFR).
7 The employee engagement rate measures the degree of belonging, satisfaction and motivation of employees. It was calculated on the basis of favourable responses
to 11 questions out of 59 in the survey delivered, covering engagement, empowerment, experience and DEI. The survey was sent to approximately 18,500 employees.
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The year 2024 closed with a strong recovery in the Group's profitability, which recorded a profit for the year of euro
27 million (loss of euro 53 million in 2023) and a net profit attributable to the Parent Company of euro 33 million
(loss of euro 53 million in 2023), demonstrating the turnaround achieved by the Group after years of losses.

The growth path is further boosted by the positive trend in all business segments in which the Group operates. As
at 31 December 2024, revenue increased to euro 8,128 million (+6.2% compared to 2023), thanks in particular
to the excellent performance in the Offshore and Specialized Vessels and Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure
segments, which closed 2024 with revenues up 28% and 36% respectively.

The Group's profitability is increasing strongly, with EBITDA reaching euro 509 million, a 28% increase over
2023, and an EBITDA margin at 6.3% (5.2% in 2023).

On the sales front, the Group acquired a record level of new orders in 2024, worth a total of euro 15.4 billion
(more than doubled compared to 2023), driven in particular by the excellent performance in the Cruise business.

The backlog stands at euro 31.0 billion, up 34% compared to December 2023, with a total backlog (correspon-
ding to the sum of backlog and soft backlog) of euro 51.2 billion (6.3 times 2024 revenue), supported by a strong
sales drive in all Group business segments.

During the year, the Group delivered 20 ships, fully complying with its delivery schedule, also thanks to the
initiatives undertaken as part of the process to strengthen operational efficiency and the production innovations
provided for in Fincantieri's Business Plan.

As at 31 December 2024, the Net Financial Position (NFP) amounted to euro 1,281 million, an improvement
compared to 2023 (euro 2,271 million). The change compared to 31 December 2023 is mainly attributable to
(i) the effectiveness of the strategy for the Cruise business, which, by stabilizing annual revenue at around euro
4 billion, neutralizes cash absorption in this sector, (ii) the effect of the actions taken to achieve efficiency, ope-
rational excellence and financial discipline in line with the Business Plan, (iii) the capital increase completed in
July 2024, and (iv) the reclassification to current portion of the financial credit, backed by collateral, granted to
a shipowner in connection with the delivery of a ship in December 2023. Excluding the temporary benefit from
the capital increase, intended to finance the WASS acquisition finalized in early 2025, the NFP TO EBITDA ratio
is 3.3x, better than the guidance of 4.5 - 5.0x provided in November 2024, and well ahead of the target set for
2024 as part of the deleveraging path envisaged in the 2023-27 Business Plan (6.0 - 7.0x).

The Group's strategic positioning in the underwater business continues, based on strengthening its role as a
technology integrator, both in the defence and civil sectors, in response to the growing importance of submarine
technologies in the national and international strategic landscape.

On 14 January 2025 Fincantieri finalized the acquisition of Leonardo S.p.A.'s Underwater Armaments & Sy-
stems (UAS) business line, financed through the capital increase successfully concluded on 16 July 2024. The
transaction was finalized with the purchase of the entire share capital in the newly incorporated company WASS
Submarine Systems S.r.l. (“WASS”), to which the UAS business line was previously contributed. The consolida-
tion of WASS into the Group boundary, as of January 2025, is in addition to that of Remazel Engineering S.p.A.,
included in the scope of consolidation as of February 2024.

Also with reference to the underwater domain, on 5 November 2024, Fincantieri signed a Memorandum of Under-
standing (MoU) with EDGE for the supply of advanced solutions for manned and unmanned underwater systems
in the United Arab Emirates, through MAESTRAL, the Joint Venture between the two groups in Abu Dhabi. A
further MoU was also signed with Sparkle, on 17 December 2024, for the development of innovative technologies
for the surveillance and protection of submarine telecommunication cables.

Lastly, in June 2024, the Group acquired the order for the fourth submarine for the Italian Navy under the
U212NFS (Near Future Submarine) program.

On the defence front, the market is showing significant signs of strengthening, with an increase in global public
spending and a renewed focus on investment at both European and international level. The attention shown by
the new American administration, the European Commission and NATO to the strengthening of defence and the
consolidation of the Group's strategic relations with important international partners, particularly in the Middle
East and South-East Asia, also open up the prospect of broader collaboration and favour a positive development
for the sector.

In this context, Fincantieri is consolidating its growth with new contracts and strategic agreements. During 2024,
the Group won two orders from the Italian Navy for the supply of the fourth Offshore Patrol Vessel (OPV) and for
two 'FREMM EVO' frigates, while, on the international front, it was awarded the fifth and sixth 'Constellation’ class
frigates for the US Navy. In early 2025, a series of agreements were also signed in Saudi Arabia, in the context
of the Saudi Vision 2030 program, highlighting the Company's interest in this region following the establishment
of the subsidiary Fincantieri Arabia for Naval Services in 2024. The euro 1.18 billion contract signed in 2024

1
|,

CERTIFIED

for two MPCS (Multipurpose Combat Ship/PPA) for the Indonesian Navy also became formally effective in early
January 2025. These agreements open up new prospects for the development of advanced naval solutions for
global maritime security.

The Cruise business continues to expand strongly, supported by the continuous increase in passenger numbers.
The positive trend is also boosted by the drive to adopt new 'green' technologies and the expansion of the product
range, with increasing segmentation of the customer experience, stimulating fleet renewal.

During 2024 and early 2025, Fincantieri strengthened its leadership in the sector by finalizing significant con-
tracts. In particular, on 23 July 2024, Fincantieri signed an agreement with Carnival Corporation & plc for the
design, engineering and construction of three new cruise ships for the Carnival Cruise Line brand, the largest
vessels ever built by Fincantieri in an Italian shipyard, with scheduled delivery in 2029, 2031 and 2033. On
5 February 2025, the Group also signed an agreement with Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd. (NCLH), for
the construction of 4 new maxi cruise ships, with deliveries that extend the visibility of the backlog to 2036.
The contract, subject to financing, had previously been the subject of a Letter of Intent, signed on 8 April 2024
alongside the signing of an order, also with NCHL, for the construction of 6 new ships for the Regent Seven Seas
Cruises and Oceania Cruises brands.

Lastly, the Group signed contracts subject to financing with Crystal Cruises for three high-end cruise ships, with
deliveries scheduled from 2028, and with Viking Cruises for the construction of four new cruise ships, to be
delivered between 2028 and 2030, with options for a further four vessels with scheduled delivery between 2031
and 2032.

With reference to the Offshore and Specialized Vessels segment, the solid growth trend in the wind power market
continued, and there was an increase in demand for multi-use vessels that can be deployed in both wind power
and oil & gas projects. During 2024, the subsidiary VARD acquired major contracts in all market segments,
including the order received in the fourth quarter for the construction of five 'Walk-to-Work' vessels, designed to
support offshore platforms. With an order book amounting to one third of the global demand for SOV&/CSQOV?, the
Group thus confirms its leadership in this business as well.

Fincantieri's growth trend, confirmed by the excellent 2024 results, is supported not only by favourable market
dynamics in all business areas, but also by the implementation and development of programs to strengthen opera-
tional efficiency, such as production process innovation with the introduction of automation and digitalization so-
lutions in shipyards, and by a strong drive for financial discipline and the improvement of procurement processes.

8 Service Operation Vessel.
9 Commissioning Service Operation Vessel.
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Key Financials
(euro/million)
Economic data 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Revenue and income! 8,128 7,651
EBITDA? 509 397
EBITDA margin* 6.3% 52%
Adjusted profit/(loss) for the year? 57 (7)
Profit/(loss) for the year 27 (53)
Group share of profit/(loss) for the year 33 (53)
Financial data 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Net invested capital 2,126 2,705
Equity 845 434
Net financial position® 1,281 2,271
Deleveraging ratio* number 2.5 5.7
Other indicators 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Orders** 15,355 6,600
Order book** 43,522 34,629
Total backlog**/*** 51,178 34,772

- of which backlog** 30,978 23,072
Investments 263 258
Research and Development costs 175 152
Headcount at year end number 22,588 21,215
Vessels in order book number 98 85

32

* Ratio between EBITDA and Revenue and income.

** Net of eliminations and consolidation adjustments.

*** Sum of backlog and soft backlog.

1 This figure does not include Extraordinary and non-recurring income and expenses.

Alternative Performance Measures.

2 Profit/loss for the year before extraordinary and non-recurring income and expenses.
3 See the definition contained in the section Alternative Performance Measures.

4 3.3 excluding the effects of the capital increase.

The percentage figures in this report are calculated using amounts expressed in euro/thousand.

See the definition contained in the section
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Operational struction of 4 vessels, which became effective in January 2025, and in October 2024 an option was signed for a
further 4 cruise ships, which will be based on the characteristics of the previous vessels already built by Fincan-
Performance tieri for this shipowner and which have already been very successful.

SOFT BACKLOG
EURO 20.2 BLN

BACKLOG
EURO 31.0 BLN

98 ships for delivery until 2033

EURO 51.2 BLN

20 SHIPS

equivalent to 6.3 times revenues shipyards

34

0 130 SHIPS - from 9 — 15.4 BLN

[ [
TOTAL BACKLOG DELIVERIES 2024

[
ORDER INTAKE 2024

In 2024, the Group delivered 20 ships, including 4 cruise ships, 6 naval vessels and 10 offshore vessels.

Order intake during the financial year reached a record value of euro 15,355 million, more than double the euro
6,600 million in 2023, thanks to the strong acceleration in the Shipbuilding segment, and in particular in the
Cruise business.

The backlog at 31 December 2024 amounted to approximately euro 31.0 billion with 98 vessels and scheduled
deliveries until 2033, up compared to the backlog at 31 December 2023 (euro 23.1 billion) thanks to new order
intake during the year (book-to-bill ratio 1.9).

In the Cruise business, Fincantieri concluded a maxi-agreement with Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings for the
construction of 6 new generation cruise ships, with advanced technology, comfort and entertainment on board
and at the forefront in terms of environmental sustainability: 4 for the Oceania Cruises brand and 2 for the Regent
Seven Seas Cruises brand. In addition, it concluded an agreement with Carnival Corporation to build 3 cruise
ships powered by liquefied natural gas, the largest vessels ever ordered to the Company and in an Italian shipyard.
In addition, in early 2025 the Group signed another major agreement with Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings for the
construction of a further 4 maxi-vessels extending the delivery schedule to 2036.

During 2024, 3 high-end, state-of-the-art units have been agreed with Crystal, whose contracts are subject to
the usual contract obligation. Finally, with reference to the customer Viking, a contract was signed for the con-

Headcount

Reference
Scenarios

In the Defence business, OCCAR (Organisation Conjointe de Coopération en matiere d'Armement, the Organisa-
tion for Joint Armament Cooperation) exercised its option to build the fourth new generation submarine for the
Italian Navy's U212NFS (Near Future Submarine) program awarded to Fincantieri. The vessel has a value of
about euro 500 million, including the related Integrated Logistic Support and In Service Support. With this order,
the options which complete the life-cycle management of the submarines already contracted are also exercised.
At the same time, an important Engineering Change Proposal was activated, with the Group as prime contractor,
for the industrialization in Italy, production and integration on board all U212NFS of an innovative lithium-based
energy storage system (Lithium Battery System) that will replace the traditional lead-based system currently in
use. This cutting-edge technology will increase the submarine diving range.

As part of the multi-year FREMM program, aimed at renewing the Italian Navy's fleet through the construction
of new generation frigates, Orizzonte Sistemi Navali signed a contract worth approximately euro 1.5 billion with
OCCAR for the construction of two new ‘EVOLUTION’ versions of the FREMM frigate, named 'FREMM EVO'. Fur-
thermore, in relation to the Italian Navy's OPV (Offshore Patrol Vessel) project, Orizzonte Sistemi Navali received
notification from the Navy regarding its exercise of the option for the construction of the fourth new generation
patrol vessel and the related logistical support with a total value of approximately euro 236 million.

In May, the Group, through its US subsidiary FMM, was awarded the contract by the US Navy for the fifth and
sixth frigates of the Constellation FFG(X) program with a countervalue of over USD 1 billion.

As part of the collaborative relationship established between the Italian and Indonesian Ministries of Defence,
a contract was signed, and became effective at the beginning of 2025, for the supply of 2 PPA (Multipurpose
Offshore Patrol Vessels) worth approximately euro 1.2 billion. Fincantieri will act as prime contractor for the In-
donesian Ministry of Defence and will in particular coordinate other industrial partners, including Leonardo, for
the adaptation of the ship combat systems and the provision of related logistics services.

In the Offshore and Specialized vessels segment, 8 orders were signed in 2024 for the design and construction
of CSOV units: 2 for the Windward Offshore company, 2 for the Taiwanese company Dong Fang Offshore, 2 for
Navigare Capital Partners, 1 for Cyan Renewables and 1 for REM Offshore, confirming the Vard group's leadership
in the construction of vessels to support the offshore wind segment.

The Norwegian subsidiary also signed a contract for the design and construction of 5 'walk-to-work' vessels, SOV-type
vessels that will provide supply, maintenance and operational services for offshore platforms in the Oil & Gas industry.

Finally, Vard signed a contract for the design and construction of a modern Energy Construction Vessel (ECV) for
Wind Energy Construction AS, a Norwegian company partly owned by the founders of Norwind Offshore AS, also
agreeing an option for a second vessel. Agreements for the design and construction of two hybrid Ocean Energy
Construction Vessels (OECVs) were signed with Island Offshore, a Norwegian shipowner operating in the Oil &
Gas and renewables market.

The headcount as at 31 December 2024 was 22,588 (including 11,896 in ltaly), compared to 21,215 as at
31 December 2023 (including 11,112 in Italy). The increase was attributable to both Italy (+7.1%) and other
countries (+5.8%) due to the recruitment by the subsidiary Vard.

The assumed fundamentals of the reference scenario underlying the Group's 2023-2027 Business Plan remain
unchanged:

e the substantial recovery of the cruise market: total passengers in 2024 estimated at almost 35 million, up
+17% from pre-pandemic highs. The growth of the market is confirmed, with an upward revision of cruise
passengers to 40 million by 2027. The key factors shaping the competitive scenario remain the availability
of emission reduction technologies, the necessary financial support for shipowners from Export Credit Agen-
cies, the availability of production slots and management of the supply chain;

e the continuous evolution of investments, supporting development plans, in the defence sector, considered
a potential market for the Fincantieri Group amounting to approximately euro 20 billion over the Business
Plan period;

e growth expectations are confirmed for the offshore wind sector, which benefits from government support for the
green transition and the achievement of climate neutrality by 2050, driving demand for new specialized vessels;

e  the strategic role of the underwater sector, the subject of increasing attention due to the geopolitical situa-
tion and the need to coordinate a complex set of activities, operators and technologies;

e the volatility of raw materials and energy markets, with prices declining compared to 2023, although still
high compared to pre-pandemic levels. Their evolution will be influenced by green policies (ETS, CBAM),
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protectionist policies and imbalances between supply and demand; Business Plan To support the response to the challenges, management has identified 5 pillars that define Group strategy:

e  the challenging decarbonization targets accepted by all stakeholders in the supply chain: regulatory autho-
rities (IMO: Net Zero Emissions by or around 2050), governments (EU: extension of ETS to the maritime
sector), shipowners (Net Zero Fleet) and competitors.

36

Pillars And Projects

Focus on core business: portfolio review, maximization of efficiency, modernization of the production process

The challenging reference scenario requires choices to be made in terms of prioritizing the allocation of pro-
duction resources. The Company therefore considers it necessary to focus efforts on its core naval, cruise and
offshore business through five strategic initiatives:

e operations excellence, with the aim of increasing the efficiency of manufacturing and engineering processes,
digitalizing and automating support processes and low added value activities;

° improving competitiveness in the specialized vessels business, supported by the growth in the offshore wind
industry;

e derisking & partnering of the Infrastructure business area, to secure and enhance the segment;

e  strengthening the accommodation business, reinforcing performance in support of the captive business,
enhancing refitting as an adjacent business area and exploring potential development in the civil accom-
modation sector;

° management of contracts, with the start of a joint growth path with satellite businesses to support their
growth, increase the availability of resources, reduce turnover and improve capabilities.

Y2

Life cycle management: development of digital applications and data platforms to enable the transition from Capex provision to leadership
also in service provision

The market for digital services for shipowners represents an opportunity for the Group to:

anticipate potential future trends in shipowners’ business models;
strengthen the control of innovation and ship requirements;

penetrate a highly profitable segment;

accommodate different requests and needs of potential new shipowners.

Fincantieri is strengthening its ability to collect and exploit data produced by the systems and incorporate appli-
cations that generate value for the customer, further enhancing the role of physical and digital Design Authority
of the ship system.

In the first phase of the extension of the Group’s sphere of expertise, conceivable by 2030, the technologies inte-
grated in the products will be those related to on-board system sensors and ship-to-shore connectivity. At a later
stage, by 2040, development will also cover applications for green propulsion systems and the implementation of
a single digital platform for all stakeholders in the process (e.g. shipowners, shipyard, suppliers). The transition
to autonomous navigation systems, as well as remote management of critical naval activities, is expected in the
following decade.
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What ships will look like in 2030-2040-2050

Sensor & Data
Analytics

All of the ship’s equipment will be monitored, optimized and maintained
through sensor data collection and analysis.

5030 Onboard & ShIP-'tO-
shore connettivity

e

All ships will be connected to a network that will
send real-time data to shipowner offices, ports
and equipment suppliers.

1l

2040 Green Auton]ated
Technologies

Green technologies will be automated
and/or remotely controlled.

2040 Blockchain

el

Continuous financial transactions ma-
naged through blockchain technology.

Digital

2040 Platform

el

Ship operators, shipowners, banks
and original equipment manufactu-
rers (OEMs) can monitor ship perfor-
mance via a common platform.

Propulsion &

2040 Critical System

el

Many ships will change their propul-
sion systems and will be remotely
controlled (before they become fully

autonomous).
N Navigation will become fully autonomous and di-
2050 Navigation rectly linked to the rest of the fleet.
5050 Autonomous Ships will become completely autonomous in all their operations, including
Operations mooring, loading and unloading.
38

System integration:

Financial discipline:

Industrial sustainability:

00

rationalization of the Group’s capabilities to act as Prime Contractor, integrator of complex systems in the
defence business

Increased commercial effectiveness with foreign navies is crucial to compete successfully in the future defen-
ce scenario. This is why Fincantieri believes it is necessary to further develop Design Authority and Combat
System Integration capabilities to transform operational requirements into technical requirements for the Ship
Project (Whole Warship), a model already adopted by leading European shipbuilders. Instrumental to this aim
is the strengthening of the operations and capabilities of the Group company Orizzonte Sistemi Navali.

&

optimization of purchasing processes and cash flow management

The changed competitive scenario with increasing customer demands and pressure on supply chains requires an
evolution of the core business support model, particularly along two lines:

. Procurement: introduction of new digital and organizational tools and instruments, in order to:
e adopt a cross-functional and inter-divisional approach;
e extend and systematize Group best practices;
e provide greater flexibility by reducing technical and commercial requirements and constraints.

e Cost optimization:
e identification of Category cost owners with specific cross-Group responsibilities and tools to control
expenditure;
e standardization of processes for planning, approving and monitoring expenditure.

Y

delivery of the first Net Zero cruise ship by 2050 and achieving a leading role in decarbonization and ESG
The key areas for improvement identified by Fincantieri to maintain ESG leadership include:

° Environment (E):
e achieving zero net emissions by 2050, in line with the EU target, with the delivery of the first Net Zero
ship, anticipated by the first high-efficiency LNG unit by 2025 and a ship with minimum emissions in
port with dual fuel (green fuel) engines, fuel cells and batteries by 2030;
e transition to operations with lower CO, emissions;
e investment in research and innovation.

In a market context where the Net Zero cruise target is expected to be met by 2050, the Group is committed
and working, subject to technological, regulatory and infrastructure availability, to meet it earlier, with an internal
target of 2035. This challenge requires the involvement of all interested parties: suppliers, customers, flag au-
thorities, port authorities and other stakeholders.

° Social (S): development and protection of human resources, promotion of equity and inclusion and respect
for human rights, improvement of health and safety conditions for workers, promotion of growth, training and
enhancement of human capital and dialogue and support for local communities;

° Governance (G): responsible and ethical business conduct, promotion of transparency and standards of
excellence throughout the supply chain.

The strategic guidelines related to the pillar of industrial sustainability will be expressly implemented according

to the 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan, approved by the Board of Directors of Fincantieri S.p.A. on 16 February
2023 and described in detail in the section relating to the Sustainability Plan.
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Fincantieri has also identified a further strategic pillar, namely expansion into the underwater domain, where
it intends to play a leading role as aggregator of the industrial chain. The Group pursues this objective both by
leveraging its know-how and distinctive capabilities and a network of agreements and alliances with the main
players in the sector, such as C.A.B.l. Cattaneo, WSense, Saipem and Sparkle, and with an M&A strategy that has
led, between February 2024 and January 2025, to the acquisition of two beacons of excellence in the segment:
Remazel Engineering and WASS. Underwater is increasingly central from a geopolitical point of view due to naval
issues and the protection of critical underwater infrastructure for energy and communications as well as the pro-
tection of seabed mineral resources. In the Mediterranean area, in particular, the underwater segment has now
taken on fundamental importance, determined by recent developments in the geopolitical scenario, the enormous
amount of data traffic exchanged through submarine cables and the presence of underwater connections for
the transport of vital energy products for Europe. There is therefore a growing need to develop a state-of-the-art
underwater surveillance network to defend interconnections and strategic resources and prevent acts of sabotage
to critical infrastructures.

1
o,

Main strategic initiatives
implemented during the year

Focus on core business:

Life cycle management:

System integration:

Financial discipline:

Industrial sustainability:

Expansion in the
underwater segment:

During 2024, the Group continued its implementation of the strategic initiatives identified in the Business Plan
to optimize operating performance, guaranteeing the necessary resources for production programs and optimal
management of risks.

In particular, with reference to the strategic pillars, the Group achieved the following results:

o increase in shore-based pre-outfitting activities at the Ancona and Riva Trigoso shipyards; introduction of
the first 5 welding robots at Italian shipyards, plus a further 7 robotics initiatives; first use cases for the
adoption of generative Al solutions;

o positive response from the civil interiors market in the first year of business of Operae, which is engaged in
the realization and management of turnkey interior design projects in various high-end segments (residen-
tial, hospitality, fashion, yachts);

o new ancillary businesses identified for about 400 resources, also through foreign pools (i.e. Mattei Plan);
productivity monitoring of all the companies is ongoing;

e tool selected for integrated multiannual planning of engineering, production and supplier workloads;

o Vung Tau shipyard expansion plan completed. This will increase the site's production capacity by 75% and
reinforce VARD's leading position in the offshore market;

° in the area of infrastructure, the new operating model (strengthened risk management, procurement and
order management) is now fully operational;

agreement with Accenture announced for the development of the technology platform to enable functions to be inte-
grated on board ship through advanced digital products and services; operating model and business blueprint defined;

strengthened Orizzonte Sistemi Navali S.p.A.'s integration skills through the secondment of Group and Leonardo
personnel, as well as the acquisition of resources from the market;

e consolidated the category management structure; collected over 100 ideas and launched 20 projects under
the PartnerSHIP Challenge;

o definition of a new regulation on Group management and coordination, a new regulatory system and break-
down of the governance model by functional area;

launched open innovation initiatives to support the energy transition (e.g. Call4StartUp)

As part of its newly identified strategic pillar, expansion in the underwater segment: the Group signed agreements
with national and international companies active in the underwater domain, continuing the path undertaken in
2023, characterized by agreements with Leonardo, C.A.B.l. Cattaneo and WSense.

These include, in particular:

e  the signing of an MoU with Sparkle to work together on the development of innovative technological solu-
tions for the surveillance and protection of submarine telecommunication cables;

o the exercise of the option by the Italian Navy for the fourth submarine of the U212 NFS class, together with
the agreement for the industrialization, production and integration on board all U212 NFS of an innovative
lithium-based energy storage system;

o the signing of the agreement with Saipem to evaluate opportunities for collaboration in submarine robotics;

e thesigning of a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with EDGE, for the design, development and capacity
building for the supply of advanced solutions for manned and unmanned underwater system solutions in the
United Arab Emirates through MAESTRAL.
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The 2023-2027 sustainability plan (Sustainability Plan), approved by the Board of Directors of Fincantieri S.p.A.
on 16 February 2023, is an integral part of the strategic vision and is aimed at creating value for all stakeholders.
At this time of transformation, sustainability is a cornerstone in the development of production processes and an
essential objective in the development of the product portfolio in line with customer needs, helping to ensure a high
level of resilience and sustainable development for the Group. The 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan has identified 3
directions for development that represent the Group'’s strategic vision in terms of sustainability, ensure that Fincan-
tieri’'s commitments are met and contribute to the achievement of the 17 Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
defined by the United Nations Agenda 2030. In particular, 9 SDGs were recognized by Fincantieri as relevant to its
business and in line with its strategic guidelines:

The Sustainability Plan consists of:

3 Directions

24 Commitments

15 material topics,
7 of which are strategic

41 ESG objectives
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Take into account global socio-economic trends and include the Group's material topics. They are also reflected
in and represent the development of the ESG pillar of the Business Plan.

Undertaken by the Group through its Charter of Sustainability Commitments.

Identified by means of stakeholder engagement and market benchmarking that enable the views of the Group
to be taken into consideration as well as those of customers, suppliers and partners, the financial community
and other stakeholders, who were involved through an online survey. Material topics are reported annually in the
Non-Financial Statement - Sustainability Report.

To be achieved in the short, medium and long term, which will contribute in particular to the achievement of 9
SDGs that Fincantieri has recognized as significant for its business and in line with its strategic guidelines.

These objectives make the Group's path towards sustainable development transparent and verifiable. Periodically,
these objectives will be updated, and new targets will be defined, according to a process of continuous alignment
with the strategic guidelines and results achieved, in order to increasingly integrate sustainability along the entire
value chain, taking into account the potential impacts on the economy, the environment and people.

Responsibility for achieving the goals included in the Sustainability Plan lies with the various company functions
involved, which devote resources, tools and know-how to implementing the actions underlying the goals. The
objectives of the Sustainability Plan are reviewed annually, based on the results achieved and the new needs that
emerge over time.

The successful implementation of the Sustainability Plan continued, with all 4 objectives and targets with a
deadline in 2024 achieved during the year. It should be noted that the target concerning the study on the circu-
lar economy for Fincantieri S.p.A.'s cruise ships with a 2025 deadline and the target for the development and
operation of prototypes for monitoring activities, inspection, and analysis of the accessibility of high risk areas
was achieved ahead of time.

1
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The following are the objectives of the 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan with a final or intermediate deadline in
2024. A description of the initiatives related to the individual objectives and targets is given in the Consolidated
Sustainability Statement chapter.

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

STATUS ESRS SECTION

Innovative and technological development for energy and digital transition

E 12 e W13

Promotion of research projects to develop new solu-
tions for energy efficiency or reduction of emissions
in collaboration with research institutes/universities
on issues associated with climate risks

Complete four projects by 2030, of which:
« 1 project

S4 — Consumers
and end-users

Study on circular economy for Fincantieri S.p.A.
cruise ships in cooperation with a university/research
centre!®

Analysing the maturity level of players in the shipping industry

Identifying an analysis methodology

Evaluating and identifying tools to implement the logic of circular economy

E5 - Circular
Economy

Digital transformation via the introduction of techno-
logies and equipment in order to optimise business
processes and make them greener in line with organi-
zational and management best practices!!

Completion of obsolete printer refresh with TEC'? fleet reduction of ~70% when
fully operational

Gradual adoption of Public Cloud infrastructure and Printing services by all Italian
companies whose IT management falls within the Parent Company's perimeter

E5 - Circular
Economy

Digitalization of internal processes and collaboration
with third parties

Digitisation and centralisation of paper-based processes related to suppliers’
progress documentation (SAL and FAT area Engineering and COP*3) and for the
management of accesses of satellite businesses for Fincantieri S.p.A., enabling
a reduction in paper printouts of about 1.1 million/year at the same workload

Introduction of a solution for the management of material transport from, to and
between the Group's sites', capable of managing multiple logistic providers and
slot booking logics, and experimentation with algorithms based on High Perfor-
mance Computing or Quantum Computing to optimize intra-group transport and
inventory generating a direct benefit on emissions

Roll-out of SAP ERP, an enabling platform for process digitalization, in the subsi-
diaries: Fincantieri Marinette Marine (FMM), MI S.p.A.

S4 — Consumers
and end-users

Introduction of innovative analytics solutions and
process mining to provide insights for process opti-
mization

Creation of a corporate database (Data Platform) powered by data from corporate
master systems (e.g. SAP, Inspection Call), activation of Al/machine learning ser-
vices in order to provide useful analytics to deliver insights into areas of lower effi-
ciency and to identify opportunities for optimizing and/or streamlining processes,
and implementation of analytics and predictive analysis tools: Wave 2: 25 use cases

Extension of analytics tools to other Group companies adopting the same proces-
ses: VARD (Norway, Romania)

S4 - Consumers
and end-users

Waste reduction

Maintaining the portion of waste sent for recycling between 80-90% each year

E5 - Circular
Economy

Protection of biodiversity

Launch of project for the protection of biodiversity

E4 - Biodiversity
and ecosystems

Raising awareness among employees and top mana-
gement about cyber risks and training them to reco-
gnise them

Delivering phishing awareness campaigns to employees (employees, middle ma-
nagers and senior managers):
« 2 campaigns®®

Extension of the phishing awareness campaign to employees of the subsidiary
VARD group AS

Implementation of induction sessions for the Top Management (including the
Board of Directors):
« 1 induction session'®

S4 — Consumers
and end-users

:| Objective completed

Target completed

10 Perimeter: Fincantieri S.p.A.

11 Perimeter: Parent Company As-Is: Data Centre Services -

Fincantieri S.p.A., Isotta Fraschini Motori, FC Infrastructure, FC SI, FC

01l&Gas, some companies of the Marine Interiors group, VARD (FC centralized services only); Printing Services - Fincantieri S.p.A.,
FC Infrastructure, FC SI, OSN, FC 0il&Gas, some companies of the Fincantieri NexTech group, some companies of the Marine Interiors
group. As part of the SAP roll-out project in Fincantieri Marinette Marine (FMM), a cloud application was activated for the delivery
of ERP services using the IaaS (Infrastructure as a Service) model in the US.
12 Typical Electricity Consumption (TEC): electrical consumption of a device using an internationally recognized standard methodo-
logy. TEC 1is measured in KWh/week.
13 COP: Coordination of Production.
14 Perimeter: Fincantieri S.p.A., Marine Interiors Cabins S.p.A., Fincantieri Infrastructure S.p.A., Centro Servizi Navali S.p.A.
15 Perimeter: Fincantieri S.p.A. and Fincantieri NexTech S.p.A.
16 Perimeter: Fincantieri S.p.A.
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OBJECTIVE

TARGET

STATUS ESRS SECTION

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

STATUS ESRS SECTION

Protection, inclusion and development of people and communities

3 Sl [ 5 San 17 e

<

Industrial excellence

3 i [ 5 S

2

<

== =3

In accordance with the guidelines being defined!’
and international best practices, proactively identify
and assess potential risks and impacts related to the
respect of human rights, incorporated in the policy
and Code of Ethics, referred to and signed by sup-
pliers in the general terms and conditions of the order

Implementation of a plan of targeted interventions following due diligence

J S2 - Value chain
workers

Improvement of health and safety at work performan-
ce with a view to zero accidents to protect workers'
health and the work environment

Contain the frequency rate for work-related injuries?® below 7.5 for the next 5
years

Contain the severity index?! within 0.2 for the next 5 years

S1 - Own workforce

Annual (second party) sustainability audits by Fin-
cantieri at suppliers’ premises to assess and monitor
suppliers' compliance with human rights, health and
safety and the environment

Audits of the Group's of priority/strategic interest on respect for human rights,
health and safety and the environment (approx. 200 suppliers including the re-
maining 7 audits not carried out due to COVID pandemic issues) with at least 40
audits per year.

Starting form 2023, depending on the score obtained from the audit, recovery
plans, progressive or immediate phaseouts will be defined on an ongoing basis,
based on the severity, with evidence being reported in the Supplier Oversight!®.

J S2 - Value chain
workers

Conducting work-related stress risk analysis

100% of Italian shipyards and subsidiaries over 4 years analysed for work-related
stress risk??

S1 - Own workforce

Support tools to improve ergonomics and reduce wor-
kloads

Ensuring maximum integration and full involvement
of the corporate population by developing training
and awareness-raising initiatives on diversity and in-
clusion

1 project to enhance multiculturalism and eliminate all forms of discrimination?®

S1 - Own workforce

1 project to raise awareness of disability at Group level

Carry out a feasibility study for the adoption of tools to support manual activities,
such as industrial exoskeletons, where compatible with the work environment on
board ships under construction in relation to the increase in the average age of the
working population in order to achieve an improvement in working conditions in
certain activities that engage the musculoskeletal system through robotic structu-
res of various types

S1 - Own workforce

Supporting for inspection activities through robotized
systems

Development and operation of 3 prototypes such as: quadrupeds or rovers equip-
ped with sensors for monitoring activities, drones for inspection to analyse the
accessibility of high-risk areas

S1 - Own workforce

Strengthening gender equality and women's em-
powerment by promoting projects to ensure a level
playing field for women in the world of work

Developing a training program to support the professional career of women in
the Group

100% reduction of the weighted gender pay gap

S1 - Own workforce

<] | 2 <

Increasing the level of control over the cyber risk
exposure of the product supply chain

Activation of an audit plan for cyber risk exposure from systems belonging to a
pool of 20 suppliers, representing 90% of the cruise business's cyber-critical
systems as per IACS UR E26 standard?®

S4 — Consumers
and end-users

Development of a Sustainable Supply Chain in order
to integrate sustainability criteria into the supplier

:| Objective completed

Target completed

qualification system and to ensure adequate risk
control?*

Attribution of ESG scores for at least 50% of strategic qualified suppliers?®

ESG assessment and gap analysis on the evaluated sample

G1 - Business
conduct

Raising supplier awareness of ESG issues®®

Organization of at least one engagement session on ESG issues per year with

G1 - Business

strategic suppliers conduct
Managing of "conflict minerals" along the supply | Identification and implementation of contractual tools for the management of S2 - Value chain
chain "conflict minerals"?” workers

Assignment of sustainability objectives within the
corporate variable reward system

Attribution of sustainability objectives to at least 25% of staff with access to the
variable reward system?®

S1 - Own workforce

Alignment of the Fincantieri Travel Security program
with the guideline UNI ISO 31030:2021 Travel risk
management - Guidance for organisations to further
ensure the safety of travelling employees

Definition and publication of a Travel Risk Policy compliant with ISO 31030 and
updating of existing corporate procedures (where necessary)?®

Definition of a Travel Risk Management (TRM) operational model for Fincan-
tieri S.p.A.

S1 - Own workforce

:I Objective completed

Target completed
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17 To bring forward the requirements contained in the Proposal for a Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on
Corporate Sustainability Due Diligence.

18 Perimeter: Group. excluding US subsidiaries.

19 Perimeter: Fincantieri S.p.A. and ancillary companies.

Y
w

The 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan is available on the website
www.fincantieri.com/en/sustainability/governance/sustainability-plan/

20 Injury rate (no. of injuries at work/hours worked *1,000,000).

21 Severity index (no. of days lost per injury/hours worked * 1,000).

22 Perimeter: Italy.

23 Perimeter: Fincantieri S.p.A.

24 Perimeter: Group, excluding US subsidiaries.

25 This means suppliers in the Register, net of suppliers referenced and imposed by the customer.
26 Perimeter: Group, excluding US subsidiaries.

27 This refers to raw materials or minerals - tin, tantalum, tungsten and gold ('3TG')
armed conflicts, the trade in which may finance armed groups, fuel forced labour and other human rights abuses, and support corrup-
tion and money laundering.

28 Perimeter: Italy.

29 Perimeter: Fincantieri S.p.A.

- from high-risk areas or areas affected by
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In the national and international context, Fincantieri is a benchmark in industrial culture and intends to be a
model in the area of sustainability as well. Ensuring a balance between competitiveness, environmental sustai-
nability and social responsibility is a strategic objective for the Company, pursued through an integrated strategy
that combines business growth, financial stability and social and environmental sustainability.

Within this framework, Fincantieri is committed to generating value in the short, medium and long term, with
a solid commitment to present and future generations. To translate this vision into tangible actions, the Group
nurtures a culture of sustainability among its people, so that everyone conveys the basic principles of social
responsibility in his or her work on a daily basis, thus helping to meet the expectations of all stakeholders. This
approach triggers a virtuous circle, generating synergies and engaging a shared and proactive commitment.

To formalise this commitment and make binding vis-a-vis the outside world, Fincantieri has since 2019 joined
the UN Global Compact, the world's largest business sustainability initiative. It is an initiative involving voluntary
adherence to ten universal principles concerning human rights, labour, the environment and anti-corruption,
which promote the values of long-term sustainability through political action, business practices, social and civic
conduct. Subsequently, Fincantieri signed up to the Women's Empowerment Principles, seven principles promo-
ted by Global Compact and UN Women dedicated to companies and aimed at activating concrete actions and
promoting equal conditions for women in the world of work. With this commitment, the Group intends to bring
on board a future where equity is a common and shared reality, and where the uniqueness of each individual is a
source of wealth. Only by allowing each person to express his or her talents is it possible to fully cultivate human
capital.

During 2024, the Fincantieri Group consolidated its position as best in class on sustainability issues in the indu-
stry, as evidenced by the following ratings and awards obtained.
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Sustainability ratings and scores

ESG analysis/rating agency

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024

CDP

CDP is an independent non-profit body that assesses the commitment of companies

at a global level to managing and monitoring climate change risks and opportunities.

Its analysis is in line with the requirements of the Task Force for Climate-Related A- A- A- A-
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and the main environmental standards.

The rating scale goes from D (lowest) to A (highest) and Fincantieri is in the highest

band, known as Leadership.

Sustainalytics

Sustainalytics is an agency controlled by Morningstar. It rates companies according
to the ESG Risk Rating, which provides an overall score based on an assessment of

how exposed the company is to Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) risks 19.7 17.43° 14.2 13.4
and how these are managed. The scale goes from O (low risk) to 40 (high risk). Tow Tow Tow Tow

Fincantieri was also included, for the second year running, in the prestigious list of risk risk risk risk
"Top-Rated ESG Companies". This recognition underlines the company’s outstanding

performance.

Moody’s ESG Solutions aims to understand the organization’s ESG performance and

assess its risk exposure, policies and action plans. The rating scale goes from O 70/100 70/100 69/100 70/100

Moody’s to 100 and consists of four bands: Weak (0-29), Limited (30-49), Robust (50-59) ' f Ad i Ad i Ad g
and Advanced (60-100). Fincantieri’s place in the Advanced band was confirmed vance vance vance vance
for the fifth year.

S&P Global, through the Corporate Sustainability Assessment (CSA) questionnaire,
assessed companies on ESG aspects with a rating scale from O to 100. Fincantieri 58/100 61/100 59/100 59/100
S&P Global on on on on

was evaluated within the IEQ Machinery and Electrical Equipment category, obtai-

ning a score of 59/100 on 31 January 2025. 20/12/2021 16/12/2022 23/01/2024 31/01/2025

Sustainability awards

Integrated Governance

Fincantieri was confirmed as among the “Top Performer” companies assessed through the Integrated Governance Index (IGI) 2024, promoted by
EticaNews. |Gl is a quantitative index developed on the basis of a questionnaire given to leading Italian companies with the aim of measuring the

Index 2024 degree of integration of ESG factors in corporate governance and identity. In 2024, 93 companies joined the project, which is now in its ninth year.
Fincantieri moved from Leader to Top Performer level, taking first place in the 'Industry' category.
In Italy, for the sixth consecutive year, Fincantieri was recognized by Universum as one of the "Most Attractive Employers" in Italy.
The ranking by Universum, a leading Employer Branding research company, identifies the most attractive companies for students and young profes-
Universum sionals by asking them what the most relevant and distinctive characteristics are when choosing a potential employer.

In both the students' and young professionals' rankings, Fincantieri S.p.A. ranked among the top 50 companies in the Science, Technology, Enginee-
ring and Mathematics (STEM) disciplines and among the top 100 in the Business/Economics category, reinforcing its leadership ahead of numerous
industrial companies.

Top Employer Italy

For the fourth year running, Fincantieri has received the "Top Employer Italy 2025" certification from the Top Employers Institute, official recognition
of corporate excellence in HR policies and strategies and their implementation to contribute to well-being for people, improve the working environ-
ment and the world of work. Top Employers certification is awarded to companies that achieve and meet the high standards required by the HR Best
Practices Survey. The Survey covers 6 macro HR areas: Diversity, Equity & Inclusion; Leadership; People Strategy; Employer Branding; Purpose &
Values; Employee Listening. Fincantieri has continuously improved its results over the years, confirming its consistent focus on listening to and in-
volving people, its constant commitment to fostering an ever more inclusive work environment and its ability to attract talent and invest in employee
training and development.

2024 Oscar di Bilancio

Fincantieri won the 2024 Oscar di Bilancio in the Large Listed Companies category, in the 60th edition of the event promoted by FERPI, in collabo-
ration with Borsa Italiana and Bocconi University.

The jury recognized the distinctive value of the clear and thorough presentation of ESG issues, in harmony with the goals outlined in Agenda 2030.
The report was distinguished by its transparency, thorough risk analysis and integration of strategies for structured and effective communication.
This prestigious award, received for the third time following the 2020 and 2022 editions, further underlines Fincantieri's commitment to sustainabi-
lity, which has already been rewarded in the past with the "Special Award for Sustainability Reporting".

2025 Human Enterprise Award

Fincantieri won the 2025 Impresa Umana (Human Enterprise) Award, decided by the Economy Group in partnership with Pane Quotidiano. The award
underlines the company's commitment to social sustainability initiatives, with the aim of promoting the protection, inclusion and development of
people and communities, as outlined in the 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan and the 2023 Sustainability Report.

This award confirms Fincantieri's ongoing commitment to sustainable development through strategic investments for the growth of the people, com-
munities and the regions where the company operates.

SDGs Leaders Summit 2024

As part of the SDG Leaders Summit 2024, Fincantieri received a prestigious award in the procurement community for its PartnerShip project, a pro-
gram focused on supply chain development for sustainable transition. This award confirms the Fincantieri Group's commitment to sustainability and
adds to the recognition received by our CEO, Pierroberto Folgiero in the 'Social Impact' category of the CEOforLIFE Awards.

Safety Award

In 2024, as in previous years, the Shipbuilders Council of America (SCA) presented Fincantieri Marinette Marine with awards for companies that have
distinguished themselves in improving operations, promoting safety and preventing accidents. The awards received include:

“Excellence in Safety Award”: given to companies that have recorded no fatal accidents during the year, that submit regular quarterly reports on
occupational safety and that have an annual average Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR) below the average calculated by the SCA.

“Improvement in Safety Award”: reserved for companies that have reduced their annual TRIR by 10% or more compared to the previous year, as
demonstrated by the comprehensive quarterly reports submitted to the SCA.

“Significance in Safety Award”: awarded to shipyards that recorded no fatalities during the year and which maintained a TRIR of less than 1.0.

30 Updated in June 2023.
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The sectors in which Fincantieri operates reflect important growth prospects characterized by positive
macro-trends in the cruise tourism market, geopolitical developments driving an increase in defence spen-
ding, and the growing need for the development of offshore energy resources, both in the wind and oil &
gas segments.

The Cruise business, where Fincantieri is a market leader, is seeing growth accelerate. All major shipow-
ners report a positive trend above expectations for key industry indicators such as bookings, cruise prices,
on-board revenues and profitability. The CLIA forecast is for 39.7 million cruise passengers by 2027 (CAGR
+4.6%); in later years further growth is expected with the achievement of about 48.5 million by 2032
(CAGR 2024-2032 +4.3%). The upturn in orders in 2024 for all ship classes, from luxury to contemporary,
is also fuelled by the introduction of new environmental regulations that accelerate the fleet renewal pro-
cess. This favourable scenario, marked by the restart of investments with a long-term vision by the major
cruise lines, is confirmed by the recent transformation of the LOI signed in 2024 into an order for the
construction of four new ships for Norwegian Cruise Line, the largest ever ordered for this brand.

As far as the Defence business is concerned, the global defence budget stood at approximately USD 2.48
trillion in 20243! (+1.1% compared to 2023, taking inflation into account), confirming an upward trend
since 2014 (+2.8% a year).

In the naval sphere, the current rapidly changing international geopolitical context is expected to open up
new scenarios, marked by an increase in resources allocated to programs to strengthen fleets for defence
and deterrence purposes. This trend offers attractive growth opportunities for the Group, in a potential
market of around euro 20 billion over the Plan period, particularly in Italy and the United States and in
strategically important quadrants such as the Middle East and South East Asia, where the Group has stren-
gthened its presence.

On the domestic market, the Italian Navy's fleet renewal plan continued in 2024 with the finalization of
contracts for the construction of new generation units, specifically two 'FREMM EVO' frigates and a fourth
patrol vessel, while for the underwater segment, the order for a fourth submarine was finalized. In the US
market, options for the fifth and sixth next generation Constellation Class multi-role frigate were exercised.
In other countries, in addition to the contract for two MPCS (multipurpose combat ship)/PPA for the Indo-
nesian government, a series of agreements were concluded in the Middle East (Egypt, Qatar, Saudi Arabia
and the United Arab Emirates) and in Asia.

The numerous activities and agreements put in place to strengthen the technological leadership in the un-
derwater domain, a crucial segment for the future of maritime security and technology, culminating with the
acquisition of Remazel and Leonardo S.p.A.'s Underwater Armament Systems (UAS) business line, involve
a significant broadening of the Group's core market.

In the Offshore segment, the demand for renewable energy has been confirmed as a solid driver of demand
for offshore wind growth, albeit at a slower pace than expected.

In 2024, demand for specialized SOV/CSOV vessels remained high, totalling 20 orders, 8 of which were
acquired by the Norwegian subsidiary VARD, which confirmed its market leadership, holding one third of
the world order book.

Green transition policies and the setting of ambitious targets by governments, especially in Europe, will
continue to support demand in the long term.

New market opportunities have emerged in 2024 with growing energy demand, which has helped to relaun-
ch investment in the Oil & Gas sector. This trend, expected to continue in the coming years, has generated
a demand for particularly flexible vehicles (MSV, OECV, ECV)3? dedicated to construction or maintenance
activities, also in the subsea area, and able to provide support for both offshore wind and Qil & Gas projects.
The Norwegian subsidiary VARD was able to seize these opportunities by winning orders for 8 innovative
ships during the year (out of 21 vessels worldwide), all with hybrid propulsion.

The Group plans to continue implementing the 2023-2027 Business Plan during 2025, focusing on:

(i) the creation of a distinctive portfolio of technologies, products and services in the underwater
segment, capable of meeting the needs of customers in both the defence and civil sectors;

(ii) increased operational efficiency, with a focus on the performance of the supply chain and the
industrialization of robotics and automation solutions (robots, digital twin, logistics); entry into a new

31 Source: Global Defence Budget, Jane’s, 21 January 2025 - figures in real terms (taking inflation into account).
32 MSV-Multipurpose Supply Vessel, OECV-Ocean Energy Construction Vessel, ECV-Energy Construction Vessel.
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cruise ship segment (over 200,000 gross tonnage) enabled by the investments planned in the Monfal-
cone shipyard;

(iii) introduction of advanced digital technologies, such as artificial intelligence, to optimise engine-
ering and purchasing;

(iv) development of the technology platform to enable functionality to be integrated on board using
advanced digital products and services;

(v) further strengthening of Orizzonte Sistemi Navali's skills as a naval system integrator;

(vi) implementation of systems for decarbonization of the maritime sector (integration of hydrogen
storage and utilization systems on board).

The expectation of continued growth in the Group's activities is reflected in the forecast of an increase in
revenues for 2025, expected to be around euro 9 billion, including the contribution from integration of
Leonardo's 'Underwater Armament Systems' business unit. The strong increase in profitability is also con-
firmed with an EBITDA margin above 7% at the end of 2025. On the financial front, a further acceleration
of the deleveraging process is expected, with the NFP/EBITDA leverage ratio expected to be in line with
2024, a clear improvement on the 2025 Business Plan target (between 4.5x and 5.5x). Finally, a positive
net profit in 2025 is confirmed.

AR R AR R R R T
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Order intake, order backlog and deliveries

[m]

In 2024, the Group recorded a record level of new orders, valued at euro 15,355 million compared to euro 6,600
million in 2023, with a book-to-bill ratio (order intake/revenue) of 1.9 (0.9 in 2023).

Order intake analysis 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
(euro/million) amounts % amounts %
Fincantieri S.p.A. 12,041 78 3,336 51
Rest of Group 3,314 22 3,264 49
Total 15,355 100 6,600 100
Shipbuilding 13,194 86 4,148 63
Offshore and Specialized Vessels 1,555 10 1,801 27
Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure 1,389 9 1,050 16
Consolidation adjustments (783) (5) (399) (6)
Total 15,355 100 6,600 100
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The analysis of the numbers of ships delivered and those in the order book is shown in the following table.

Deliveries, Order Intake and Order Book (number of ships) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Ships delivered 20 26
Vessels ordered 33 23
Vessels in order book 98 85

The following table shows the deliveries in 2024 and those scheduled in future years for vessels currently in the

order book, analysed by the main business areas and by year.

The Group’s total backlog reached euro 51.2 billion at 31 December 2024, comprising euro 31.0 billion of
backlog (euro 23.1 billion at 31 December 2023) and euro 20.2 billion of soft backlog (euro 11.7 billion at 31

December 2023) with development of the projects in the order book expected to continue up to 2033.

The backlog and total backlog guarantee about 3.8 years and 6.3 years of work respectively in relation to the
2024 revenues. The composition of the backlog by segment is shown in the following table.

Total backlog analysis 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
(euro/million) amounts % amounts %
Fincantieri S.p.A. 23,047 74 15,883 69
Rest of Group 7,931 26 7,189 31
Total backlog 30,978 100 23,072 100
Shipbuilding 26,497 86 18,908 82
Offshore and Specialized Vessels 2,192 7 1,866 8
Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure 3,001 10 2,688 12
Consolidation adjustments (712) (3) (390) (2)
Total backlog 30,978 100 23,072 100
Soft backlog* 20,200 100 11,700 100
Total backlog 51,178 100 34,772 100

* Soft backlog represents the value of contract options, existing letters of intent and projects at an advanced stage of negotiation

not yet reflected in the order backlog.
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(number) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Beyond 2029  Total*
Cruise ships 4 6 7 5 2 4 28
Defence 6 7 5 3 4 10 33
Offshore and Specialized Vessels 10 14 13 1 37
TOTAL 20 27 25 18 8 6 14 98

* Number of vessels in the order book, analysed by the main business areas at 31 December 2024.
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Capital expenditure

]

Capital expenditure amounted to euro 263 million in 2024, broadly in line with the previous year.

Enhancing assets and increasing their operational efficiency both in Italy and abroad are key elements sup-
porting the Group's sustainable growth strategy, which is based on a continuous process of improving product
quality and optimizing management and transformation costs, with the aim of growing the order book, raising
the level of excellence of the production process and further strengthening Fincantieri's position as a reference
point at the international level.

In this context, with the aim of further strengthening the Group’s positioning in the shipbuilding segment,
both civil and naval approximately euro 816 million was invested in the three-year period 2022-2024 in the
production sites, both Italian and foreign, to: i) make the production process more efficient, also in terms of
automation ii) adapt the operating infrastructure to the significant backlog acquired in recent years and iii)
achieve the Group’s sustainability objectives, with particular reference to reducing energy consumption and
atmospheric emissions.

Capital expenditure analysis 31.12.2024 31.12.2023*
(euro/million) amounts 7 amounts %
Fincantieri S.p.A. 158 60 124 48
Rest of Group 105 40 134 52
Total 263 100 258 100
Shipbuilding 160 61 162 63
Offshore and Specialized Vessels 40 15 24 9
Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure 28 11 35 14
Other activities 35 13 37 14
Total 263 100 258 100
Intangible assets 104 39 b5 21
Property, plant and equipment 159 61 203 79
Total 263 100 258 100

R&D and Innovation

* Comparative figures have been restated following the redefinition of the operating segments.

For further detail, please refer to the “Investment Plan” chapter.

52

Fincantieri considers Research and Innovation as cornerstones for the Company's success and enablers to
enhance its future competitiveness in a rapidly changing market environment. In 2024, Research and Deve-
lopment costs (for the non-capitalized part) amounted to euro 175 million and related to numerous projects
connected to process and product innovation, which also find concrete application in the design phase of new
vessels ordered. The Group systematically carries out such activities, seen as a strategic prerequisite for retai-
ning its leadership of all high-tech market segments, now and in the future.

In addition, the Group capitalized euro 26 million in development costs in 2024 for projects with long-term
utility. These capitalized projects mainly relate to the development of innovative solutions and systems to
improve the efficiency of cruise ships, both in terms of energy balance and reducing environmental impact,
as well as the realization of innovative systems to upgrade the technological capacity of certain types of naval
vessels. More details on the investment plan can be found in the chapter "Consolidated Sustainability State-
ment" section “S4 - Consumers and end-users”.
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Group economic and financial results

Presented below are the reclassified consolidated versions of the income statement, statement of financial posi-
tion and statement of cash flows, the breakdown of Consolidated net financial position and the principal econo-
mic and financial indicators used by management to monitor business performance. For a reconciliation between
the reclassified financial statements and the statutory financial statements, please refer to the special section
“Reconciliation of the reclassified financial statements used in the Report on Operations with the mandatory

IFRS statements”.

RECLASSIFIED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Revenue and income 8,128 7,651
Materials, services and other costs (6,245) (5,960)
Personnel costs (1,371) (1,219)
Utilizations (3) (75)
EBITDA! 509 397
EBITDA margin 6.3% 5.2%
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (263) (235)
EBIT 246 162
EBIT margin 3.0% 2.1%
Financial income/(expenses) (178) (169)
Income/(expense) from investments 7 4
Income taxes (18) (4)
Adjusted profit/(loss) for the year 57 (7)
of which attributable to Group 63 (7)
Extraordinary or non-recurring income and (expenses) (39) (61)

- of which costs related to asbestos litigation (38) (61)

- of which other extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses (6)

- of which reversals of impairment Intangible assets 12

- of which impairment of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (7)
Tax effect on extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses 9 15
Profit/(loss) for the year 27 (53)
of which attributable to Group &3 (53)

1 This figure does not include Extraordinary and non-recurring income and expenses. See the definition contained in the section

Alternative Performance Measures.
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Revenue Analysis
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EBITDA Analysis

B shipbuilding
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and Infrastructure
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Revenues and income for 2024 amount to euro 8,128 million, an increase of 6.2% compared to 2023, in line
with the forecasts for 2024 and in line with the growth expectations of the Business Plan. The expected reduction
in revenues in the Shipbuilding segment (-2.3%) is more than offset by the growth achieved in the Offshore and
Specialized Vessels and Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure segments, which close 2024 with revenues up
by 28% and 36% respectively. Before consolidation adjustments, Shipbuilding contributes 68% (74% in 2023),
Offshore and Specialized vessels 15% (13% in 2023) and Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure 17% (13% in
2023) of the Group’s total revenue and income.

MM
7,651 8,128
13% 17%
= o 1,100 o 1,498
13% 15%
"
o o
5 S
74% i 68% 2
= =
7 7
(731) (731)
31.12.2023 31.12.2024

EBITDA in 2024 reached euro 509 million (up 28% from euro 397 million in 2023), with the EBITDA margin
progressing to 6.3% (5.2% as at 31 December 2023), boosted by the initiatives set out in the Business Plan,
such as the drive for operational efficiency in the Shipbuilding segment, the derisking of the Infrastructure Clu-
ster, the strengthening of the Mechanical Systems and Components Cluster and the strategic repositioning of the
Electronics and Digital Products Cluster.

€MM

6.3%
509
o 6.9%
5.25 s97 105
2.2% 4.9%
2.28 -
4.9 24 ——0
6.0% 6.6%
(46) (57)
31.12.2023 31.12.2024
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Details of income and expenses not included in EBITDA are shown in the following table:
(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Provisions for costs and legal expenses associated with asbestos-related lawsuits (38) (61)
Other extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses (6)
TOTAL (44) (61)
EBIT achieved was positive at euro 246 million in 2024 (euro 162 million in 2023). The EBIT margin (as a per-
centage of revenue and income) improved to 3.0% (2.1% as at 31 December 2023), mainly due to the increase
in Group EBITDA, partially offset by the increase in depreciation, amortization and impairment for the period
(euro 263 million) compared to 2023 (euro 235 million).
Details of income and expenses not included under the item Depreciation, amortization and impairment are
shown in the following table:
(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Reversals of impairment Intangible assets 12
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (7)
TOTAL 5 -
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Financial income/(expenses) reports net expenses of euro 178 million (net expenses of euro 169 million at 31
December 2023). The increase compared to the value as of 31 December 2023 is mainly due to higher interest
expenses and other bank charges, mainly as a result of the rise in interest rates, net of the positive contribution
from interest income accrued on receivables from shipowners and income generated by financial hedges.

Income and expenses from investments show a positive value of euro 7 million (euro 4 million in 2023) mainly
due to the effect of the recognition of profits made by joint ventures.

Income taxes for the year were negative for euro 18 million (negative for euro 4 million in 2023), related in par-
ticular to higher taxable income realized by the Parent Company.

The Adjusted profit/(loss) for the year was a profit of euro 57 million as at 31 December 2024, a clear improve-
ment on the loss of euro 7 million in 2023.

Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses were negative at euro 39 million (negative at euro 61 million
in 2023) and related to litigation costs for damages caused by asbestos for euro 38 million, down from 2023
(euro 61 million) due to the reduction in the number of disputes, other costs related to extraordinary transactions
(for acquisitions and capital increase) for euro 6 million, and the net effect of impairment losses and revaluation
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets which made a positive contribution of euro 5 million. As
at 31 December 2023, they related exclusively to costs related to asbestos litigation.

The Tax effect of extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses was positive for euro 9 million (euro 15
million in 2023).

Profit for the year, as a result of the above, was 27 million (loss of euro 53 million in 2023). The Group share of
profit/(loss) for the year was a profit of euro 33 million (loss of euro 53 million in 2023).

CERTIFIED
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RECLASSIFIED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

1
|,
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CONSOLIDATED NET FINANCIAL POSITION

(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Current financial payables (322) (301)
Debt instruments - current portion (260) (146)
Current portion of bank loans and credit facilities (238) (597)
Construction loans 262
Current debt (820) (1,306)
Non-current financial payables (1,645) (1,779)
Debt instruments - non-current portion (50)

Non-current debt (1,695) (1,779)
Total financial debt (2,515) (3,085)
Cash and cash equivalents 686 758
Other current financial assets 548 56
Net financial position (1,281) (2,271)

(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Intangible assets 571 474
Rights of use 124 125
Property, plant and equipment 1,715 1,684
Investments 69 60
Non-current financial assets 94 669
Other non-current assets and liabilities 32 12
Employee benefits (54) (54)
Net fixed capital 2,551 2,969
Inventories and advances 904 801
Construction contracts and client advances 1,163 632
Trade receivables 671 767
Trade payables (3,071) (2,471)
Other provisions for risks and charges (212) (237)
Other current assets and liabilities 120 192
Net working capital (425) (316)
Assets held for sale - 52
Net invested capital 2,126 2,705
Share Capital 878 863
Reserves and retained earnings attributable to the Group (29) (430)
Non-controlling interests in equity (4) 1
Equity 845 434
Net financial position 1,281 2,271
Sources of funding 2,126 2,705
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The Reclassified consolidated statement of financial position shows Net invested capital as at 31 December
2024 of euro 2,126 million (euro 2,705 million as at 31 December 2023). The decrease is mainly due to the
following factors:

o Net fixed capital: amounted to euro 2,551 million as at 31 December 2024, a decrease of euro 418 million
compared to 31 December 2023 (euro 2,969 million). The most significant elements include i) the euro
574 million decrease in Non-current financial assets following the reclassification to current portion of the
financial credit, backed by collateral, granted to a shipowner in connection with the delivery of a ship in
December 2023, ii) the euro 128 million increase in Intangible assets and Property, plant and equipment,
as the net effect of the entry of Remazel into the scope of consolidation (the acquisition of which led to the
recognition of euro 45 million of goodwill, euro 32 million of client relationships and order backlog and euro
11 million of other assets), capital expenditure during the period (euro 263 million), revaluations net of
impairment losses (euro 9 million) and depreciation and amortization (euro 241 million);

e Net working capital: is negative for euro 425 million (negative for euro 316 million as at 31 December
2023), a decrease of euro 109 million. The most significant changes include the increase in Work in pro-
gress and client advances (euro 531 million) and in Inventories and advances (euro 103 million), offset by
the increase in Trade payables (euro 600 million), mainly as a result of the volumes generated in the fourth
quarter in particular.

e Assets held for sale: during the year, the sale of equity investments classified as held for sale at 31 Decem-
ber 2023 was finalized.

Equity amounted to euro 845 million, up euro 411 million mainly due to the effect of the capital increase conclu-
ded in 2024 (euro 393 million split across Share Capital and Reserves), the profit for the year (euro 27 million)
and the negative change in the cash flow reserve related to cash flow hedging instruments (euro 11 million).

The Consolidated net financial position®? shows a net debt balance of euro 1,281 million, a significant improve-
ment compared to 31 December 2023 (net debt of euro 2,271 million). The change compared to 31 December
2023 is mainly attributable to (i) the effectiveness of the strategy for the Cruise business, which, by stabilizing
annual revenue at around euro 4 billion, neutralizes cash absorption in this sector, (ii) the effect of the actions
taken to achieve efficiency, operational excellence and financial discipline in line with the Business Plan, (iii)
the capital increase received in July 2024, and (iv) the reclassification to current portion of the financial credit,
backed by collateral, granted to a shipowner in connection with the delivery of a ship in December 2023.

The Net financial position does not include payables to suppliers for reverse factoring classified as trade
payables, which amounted to euro 650 million at 31 December 2024 (euro 493 million at 31 December 2023)
and represent the value of invoices, formally liquid and collectable, assigned by suppliers to an agreed lending
institution and which benefit from extensions agreed between suppliers and the Group. For further detail on
the accounting criteria adopted please refer to Section 8.1 “Reverse Factoring” in Note 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

33 See the definition contained in the section Alternative Performance Measures.
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RECLASSIFIED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Net cash flows from operating activities 445 637
Net cash flows from investing activities (241) (106)
Net cash flows from financing activities (272) (330)
Net cash flows for the period (68) 201
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 758 565
Effects of currency translation difference on opening cash and cash equivalents (4) (8)
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 686 758
The Reclassified consolidated statement of cash flows shows a positive Net cash flow for the period of euro
68 million (euro 201 million in 2023) due to a cash flow generated by operating activities of euro 445 mil-
lion (euro 637 million in 2023), which reflects the dynamics of working capital, investments for the period
(including the acquisition of the Remazel group) net of disposals, which instead resulted in a net absorption
of resources amounting to euro 241 million (euro 106 million in 2023), and financing activities for the year,
which absorbed resources of euro 272 million, in particular due to reduced use of loans and increased re-
payments for existing credit facilities compared to 2023, partially offset by the effect of the capital increase
(euro 387 million).
ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS
The following table presents additional economic and financial indicators used by the Group’s management
to monitor the performance of its main business indicators in the periods considered. The following table
shows the trend in the main profitability ratios and the strength and efficiency of the capital structure in
terms of the relative importance of sources of funding between net debt and equity for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.
31.12.2024 31.12.2023
ROI* 10.2% 5.5%
ROE* 4.3% -10.4%
Total financial debt**/Total Equity 3.0 7.1
Net financial position**/EBITDA! 285 5.7
Net financial position** net of extraordinary items***/EBITDA! 3.3 5.7
Net financial position**/Total Equity 1.5 5.2
* See the definition contained in the section Alternative Performance Measures.
** The Net financial position has been changed, bringing it into line with that defined by ESMA, resulting in a restatement of the
corresponding comparative figures.
*** The leverage ratio (Net Financial Position/EBITDA) is 3.3x, excluding the effect of the capital increase.
1 This figure does not include Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses. See the definition contained in the section Al-
ternative Performance Measures.
The trend in ROl and ROE, compared to 2024, reflects the improvement in Operating Income and the Net
Profit/(Loss) at 31 December 2024, while Net Invested Capital is down from 2023 values, as discussed in
the section on the Reclassified consolidated statement of financial position.
The indicators of the strength and efficiency of the capital structure reflect the decrease, compared to the
previous year, in both Total financial debt and Net financial position, due to the effect on the NFP at 31
December 2024 of including the reclassification to current portion of a financial receivable from a shipowner
and the temporary benefit of the capital increase (euro 387 million). Net of this last component, the leverage
ratio (Net financial position/EBITDA) is 3.3x, an improvement on the guidance of 4.5-5.0x provided in No-
vember 2024 and significantly lower than the Business Plan forecasts for the end of 2024 (6.0x - 7.0x) and
2023 (5.7x). From an economic point of view, the significant improvement in EBITDA (+28%) compared to
the final balance as at 31 December 2023 should be noted, as commented on in the Reclassified Consoli-
dated Income Statement section.
60
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Operational Review by Segment

Shipbuilding

The Shipbuilding segment is engaged in the design and construction of vessels for the cruise ships and naval vessels
business areas. Production is carried out at the Group’s shipyards in Italy, Europe and the United States.

(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Revenue and income* 5,990 6,129
EBITDAY* 396 367
EBITDA margin*** 6.6% 6.0%
Order intake* 13,194 4,148
Order book* 36,515 28,471
Order backlog* 26,497 18,908
Investments 160 162
Ships delivered numbex 10 11

Revenue and income

62

* Before adjustments between operating segments.

** Ratio between segment EBITDA and Revenue and income.

1 This figure does not include Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses. See the definition contained in the section Al-
ternative Performance Measures.

Shipbuilding segment revenue of euro 5,990 million decreased by 2.3% compared to 2023, and relates to euro
3,913 million for the cruise ships business area (euro 4,014 million as at 31 December 2023) and euro 2,015
million for the naval vessels business area (euro 2,060 million as at 31 December 2023). The remaining balance
of euro 62 million relates to the portion generated by the Ship Interiors business area with third-party clients (euro
55 million as at 31 December 2023). The cruise ships business and naval vessels for defence contribute 44%
and 23% respectively (48% and 25% as at 31 December 2023) of total consolidated revenue.

The cruise ship business area ended 2024 with revenue down 2.5% compared to the previous year, in line with
forecasts. The second half of the year, in line with expectations and production plans, saw a significant increase
in volumes, particularly in the last quarter, due to the development of the large backlog, with 2 deliveries made
in the second half of 2024 and a further 2 in the first quarter of 2025.

Revenues in the naval vessels business area decreased by 2.2% compared to 2023, mainly due to the timing of
the contract for the sale of 2 PPA vessels to the Indonesian Ministry of Defence, which was expected in 2024 but
formally came into effect in early 2025. This effect is partly offset by the increase in production volumes realized
in the last quarter of the year.

1
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EBITDA

Order intake

Capital expenditure

Production

EBITDA of the segment as at 31 December 2024 amounted to euro 396 million, up compared to 2023 (euro 367
million). At 6.6%, the EBITDA margin realized in the financial year was higher than that achieved as at 31 De-
cember 2023 (EBITDA margin 6.0%). Despite the slight reduction in volumes compared to the previous period,
this marginality confirmed the positive effects of the programs implemented to improve operational efficiency in
line with the Business Plan.

Orders in the Shipbuilding segment, amounting to euro 13,194 million, mainly relate to:

e 4 cruise ships for the Oceania Cruises brand and 2 ships for the Regent Seven Seas Cruises brand of the
group Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd.;

e 3 cruise ships for the Carnival Cruise Line brand, the largest so far ordered from Fincantieri and in Italy at

around 230,000 tonnes;

2 FREMM EVO units and the fourth OPV (Offshore Patrol Vessel) for the Italian Navy;

the fifth and sixth frigates of the Constellation FFG(X) program for the US Navy;

the fourth submarine in the U212NFS (Near Future Submarine) program for the Italian Navy;

a small vessel for the US Government.

Investments in Property, plant and equipment mainly related to:

e the start of preparatory activities for the adjustment of production capacity at the Monfalcone shipyard, in
terms of operating areas and infrastructure, to cater for the expected development of work on the orders
acquired during the year;

e the general process of continuous modernization and gradual replacement of poorly performing or obsolete
assets with more advanced and efficient technological solutions in line with new operating requirements and
the highest sustainability criteria;

e initiatives to research and implement safety levels beyond the legal requirements;

e specific initiatives for energy efficiency in production infrastructure, equipment and buildings, with the
possibility of monitoring, managing and thus reducing environmental impact at the Group level.

The number of ships delivered in 2024 is analysed as follows:

(number) Deliveries
Cruise ships 4
Defence 6

The ships delivered were:

e “Sun Princess”, the first of the new LNG (liquefied natural gas) class for the shipowner Princess Cruises, a
Carnival group brand, at the Monfalcone shipyard;

e “Queen Anne” for the shipowner Cunard, a Carnival group brand, at the Marghera shipyard;

e  “Explora Il”, the second of four vessels for Explora Journeys, the luxury cruise brand of the MSC group, at

the Sestri shipyard;

e “Viking Vela”, the eleventh vessel of the cruise class for the shipowner Viking, at the Ancona shipyard;

) “Trieste”, the LHD3* transport and landing vessel, and “Giovanni delle Bande Nere”, the fourth PPA3® for the
Italian Navy, at the Muggiano shipyard;

e “Al Fulk”, the LPD unit®® for the Qatari Ministry of Defence, at the Muggiano shipyard;

e “USS Nantucket” and “USS Beloit” as part of the LCS program?®’, commissioned by the US Navy, at the
Marinette (Wisconsin) shipyard;

e an LNG bunker barge for client Crowley Maritime Corporation at the Sturgeon Bay (Wisconsin) shipyard.

34 Landing Helicopter Dock

35 Multipurpose Offshore Patrol Vessel
36 Landing Platform Dock

37 Littoral Combat Ship
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Offshore and Specialized Vessels

The Offshore and Specialized Vessels segment includes the design and construction of high-end offshore support Production The number of ships delivered in 2024 is analysed as follows:
vessels, specialized vessels, offshore wind plant vessels as well as its own range of innovative products in the field
of semi-submersible drilling ships and platforms. Fincantieri operates in this segment through the VARD group,
Fincantieri S.p.A. and Fincantieri Oil & Gas S.p.A.

(number) Deliveries
Wind 5
(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 Fishery 1
Other 4
Revenue and income* 1,371 1,070
EBITDAY* 67 52
EBITDA margin®** 4.9% 4.9% In detail:
. . e 3 SOVs for customers REM Wind AS, Norwind Offshore AS and North Star Renewables at the Vung Tau
Order intake 1,555 1,801 shipyard (Vietnam);
Order book* 3,381 2,715 e 2 CSOV for customer Norwind Offshore AS at the Brattvag shipyard (Norway);
fishery unit for Deutsche Fischfang-Union GmbH & Co. KG. at the Brattvag shipyard (Norway);
backlog* 2192 1.86 ° a y g g py: y);
Order backlog 19 866 e “KV Hopen”, the third vessel for the Norwegian Coast Guard at the Langsten shipyard (Norway);
Investments 40 24 e acable-laying vessel for customer NCT Offshore at the Langsten shipyard (Norway);
Ships delivered number 10 15 e aremotely controlled robotic unit and a Multi Purpose Offshore Vessel for Ocean Infinity Group Limited at

the Vung Tau shipyard (Vietnam).

* Before adjustments between operating segments.

** Ratio between segment EBITDA and Revenue and income.

1 This figure does not include Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses. See the definition contained in the section Al-
ternative Performance Measures.

Revenue and income The revenue for the Offshore and Specialized vessels segment recorded as of 31 December 2024 amounted to euro
1,371 million, an increase of over 28% compared to the previous year. The improvement in revenue reflects the
Group's excellent positioning in a market characterized by strong demand, especially with regard to offshore wind
support vessels.

EBITDA EBITDA as of 31 December 2024 was positive at euro 67 million (euro 52 million as of 31 December 2023),
an increase of 28% compared to 2023, in line with the increase in revenue. The EBITDA margin, which stood
at 4.9%, in line with 2023, confirms the consolidation of the expected levels of marginality in line with the
evolution of the core market.

Gli ordini In 2024, order intake in the Offshore and Specialized vessels segment amounted to euro 1,555 million and
mainly concerned:
e 8 CSOVs: 2 for Windward Offshore, 2 for Dong Fang Offshore, 2 for Navigare Capital Partners, 1 for Cyan
Renewables and 1 for REM Offshore;

e 2 OECVs® for Island Offshore;
e 1 ECV* for Wind Energy Construction;
. 5 Walk-to-work units for an international client;
. 1 fishery unit for Havbryn AS.
Capital expenditure Capital expenditure in 2024 mainly relates to:

e the completion, in the Vietnamese Vung Tau shipyard, of the site expansion program aimed at increasing
production capacity to strengthen the company’s leadership position in the construction of SOVs*!;

e work on facilities to maintain the efficiency and safety of the production plants in order to ensure full busi-
ness operation cross the entire production network including, in addition to the aforementioned Vietnamese
shipyard, the shipyards in Norway and Romania.

38 Commissioning Service Operation Vessel
39 Ocean Energy Construction Vessel

40 Energy Construction Vessel

41 Service Operation Vessel
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Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure
The Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure segment includes the following business areas: Electronics and Digi-
tal Products Cluster*?, Mechanical Systems and Components Cluster*® and Infrastructure Cluster. These activities (euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023
are carried out by Fincantieri S.p.A. and by its Italian and foreign subsidiaries. restated reported
) o o o o ELECTRONICS AND DIGITAL PRODUCTS CLUSTER
It should be noted that, following a reorganization at the beginning of the year within the segment, the activities - -
of the Vard Electro group, included in the Mechanical Systems and Components Cluster until 31 December 2023, Revenue and income 431 351 180
were reallocated to the Electronics and Digital Products Cluster. Comparative figures as at 31 December 2023 to other Group segments 301 221 67
have been appropriately reclassified and are shown below as restated values. EBITDA* 19 9 0
EBITDA margin *** 4.4% 2.6% -0.5%
L 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 Order intake* 228 233 180
(euro/million)
restated reported Order book* 478 447 358
SEGMENT TOTAL Order backlog* 311 317 278
Revenue and income* 1,498 1,100 1,100 Investments 7 10 8
EBITDAY* 103 24 24
EBITDA margin *** 6.9% 2.2% 2.2%
Order intake* 1,389 1,050 1,050 Ceuro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023
restated reported
Order book* 4,898 4,338 4,338
MECHANICAL SYSTEMS AND COMPONENTS CLUSTER
Order backlog* 3,001 2,688 2,688 . ¢ CAL SYS S compo S CLUS
Investments o8 35 35 Revenue and income 384 255 426
to other Group segments 191 143 298
EBITDAY* 52 26 36
EBITDA margin *** 13.5% 10.1% 8.3%
Order intake* 530 259 313
Order book* 1,039 734 823
Order backlog* 553 261 300
Investments 19 21 23
s 31.12.2024 31.12.2023 31.12.2023
(euro/million)
restated reported
INFRASTRUCTURE CLUSTER
Revenue and income* 684 495 495
to other Group segments 11 17 17
EBITDAY* 34 (11) (11)
EBITDA margin *** 5.0% -2.2% -2.2%
Order intake* 629 558 558
Order book* 3,377 3,158 3,158
Order backlog* 2,132 2,111 2,111
Investments 2 4 4

66

42 At 31 December 2023 named Electronics Cluster.
43 At 31 December 2023 named Mechatronics Cluster

* Before adjustments between operating segments.
** Ratio between segment EBITDA and Revenue and income.

1 This figure does not include Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses. See the definition contained in the section Al-

ternative Performance Measures.
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Revenue and income

EBITDA

Order intake

Capital expenditure
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Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure segment revenue as at 31 December 2024 amounted to euro 1,498
million, up 36.2% compared to 2023 thanks to the positive contribution of all Clusters included in the segment,
fully in line with the forecast for 2024.

The increase in revenue in the Mechanical Systems and Components Cluster is 50.5% and includes the contri-
bution of the Remazel group, consolidated from 20244, amounting to euro 93 million, net of which the increase
remains positive at 14.0%.

The Electronics and Digital Products Cluster recorded revenue growth of 22.6%, mainly due to the volumes
developed by the subsidiary Vard Electro during the year in support of the Group's shipbuilding activities in the
offshore wind and cruise sectors.

The Infrastructure Cluster also closed the year with an increase in revenues (+38.3%) due to the progress of the
main projects underway, in particular some hospital construction contracts developed by the subsidiary FINSO,
the contract for the construction of the Genoa breakwater, as part of the consortium led by the Webuild group,
and the contract for the construction of the Miami Terminal, delivered at the start of 2025.

The EBITDA for the segment as at 31 December 2024 was a positive euro 103 million, with the EBITDA margin
rising to 6.9%, a substantial increase over the previous period (2.2% as at 31 December 2023). The improve-
ment is due to the positive results achieved by all Clusters and also benefits from the contribution of the Remazel
group, amounting to approximately euro 18 million (19.0% in terms of marginality), without which the margina-
lity would still be fully in line with the forecasts for 2024 (approximately 6%).

Order intake for the Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure segment amounted to euro 1,389 million in 2024

and for the business areas mostly comprises:

e Electronics and Digital Products Cluster: in the Digital Solutions and Defence Systems area, contracts with
Leonardo, AICOX and GCE are of particular note. In Maritime Systems, contracts for the supply of the Navy
Platform for three new Patrol Vessels, Cruise Platform for Four Seasons and Yacht Platform for Benetti
should be highlighted. Simulation systems for training were also ordered by the Merchant Navy Academies
in Genoa and Venice. In the Unmanned Systems area, the European Space Agency has ordered the study
of an autonomous system to recover the components of next-generation rockets. Finally, work continues
on the Lifecycle Management and Cybersecurity Lines - the latter extended to FREMM and PPA shipboard
systems - with consultancy and specialized engineering research in the Maritime field and in the field of
Electromagnetism;

e Mechanical Systems and Components Cluster: activities linked to the ITER project continue, focusing on
the construction of a prototype nuclear reactor and the integration of electric propulsion on Navigazione
Laghi boats and ferries for the Italian lakes. Activities also began in connection with the development of
cold ironing*® in the ports of Civitavecchia and Fusina (Venice), where the Group won the tender for the
electrification of the docks within two consortia. Contracts were signed in the year for orders for stabilizer
systems in Chile and Finland and for turbo-generators in Morocco, France and lItaly. In addition, agreements
were signed for a feasibility study on electric generation systems on barges, for after-sales services and for
the supply of spare parts on steam turbines and ship machinery. Finally, after-sales services and spare parts
on engines for the Italian and French navies continue.

e Infrastructure Cluster: hauling, relocation and demolition of the existing superstructure and dam body at the
Port of Genoa; construction of the offshore platform at the Port of Venice (Montesyndial Container Terminal);
works for the construction of the arch bridge over the Mures river in Romania; renovation and extension with
seismic adaptation of Mugello hospital; construction works for Lot 1 from Alghero to Olmedo S.S. 291 'Della
Nurra' and construction works for three steel bridges in Romania.

Capital expenditure in 2024 mainly relates to:

e the continuation of Isotta Fraschini Motori's investments in the IFuture project, launched in 2020 with the
aim of studying innovative solutions for the improvement and expansion of its product portfolio; this capital
expenditure was accompanied by the launch of initiatives related to the 'IFuture Hydrogen' program;

e work on facilities to maintain the efficiency and safety of production plants in order to ensure the continuity
of business operations.

44 From 15 February 2024, date of acquisition.
45 Cold ironing is a proposed solution to reduce greenhouse emissions from ships at berth.
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Other activities

Other activities primarily refer to the costs incurred by Corporate headquarters for directing, controlling and coor-
dinating the business that are not allocated to other operating segments.

(euro/million) 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Revenue and income 2 4
EBITDA! (57) (46)
EBITDA margin n.a. n.a.
Investments 35 37

Capital expenditure

n.a. not applicable
1 See the definition contained in the section Alternative Performance Measures.

The main initiatives relate to capital expenditure on:

e strengthening of the Group's digital transformation process mainly focused on: (i) expanding the scope of
intervention within the production processes, extending solutions to the various work phases in line with the
strategic guidelines defined in the Business Plan and (ii) the use of advanced analysis tools;

e initiatives to further increase efficiency and safety at work through the introduction of advanced robotics so-
lutions and remote control of shipyard operating processes; in this area, the most important initiatives con-
cern: (i) the installation of new automated production lines based on Industry 4.0 principles, which envisage
the use of sensors on the main machinery for the collection and subsequent processing of asset performance
data; (ii) the development of innovative robotic welding solutions (iii) the introduction of high-tech Augmen-
ted Reality and generative artificial intelligence tools to support the production process and engineering;

e the completion of the project to upgrade the IT environment through the implementation of a high-tech
multi-cloud infrastructure;

e  the development of information systems to: (i) support the Group's growing activities with particular refe-
rence to the upgrade of management systems and the standardization of management platforms among the
main subsidiaries and (ii) optimize process management with a focus on production;

e the continuous implementation of new cyber security tools.

As in previous years, capital expenditure in renewing the Group’s network infrastructure and hardware continued.
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Risk Management

ICRMS structure

Fincantieri’s Internal Control and Risk Management System (ICRMS) consists of a set of tools, organizational
structures, and corporate procedures which seek to contribute - through a process of identification, assessment,
management and monitoring of the main risks - to a sound and correct management of the Company, in a way that
is consistent with the predetermined objectives defined by the Board of Directors.

This system, defined according to leading international practices, is based on the three traditional levels of control:

. 1st level: the operational departments identify and assess risks and implement specific actions to manage
them;

e 2nd level: the functions in charge of risk management define risk management methods and tools, and con-
duct monitoring activities;

e 3rd level: the Internal Audit function provides independent assessments of the entire system.

Fincantieri has adopted a Risk Management Policy that sets out the general principles it intends to pursue in order
to implement the guidelines of the ICRMS adopted by the Board of Directors, that define the methods by which the
main risks affecting the Parent Company and its subsidiaries are identified, measured, managed and monitored.

The risk management model was redefined in 2023 to ensure greater oversight and impro-
ve the effectiveness of the Internal Control And Risk Management System (ICRMS), with the aim of:

(i)  redefining the structure and boundary of responsibility of the roles within the ICRMS, ensuring a review
and integration of segregation of duties;

(i) strengthening and centralizing the job order risk management system;

(iii) providing for the establishment of a committee dedicated to the coordination and support of the fun-
ctions involved in the ICRMS.

Board of Statutory Auditors

Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors

Supervisory Body

Control and Risk
Committee

Chairman*

Level |

Level 11

Level 11

Level 11l

Compliance Functions
Group Compliance
Corporate Legal Affairs

Officer in Charge

Risk Officer

Anti-corruption and 231

Internal Audit
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DPO
Process Owner
ICRMS Committee ICRMS Committee
*Director in Charge of the ICRMS.
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Risk Management Model
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In order to implement the strategic guidelines, Fincantieri has adopted an integrated ERM-PRM (Enterprise Risk
Management - Project Risk Management) risk management model, in accordance with the principles contained in
the Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies, which provides for the identification, assessment and mana-
gement of risk events through a continuous, recurring and widespread process within the organization, minimizing
impacts and enhancing opportunities for growth and development.

In 2023, the Company launched a major project to review the Group’s risk management model with the objective
of developing and adopting an integrated “ERM (Enterprise Risk Management) - PRM (Project Risk Management)”
model. The new model aims to capture the interconnections between all business risks, both ‘Enterprise’ and
‘Project’, allowing for a more comprehensive and holistic view of risk management, improving the organization’s
resilience and appropriately addressing future challenges. The constituent elements of the new model already im-
plemented in 2023 represent the first important step along an evolutionary path of integration and improvement in
the identification, assessment and management of the Group’s risks.

The purpose of the system is to identify and manage the main risk events using a business-oriented approach, with
a focus on integrating planning, strategic management and business operational level.

This integration of project risks and Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) is facilitated with the use of specific Key
Risk Indicators (KRIs). These indicators represent the progress of contracts over the project life cycle in relation to
expected performance, acting as an information link to ERM. This also allows contracts to be monitored at Group
level, aligning project-specific objectives with Fincantieri’s broader and more general objectives.

The main new elements include:
(i)  the definition of a Macro Risk Rating model developed within PRM to support Bid/No Bid decisions and
to prioritize the level of Risk/Opportunity monitoring in the Prospect, Proposal and Execution stages;
(ii) the development of the Project Advanced Risk Measurement, a key approach of the PRM assessment
model, which allows the Net Contract Risk profile and the overall portfolio risk profile (at segment/business
area and group level) to be monitored over time.
(iii) the redefinition of the ERM risk catalogue, structured over several levels and containing specific risk
events that are closely related to the different segments and business areas in which the Group operates;
(iv) the revised structure of the risk management model with a more precise identification of the Risk Owners;
(v) the introduction of trend indicators (KRIs), which can have a direct impact on risk occurrence;
(vi) the adoption of a quantitative assessment system for risks that have a predominantly economic-financial
and GHG impact;
(vii) the introduction of probabilistic quantitative approaches that enable the potential impacts of occurrences
on the key indicators of the business plan, as well as on the budgets defined for each of the organizations
within the Group, to be precisely defined.

The risk management process is carried out using a continuous improvement approach involving different organiza-
tional structures, with different roles and responsibilities.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors ensures that the ICRMS is an integral part of the Group’s business ethic
and operations, activating to this end appropriate information, communications and training processes as well as
disciplinary and remuneration systems which incentivize the proper management of risks and discourage conduct
that is contrary to the principles dictated by those processes. The Chairman also verifies that the ICRMS is capable
of reacting promptly to significantly risky situations and facilitates the identification and prompt implementation of
corrective actions.

The Internal Control and Risk Management System Committee (the ‘ICRMS Committee’) has the task of supporting
the company functions involved in the ICRMS, optimizing their respective processes and coordination with the
Group’s organizational structure, in line with the Company'’s strategic objectives. The ICRMS Committee meets every
quarter and is coordinated by the Risk Officer, who sets the agenda in consultation with the Legal and Corporate
Affairs Department. The ICRMS Committee is comprised of the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Head of
Internal Auditing, the Risk Officer, the Head of the Anti-Corruption and Model 231 Function, the General Counsel,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Financial Reporting Officer and the Head of the Human Resources and Real Estate
Department.

The Risk Officer is responsible for guaranteeing that a risk management system is in place, ensuring the monitoring
of business and contract risks at Group level in coordination with the subsidiaries and individual divisions, providing
support to the Chairman for the supervision and coordination of the ICRMS, particularly with reference to Enterprise
Risk Management.

The Risk Officer is not in charge of managing specific risks, which is the responsibility of management, but is re-
sponsible for implementing an integrated risk management process. The Risk Officer provides high-level support in
the dissemination of risk culture.

Management is responsible for implementing ERM within the corporate processes under its remit, identifying, as-
sessing and managing risks that may have an impact on the defined objectives.
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The Risk Management Process

Risk management is a continuous and recurring process, spread throughout the organization, that involves the
systematic and repeated identification, assessment, treatment and monitoring of risks.

Continuous monitoring of the ERM process and risks

®

& 1

Identification
of the risks

Risk assessment

Risk response Monitoring Reporting

Identification

The identification of possible existing risks, in relation to the defined strategic objectives, is carried out on an
ongoing basis in order to identify and promptly manage potential threats or opportunities that the Group may face
in the pursuit of its activities.

The Group’s risk universe has several levels:

(i) Perspective

(ii)  Risk category

(iii) Level I and Il sub-category
(iv) Risk event

In the risk identification process, all factors that could undermine the Group’s values and strategic objectives are
considered, thanks to an integrated view of risks with an impact on ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance)
factors. In total, more than 200 risk events were identified (66% with an ESG impact).
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Operational
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®{ Facility Management
[s] Health & Safety

Logistic & Warehouse
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Partnering (JVs and strate-
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®{ Product Development
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Projects

Supply Chain
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Foreign Exchange
Interest rates
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& Taxation

Human Capital

Staff attraction
and retention

Human Resources Management

Performance management

Protection of equal opportunities
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The table below lists the categories with a brief description of the risk areas they cover.

Category Definition

Strategic
perspective

Risks related to events that could threaten the company’s current
Strategic competitive position in its core markets and the achievement of the
objectives set.

Business
perspective

Risks relating to the performance of company activities and proces-
ses, in the various areas of operations, that could affect the efficient

Operational and effective implementation of the company business model and the
achievement of the Group’s operational and strategic objectives, inclu-
ding sustainability issues.

Risks related to the procurement, management and allocation of fi-
nancial resources, with reference both to treasury and finance activi-
ties and to the financial aspects of current operations. This includes
liquidity, credit, market and tax risks.

Financial

Risks related to the management of technological infrastructure, ap-
Technology plications and the data managed within them and to their availability
and security.

Risks relating to the management of disputes, resulting from brea-
ches of regulations, unlawful conduct, and the use of non-compliant
negotiating schemes, which may entail higher administrative, tax and
criminal charges or penalties.

Legal

Organizational
perspective and

processes

. Risks related to Human Resources management policies, including
Human Capital . . o
retention, skills development, loyalty and equal opportunities issues.

Risks associated with the exercise of authority, management and con-
Governance S

trol (e.g. processes and responsibilities, management systems).

Risks inherent in the management of data and information, both in
Management Information terms of collection and processing (e.g. financial information) and pro-
tection (e.g. privacy).

Risks of non-compliance with laws, regulations, self-regulatory stan-
dards or codes of conduct. This category includes risks of corruption,
fraud and/or illegal activities as well as risks related to the protection
of human rights.

Compliance & Integrity

External perspective

Risks, arising from the external context in which the Group opera-
tes (e.g. competition, general economic and industry trends, climate
change, political instability, stakeholder expectations, etc.), which
may negatively affect strategic choices and business organization.

External Risk

76

The Risk Officer periodically updates the Risk Management Model, which is based on different levels of respon-
sibility and defines who is Responsible, Accountable, Consulted and Informed (according to the well-known RACI
approach) at each stage of the risk assessment and risk management process. This approach ensures that all
stakeholders are involved in the decision-making process and that relevant information is collected and communi-
cated effectively. Clear responsibilities reduce the possibility of errors or omissions in risk assessment and enable
the Group to make informed decisions to protect its interests.

1
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Assessment

The risks identified are assessed using qualitative and quantitative tools, taking into consideration the probability of
occurrence over the plan horizon and the magnitude of their impact.

During 2024, Fincantieri enhanced its ERM-PRM risk management process by developing a dedicated tool with the
aim of making the assessment phase increasingly digitalized and integrated between the different company functions.

In order to support the Risk Owners and make the assessment of the probability of occurrence of risk events more
objective, the assessment model includes the use of Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) that provide key information about
the trend in or potential escalation of a specific risk. Evolving markets, changing rules and regulations, internal
reorganizations and boundary changes are just some of the factors that can influence the probability of a given risk
event occurring.

For impact assessment, the model adopts the key impact approach, which has the advantage of directing risk re-
sponse actions towards reducing the most significant impacts, identifying the best strategies to ensure company
continuity.

The Model provides for 14 types of impact:

Strategic

Reputational

Economic and financial

Governance

Legal

Tax

Human capital

Intellectual capital

Environmental

Health and Safety

Social (community)

Security (physical, information and personal)

Protection of Physical Assets

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
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Each type of impact is broken down on the assessment scale by means of a tree model that considers four spe-
cific criteria to highlight correlations between impacts of different natures and to rank the severity of the impact.

Assessment scales are used to make the risks comparable. These are defined by the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, with the support of the Risk Officer, based on the Risk Appetite and Risk Tolerance thresholds approved
by the Board of Directors.

The assessment of each risk is carried out at Inherent level (i.e., the theoretical risk assumed in achieving the
objectives) and at Actual Residual level (i.e., the risk that remains following the establishment of internal control
procedures implemented to mitigate the probability and impact related to the occurrence of the risk event) and,
as part of the assessment, each Risk Owner identifies the main measures and controls in place and assesses their
relative level of adequacy.

Each control is evaluated according to the principles of intrinsic effectiveness (a preventive control is more ef-
fective than an ex-post control) and actual effectiveness.

The combination of probability of occurrence and impact determines the risk rating, which enables the compa-
rison of the risks under assessment and the representation of Group’s overall exposure, comparing it with the
defined thresholds, in order to identify the priorities for action for the subsequent risk response strategies.

Based on the risk assessment, the risk management strategy is defined (e.g. Mitigation, Transfer, etc.), which
depends on the rating of the risk exposure with respect to the thresholds.

For risks within their purview, the Risk Owner is responsible for identifying response plans for risks identified as
critical and high and for submitting them, with the support of and through the Risk Officer, to the Chairman of
the Board of Directors.

In this phase, if the need arises, the Risk Owner is asked to identify and plan specific prevention/mitigation
initiatives in addition to those already in place, in order to bring risks back to a level considered acceptable and
consequently keep the risk profile within the set limits.

The treatment actions identified and planned may act on the probability of occurrence, the magnitude of impact,
or both, determining the expected residual risk rating.

The internal and external context is subject to possible changes and it is therefore necessary to regularly monitor
the risk portfolio in order to assess its dynamics and verify the operational effectiveness of the defined response
strategies. Risk monitoring activities and their management is carried out at least once a year, by repeating the
steps described above, and, during the year, with specific verification and/or analysis activities on:

e the existence, traceability and risk mitigation capacity of the controls identified as in place during the risk
assessment;

e  the additional controls to be implemented and their implementation status;

e any changes in the risk profile following macro changes in the scenario;

e the most significant risks (e.g., cause analysis, impact analysis, risk management and monitoring system).

The Risk Officer, having completed the assessment and result consolidation process, prepares specific reports
for the various actors of the ICRMS. The results of the ERM process are used:

° by the ICRMS actors to provide the necessary assurance to the Corporate Bodies regarding the identification
of the main business risks, as well as the reasonable certainty that they are managed in accordance with the
limits defined for value creation;

° by the Board of Directors when drawing up the Report on Corporate Governance and ownership structure
providing information on the subject;

° by Internal Audit as information elements for the preparation of specific risk-based audit plans.
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Exposure to Group risks

Brand reputation

Management methods
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The risks identified and included in the Risk Universe have been assessed in terms of their probability and impact
by Fincantieri’s Middle and Top Management. On the basis of the assessment, the most relevant risks or those
emerging in relation to the strategic objectives and relevant external context have been identified and analysed
in detail, classified below by perspective/category/subcategory and accompanied by information on the relative
potential impacts and the main existing controls.

Strategic perspective - Strategic

%

Risk that damage to the brand image might expose the Group to loss of customer, profits and competitive advan-
tage. This risk may, for example, arise due to activities/behaviour that do not protect the interests of stakeholders
(e.g. customers, the community), either by internal members of the organization or by external parties with whom
the Company has business dealings. It includes the risk arising from the dissemination of false and misleading
information through digital media (e.g. Al and deep fakes).

Fincantieri adopts an integrated communication strategy in line with the Group’s mission and values, thanks to a
process of direction and control of communication initiatives (media, social channels, exhibitions and events) at
a worldwide level, aimed at strengthening brand reputation and increasing brand awareness. The use of dedicated
internal and external platforms enables constant monitoring of communication levers, mitigating their potential
negative effect on perception and the image of the Group. Special attention is paid to the monitoring of digital
communication channels (online media, social channels, web and deep web), also thanks to automatic control
tools developed by the Group company E-Phors, which specialises in providing cyber security services and pro-
ducts. Dialogue with external stakeholders is continuous and transparent.

1
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Product Development

Management methods

Business Interruption

Management methods

Business perspective - Operational

o

Risk that the Group does not monitor and/or invest in technological developments for products/services with a
consequent adverse impact on competitiveness, on leadership in complex high-potential markets and on the
development of more efficient and sustainable solutions that include systems with low emissions of greenhouse
gases or other pollutants and that are energy efficient. This also includes the risk associated with technological
transition, which, if poorly designed and executed, can lead to long lead times, high costs, operational inefficien-
cies and low product/process quality.

The Group annually defines an innovation plan and constantly monitors technological trends in its core markets,
through scouting activities and partnerships with the main players in innovation, such as universities, research
centres, associations, etc. Furthermore, through participation in European industrial organizations, it helps iden-
tify European priorities, including research and innovation funding opportunities.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - "S4 - Consumers and end-users"

& T

Risk that the unavailability of strategic assets will interfere with the Group’s ability to continue its operations (e.g.
production stoppages, including along the supply chain), resulting in increased costs, lost profits and jeopardizing
the very survival of the Group. This risk may arise due to exogenous factors (e.g. climate change, pandemics,
cyber attacks, supply chain disruption, crime or vandalism) or endogenous factors (e.g. plant breakdown).

In order to contain the risk related to business interruptions due to unplanned shutdowns of production facilities,
specific maintenance procedures are put in place, as well as quality control audits. Company assets, including
ICT infrastructure, are protected by adequate insurance coverage, which includes damage resulting from adverse
weather events. Production sites apply specific protocols and procedures for the implementation of preventive
measures according to expected critical scenarios and promote training activities for emergency workers (firefi-
ghting, first aid, etc.). Based on the risk scenarios identified in the Emergency Plan, emergency drills are carried
out regularly to test their correct operation. The Physical Security Plan is drawn up with RINA in accordance
with the ISPS guidelines (International Ship and Port Facility Security Code). The Directors/Managers of the
Production Units (Head Offices and Plants) have the decision-making and spending powers for the necessary
and urgent measures required to safeguard the health and physical safety of workers and the protection of the
environment, providing with absolute timeliness and in full autonomy for the planning, organization, management
and control of all the activities aimed at implementing and fulfilling the relevant legal provisions. Supply chain di-
sruption risk is mitigated by activating Crisis Committees (CMTs) set up when exceptional events occur and throu-
gh periodic scouting activities aimed at identifying and evaluating new potential and alternative suppliers. The
monitoring of production capacity and programme adherence is ensured by means of information exchanges with
the units responsible for expediting activities, focusing on strategic items. The proper flow of information to and
communication with the trade unions and the activation of the Joint Commissions under the 2022 supplementary
agreement allow production stoppages due to strikes by own and third-party personnel to be prevented or reduced.

Chapter "Investment plan"

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “El - Climate Change”
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Management methods

Environmental
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space and workforce, prevents the Company from meeting market demand, achieving optimal levels of efficiency
(industrial productivity) and profitability.

Production complexity is managed at different levels and in an integrated and cross-functional manner. Periodic
cross-functional committees analyse workloads and identify possible critical areas for action (resources, structu-
ral investments, logistical solutions) based on employment plans. Particular attention is paid to monitoring and
strengthening the supply chain, both in terms of capacity (e.g.: lack of resources) and performance, through
continuous and structured scouting activities and the definition of a joint growth path with satellite businesses to
support their growth, increase the availability of resources, reduce turnover and improve capabilities.

Chapter "Investment plan"

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “S2 - lWlorkers in the value chain”

&

Risk that the Group, in carrying out its production activities, may cause damage to environmental matrices (water,
land, air) with consequent harm to the territory and the community in both the short and medium/long term. This
risk may arise due to a lack of timely or adequate adaptation of existing and emerging regulations into internal
processes, a flawed system of management, control and mitigation of potential environmental impacts arising from
its activities (e.g. pollution, energy consumption, environmental disaster, damage to biodiversity) or poor training,
information and awareness raising given to individuals.

In order to mitigate the damage related to failure to invest or inadequate investment in environmental protection,
production sites implement the controls required by environmental authorizations (AIA, AUA) and by internal pro-
cedures that regulate the management of environmental impacts in relation to the activities carried out within the
production units and analyses in the workplace and in the external environment of atmospheric emissions, noise
and discharges. In addition, Fincantieri pays particular attention to the proper handling of all phases of waste ma-
nagement and waste classification and disposal. The continuous monitoring of legislative compliance and its timely
adaptation into internal processes are fulfilled through the use of specific software. In order to verify the correct
application of all provisions on the Environment, coordination meetings are in place and the management system
is the subject of periodic internal audits and audits by third parties which include inspecting work areas to verify
compliance with legislation and the adequacy of the systems implemented. Additional control measures have been
adopted to ensure environmental compliance and environmental risk management. For example, the application
of site operating instructions and periodic monitoring of environmental KPIs to identify and correct any deviations
from standards. Continuous improvement programmes have been implemented using dedicated software for waste
management, with spot checks to ensure correct classification and subsequent disposal. With regard to atmospheric
emissions, preventive maintenance on the collection systems and the required monitoring of emissions are carried
out. Similarly, discharges are monitored in line with requirements. For the prevention of adverse effects on soil and
subsoil, containment tanks are used for hazardous materials and emergency plans are in place for dealing with any
possible spills. Periodic drills are also required for the containment of any spills, using appropriate kits. Marine water
protection is also ensured through specific procedures for specific activities (such as bunkering and fluid transfer) as
well as the positioning of floating barriers. Finally, with the aim of raising the awareness of the entire company po-
pulation and strengthening its culture on environmental issues, specific training courses are provided in compliance
with national and European regulations.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - "E2 - Pollution”

Management methods

protection of health and safety in the workplace with consequent damage to its own employees and any third
parties involved in company activities.

The Group constantly monitors legislative and regulatory developments, incorporating updates into its processes
and procedures and verifying their correct implementation through internal and external audits. Software (LEX-
EHS) is used to monitor and regularly update users on regulations issued at the European, national and regional
level. Internal procedures are in place for the identification, assessment and management of risks that could
compromise people's health and safety, including the analysis of accidents/injuries, near misses and "unsafe
conditions, unsafe behaviours and positive feedback" with a view to prevention. Specifically, the detection of
"Unsafe Observations" by the field monitoring carried out by the supervisors is achieved using an IT tool avai-
lable on tablets and smartphones that allows the timely reporting of unsafe conditions and behaviour, as well
as positive feedback. Emergency plans are implemented and periodically tested through field drills involving
different emergency scenarios (for example, extinguishing a fire on board, recovering a person from a confined
space). Particular attention is also paid to the dissemination and strengthening of the culture of prevention and
protection and increasingly responsible individual behaviour, through the necessary training, also using innovative
tools such as gaming, and information on accident prevention and emergency management as well as actions to
raise awareness of compliance with the rules and procedures aimed at internal and external staff, including the
#Safetyonboard initiative and the sharing of Safety Breaks. The production sites and shipbuilding departments
are 1SO 45001 certified. In the area of health, safety and environment, regular meetings are held to review and
promptly resolve any issues.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - "S1 - Own workforce"

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “S2 - Workers in the value chain”
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Risk associated with the medium/long-term planning of production activities, the distribution/balancing of wor-
kloads among the various production sites based on available production capacity (plants, space and workforce)
and product diversification, and the management of resources (internal and third-party personnel, production
facilities, areas).

Scenario analyses make it possible to optimize the distribution of workloads in the short/medium/long term on
the basis of available production capacity and to monitor it over time thanks to the planning of activities, hours
and resources by job, plant and production site and to periodic monitoring of the progress of individual programs
(production, engineering, purchasing) and of the job as a whole. Possible path variants that may occur in relation
to specific contingent situations, linked both to changes in medium/long-term production scenarios (e.g. due to
business opportunities foreseen in the plan being brought forward or business assumptions/cases being elimina-
ted) as well as impacts caused by exogenous elements (e.g. unforeseen events deriving from the execution of in-
frastructure works at our production sites) are promptly managed with the immediate involvement of the relevant
stakeholders and the reworking of simulations and alternative scenarios that allow for the elimination and/or mi-
nimization of potential risk exposure. The aim is to ensure business continuity for the sites involved, minimizing
the impact on internal and satellite activities, and identifying the necessary specific corrective actions. In order to
give substance to the management methods described, a periodic committee with the Operations Directors of the
Departments/Divisions is scheduled and monthly management routines are implemented involving the Strategic
Planning Bodies of the Departments/Divisions involved.

Chapter "Investment plan"
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Management methods
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Focus on
Project Risk Management

&

Risk that the project management activities are inadequate and do not allow continuous and timely monitoring of
the correctness and efficiency of the entire contract development process (engineering, purchasing, production,
customer management), resulting in failure to meet contractual and quality requirements, delays and/or additional
costs with a consequent negative impact on the expected contract margin and Group cash flows.

The Group manages its projects through dedicated structures that control all aspects (contractual, technical/design,
scheduling, economic and qualitative) of the contract life cycle (design, procurement, construction and outfitting).
The identification, assessment and management of project risks is carried out through continuous risk management
processes structured according to the type of business concerned. Contracts with customers are managed by invol-
ving the Corporate Contract and Claim Management department, with the aim of setting up, from the earliest stages
of the project, a strategy to identify opportunities, together with the project and Risk Management team. Contracts
agreed with suppliers are managed using the back-to-back approach, mirroring the contractual clauses in the con-
tract with the customer such as for the application of penalties for delays, errors or negligence attributable to the
supplier. In order to monitor the progress of both individual orders and the order book and to promptly identify any
critical issues and share corrective actions to be taken, various opportunities for analysis and discussion at different
levels are scheduled in accordance with the timetable for accounting closure. In addition, the contracts entered
into with customers provide that, in the event of a “force majeure event” preventing the regular construction of the
project, such as a government order, a pandemic or a war, the company would not be required to pay penalties to
the shipowner for late delivery.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - "S4 - Consumers and end-users"

In the Project Risk Management (PRM) area, Fincantieri has implemented a business-oriented 'Risk Manage-
ment' model to support operating activities, both in the commercial and executive phases. Two key risk indica-
tors have been defined to monitor the contract risk profile: (i) the Macro Risk Rating and (ii) the Project Risk &
Opportunity Ratio.

The Macro Risk Rating indicator represents the Overall Risk Level - Risk Tag - of a business initiative and/or job
order for execution. It is defined at the commercial stage, and remains constant throughout the project life-cycle.
It is calculated on the basis of the most relevant drivers for each division and/or cluster and is defined using 4
levels: R1, R2, R3, R4. Each Division/Cluster has defined the relevant parameters and weights, considering the
most relevant drivers with reference to specific business characteristics. The Risk Officer Function defined for all
entities within the Fincantieri Group (Divisions/Clusters) the new Macro Risk Rating indicator, having defined the
parameters and relative weights.

Contracts are represented in the Group’s overall portfolio net risk profile, according to a weighting logic based on
(i) the Macro Risk Rating associated with the project (ii) the net risk level identified in the Risk Analysis (Project
R&O Ratio) and (iii) the residual value of the project itself compared to the portfolio value. The result will be to
distribute the orders in the Net Risk Chart portfolio into four portfolio levels with increasing risk profiles.
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Risk of not conducting adequate due diligence on potential suppliers, not monitoring their performance over
time and/or not developing solid and long-lasting relationships for medium/long-term business development in
line with current and emerging regulations and the Group’s sustainability principles with consequent economic,
legal and reputational impacts. This risk includes the following aspects: economic and financial soundness,
capacity and concentration of suppliers in core areas, and control over outsourced activities.

When qualifying and requalifying suppliers, the Group puts in place a structured due diligence process aimed
at verifying the following aspects: i. economic and financial soundness; ii. Security and business integrity; iii.
Health & Safety; iv. Environment; v. Product and process certifications in the case of specific supply categories;
vi. Technical and professional suitability. In order to limit the damage associated with inadequate supplier
due diligence, supplier performance is systematically monitored through scorecards, process controls (e.g. wa-
rehouse, production), fact-finding audits and cross-functional visits to suppliers. Management of any problems
and suppliers with an “insufficient” or “critical” Scorecard rating is carried out by the Supplier Observatory
(cross-functional committee) through the formalization and sharing of a recovery or phase-out plan and the sub-
sequent monitoring of the actions taken. Preventive checks are carried out to verify that contracts are concluded
with qualified suppliers and, at the tender stage, technical verification of adherence to the requirements of the
bids received mitigates the risk associated with supplier quality and capacity. The risk associated with a limited
supplier base and dependence on the same is mitigated through periodic direct (e.g. internet, exhibitions, etc.)
and indirect (e-procurement, promoters) scouting activities, aimed at identifying and evaluating new potential
and alternative suppliers, focusing on critical areas related to the production context and the pool of suppliers.
Fincantieri promotes dedicated training and/or information events, fostering the engagement of Procurement
units in sustainability issues and responsible sourcing principles. The “Sustainable Supply Chain” project,
activated in the supplier evaluation system, aims to assess the ESG performance of the Group’s supplier base.
In addition, suppliers are required to submit specific ESG documentation in the pre-contractual phase, to sign
clauses on the regularity of pay, contributions, insurance and tax, as well as the Supplier Code of Ethics, which,
through a specific clause, requires compliance with environmental, social and ethical regulations.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “S2 - lWorkers in the value chain”

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Gi - Business conduct”
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Management methods

Financial Markets

Management methods

Business perspective - Financial

&

Risk that the Group establishes business relations with a counterparty without having carefully assessed the
counterparty’s financial solvency and/or risk that one or more counterparties with which the Company has ongoing
contracts are unable to meet their commitments (one or more customers fail to fulfil their contractual obligations
and/or one or more partners fail to fulfil their contractual obligations) due to financial causes.

During order acquisition, and where deemed necessary, the Group performs checks on the financial stability of
its counterparties, including by obtaining information from leading credit rating agencies, and works constantly
with customers, financial institutions and government bodies to identify sources of funding for payment (e.g.
export finance activated prior to contract execution). The risk of non-collection is also mitigated using trade fi-
nance instruments (parent company guarantees). Periodically, a review of the economic performance of “critical”
customers is carried out with any necessary reassessment of financial receivables in accordance with accounting
standard IFRS 9 (Expected Credit Loss) and a corresponding provision. Financial stability checks are also carried
out on potential suppliers, as part of the qualification process, and potential partners. In order to minimize the
impact on the Group resulting from potential financial crises in joint venture companies, financial instruments,
such as guarantees issued with a non-several pure pro-rata indemnity, are negotiated at the agreement stage with
third parties.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “G1 - Business conduct”

Note 4: “Financial risk management” of the Consolidated Financial Statements

& o

This category includes the risk of having insufficient access to the capital market and the banking system to
support the Group’s operations (or accessing them on particularly onerous terms), also due to the new ESG crite-
ria imposed by some credit institutions, the risk of not being allocated export finance (e.g. SACE), and the risks
associated with capital markets. This includes risks related to risk transfer instruments.

In order to limit its dependence on individual banks and keep conditions calm, the Group diversifies its sources
of funding in terms of duration, counterparty and technical form (e.g. short and medium/long-term committed
credit facilities, commercial papers, uncommitted facilities), negotiating loan agreements that do not include
stringent financial covenants. It continuously monitors the status of export finance granted to shipowners and the
allocation of funds by the Government for the relevant titles for export support (e.g.: Law 295/73 and subsequent
laws concerning funding, CIPE allocations for SACE), maintaining relations with a variety of local and internatio-
nal financial institutions to obtain timely information on any regulatory changes and to ensure stable access to
financial services. Dialogue with the export support ‘system’ to spread awareness of the need to maintain an agile,
quick and efficient export credit mechanism is ongoing. Share performance is continuously monitored and analy-
sed in terms of price and volume, and for unusual market movements the Group engages with sell-side analysts.

Note 4: “Financial risk management” of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Business perspective - Technology

&

Risk that the Group suffers a cyber attack aimed at identity, data and information theft (e.g. confidential/inside
information, sensitive data, bank credentials, etc.), temporary suspension of company services or sabotage of
computer systems, exploitation of the computing power of company computers for criminal purposes, resulting in
reputational damage, loss of turnover, loss of customers and suppliers, sanctions and compensation claims, up
to and including business interruption.

Fincantieri has equipped itself with a set of tools designed to prevent and/or intercept computer attacks, such as
a firewall web application and solution to prevent Distributed Denial-of-Service attacks, a platform for correlating
computer-related events to detect computer attacks and review accesses by system administrators, a notification
system to warn about suspicious emails (phishing) and an awareness campaign for the assessment of malicious
e-mails. To enable a higher degree of security, a threat intelligence service and SOC (Security Operation Centre),
which promptly intercept cyber attacks or attempted attacks, and preventive security checks through vulnerability
assessments and penetration tests are also in place. Any IT incidents are handled through structured processes
that allow for a quick response. The internal documental framework includes various policies, procedures and
processes to mitigate risk, together with the latest specific organizational and technological safeguards aimed at
limiting access to services and information according to the “Least Privilege” and “Defence in Depth” principles
and at protecting, through proactive, preventive and reactive controls, information systems and the information
managed within them. In addition, cyber insurance has been taken out to cover possible IT incidents.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - "S4 - Consumers and end-users"
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Organizational perspective and processes - Human capital
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Risk that the Group is unable to attract and retain highly qualified and competent management personnel with
a high level of diversity in terms of age, nationality and gender, or to enhance the organizational structure with
figures capable of managing the Group’s growth and ensuring business transformation. Disruption of professional
relations between the Company and key figures could jeopardise the achievement of the Company’s operational
and strategic objectives. This includes the risk that the Company may not be able to offer adequate remuneration
compared to the market or adequate benefits or welfare instruments according to employees’ expectations to
ensure their loyalty (e.g. improving the balance between work life and personal needs).

Fincantieri extensively applies an Employer Branding strategy in order to promote internally and externally the
quality of its brand as an employer, together with an Employee Value Proposition strategy aimed at satisfying the
needs and expectations of employees. There is an ongoing employee engagement programme, based on evidence
from the Employee Engagement Survey, to create a work environment that enables resources to fulfil their poten-
tial, perform at their best and be engaged. The Remuneration Policy adopted by the Group ensures the required
levels of competitiveness in the labour market and promotes alignment between the objective of creating sustai-
nable value for the benefit of shareholders, taking into account the interests of other stakeholders relevant to the
Company, and the interests of management. Consequently, the balance and selection of performance parameters
of the short-term and long-term incentive systems are defined in accordance with the priorities set out in the
Business Plan and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. Meritocratic policies and initiatives guide the
effective management of human resources, through remuneration policies and instruments for the recognition of
quantitative and qualitative results, stimulating and highlighting individual contributions. The Company has also
defined a supplementary health care system and a welfare model, also the result of constant dialogue with trade
union associations and the activation of a special Joint Commission.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Si - Own workforce”

A Y Pl SR
ToCRd e s

89




The Fincantieri Group

Group Report on operations

Consolidated Sustainability Statement

Teleborsa: distribution and commercial use strictly prohibited emarket
sdir storage
. L . . R CERTIFIED
Fincantieri Group Consolidated Financial Statt '
°

O

Privacy/Data Protection

Management methods

920

r

Organizational perspective and processes - Management
information

Risk of non-compliance by the Company with the requirements of EC and national legislation on the protection
and processing of personal data, with consequent infringement of the rights and freedoms of the interested par-
ties in relation to the processing of their personal data carried out by and on behalf of the Company and related
application of the relevant sanctions to the economic-financial and reputational detriment of the Company. This
risk may arise as a result of an inadequate Organizational Model for Privacy in terms of roles and responsibilities,
a failure to fulfil obligations in the area of personal data processing, or a lack of integration of privacy processes
and controls with existing Management Systems (e.g. ISO 27001 on data security).

Fincantieri has adopted a structured, cross-functional organizational approach to privacy management (‘Privacy
System’) aimed at identifying, managing and exercising appropriate oversight of risks related to data protection
and confidentiality (internal and external). The Privacy System is designed to assign appropriate roles and re-
sponsibilities within the relevant organizational structure; therefore, controls operate at the level of individual
organizational units. In this context, Fincantieri has appointed a Data Protection Officer (DPO), who also performs
control functions through constant monitoring of regulatory changes, the pronouncements of the Italian Data Pro-
tection Authority and the Guidelines of the European Data Protection Board (EDPB), and monitors compliance by
the Company (Data Controller) with the regulations. In cases where personal data processing is assessed as high
risk (mandatory DPIA), the DPO must be involved in carrying out the DPIA (Data Protection Impact Assessment).
Fincantieri carries out periodic reviews of the processing register and privacy notices, and applies specific proce-
dures for handling any Data Breach.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Si - Own workforce”

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “G1 - Business conduct”
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Organizational perspective and processes - Compliance
& Integrity

Risk of relationships with third parties (customers, suppliers, strategic partners) of dubious integrity, in terms of
ethics and legality in their conduct of business, and that leaders/executives or, more generally, Group employees
may be involved in improper, unethical or fraudulent conduct, compromising the stakeholders' trust, threatening
the company'’s reputation and potentially negatively affecting the company’s financial and operational stability.

The Group implements in advance a strict process of Third Parties Due Diligence which involves the collection
and prompt verification of information and guarantees of professionalism, integrity and suitability of the potential
contracting party.

Furthermore, Fincantieri has its own Code of Conduct, which all those working in the company undertake to pro-
mote and comply with, actively contributing to its implementation and reporting any shortcomings and non-com-
pliance. The Code requires that the Group’s activities be conducted in accordance with the law and international
conventions, and with respect for human rights as enshrined in the United Nations Universal Declaration.

With the aim of ensuring responsible and ethical business management, Fincantieri conducts specific training on
the subject and monitors compliance with the Code of Conduct and the Charter of Sustainability Commitments,
which it shares not only with Fincantieri employees but also with all its business partners.

In addition, Fincantieri requires its suppliers to sign and disseminate the Supplier Code of Ethics, which is based
on three fundamental pillars: i. safeguarding and respect for the environment; ii. labour and human rights; iii.
business ethics and integrity.

Adherence to the Supplier Code of Ethics and compliance with the contents of the Code of Conduct represent a
binding requirement for entering into any business relationship with Fincantieri.

The Group has developed a rigorous qualification process for strategic suppliers, which also provides for the
collection of environmental and social information at the pre-qualification stage (e.g. possession of certifications
for occupational health and safety management systems and environmental and energy management systems,
information on renewable sources, etc.). The Company pays particular attention to the ethical and reputational
aspects of suppliers, also through the implementation of audits and quality visits at supplier production units.
Under the current National Framework Tender Protocol, suppliers are subject to audits and spot-checks or checks
carried out by the Security function, which may lead to the possible revocation of their qualification if any impe-
diment is found. In addition, in accordance with the principles of legality, processes for screening of Sanctions
Lists and monitoring to detect any changes in the risk scenario are implemented throughout the entire duration
of business relations with suppliers. In order to monitor and manage critical issues relating to the supplier base,
there is a special cross-functional committee, the Supplier Observatory, which defines targeted improvement
plans or, if necessary, formalises supplier phase-outs.

In compliance with the principles of trust and transparency, Fincantieri applies a specific procedure for the timely
management of any conflicts of interest, whether of employees or third parties, both at the selection stage and
throughout the relationship. Indeed, it is of paramount importance to Fincantieri that nobody, during the perfor-
mance of their work activities and functions, is influenced by personal interests that might, even potentially or in
the abstract, modify or alter their choices.

Fincantieri has obtained ISO 37001 certification of compliance with the standards on management systems for
the prevention of corruption.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “S2 - Workers in the value chain”

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Gl - Business conduct”
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Risk of non-compliance with laws, regulations and bylaws, primary or secondary regulations of emerging coun-
tries, and sector-specific regulations, due to the evolution and tightening of the legal and regulatory environment
at the national and international level. This includes directives and regulations on adaptation to and mitigation
of climate change, business and trade compliance, national and international cyber security and anti-corruption
legislation, EU, national and international legislation on the protection and processing of personal data, and rules
and regulations applicable to listed companies.

For the risk of non-compliance with cyber security legislation, a cross-functional steering committee was intro-
duced internally to analyse and new regulations in the area of data protection and essential services and assess
their impact on the Group. For the specific regulatory framework of the National Cybersecurity Perimeter (PSNC),
relevant internal procedures were defined and updated, while, for the overall protection of the Fincantieri Group,
the process of taking out cyber insurance to cover possible cyber incidents was supported. Similarly, externally,
Fincantieri participates in institutional and international standardization working groups to keep abreast of new
regulations and contribute to the definition of industry standards. During 2025, with the progressive evolution and
integration of the regulatory framework at the national and European level, Fincantieri will further strengthen its
organizational, technical and procedural cyber measures to ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Si - Own workforce”

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Gi - Business conduct”
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External perspective - External risk
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Risk that climate change and associated meteorological phenomena (acute, such as storms, floods, earthquakes,
fires or heat waves, and chronic, such as changes in temperature, rising sea levels, reduced water availability, loss of
biodiversity, etc.), could damage assets (e.g. plants, buildings, etc.), cause a slowdown or stoppage for the Company
and/or its suppliers, requiring unplanned safety measures or interventions to adapt to the green transition.

In order to prevent or limit potential damage to assets and/or production stoppages due to adverse weather events,
each production site has specific emergency plans, subject to periodic verification through internal and third-par-
ty audits, as well as procedures governing studies and checks on the positioning of ships, moorings, scaffolding,
cranes and related safety and warning systems. Maintenance activities also contribute to limiting damage from
extraordinary weather events. The entire system is geared towards identifying, assessing and managing site-spe-
cific risks and limiting the potential impacts on company assets, as well as in general terms the environmental
and social impacts that could result. To date, the economic/financial and asset-related risks arising from acute
weather events are covered by insurance policies that reduce the possible direct and indirect impact of business
interruption. The Group contributes to the fight against climate change by paying particular attention to the
technologies used in its production process, and to their potential development with a view to green transition.
In fact, it annually defines an innovation plan and constantly monitors technological trends in its core markets,
through scouting activities and partnerships with the main players in innovation, such as universities, research
centres, associations, etc.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “El - Climate change”
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Risk of common or organized crime events occurring inside or outside the Company’s premises to the detriment
of company assets and people, productivity and business continuity. This includes both risks related to industrial
security and the protection and safeguarding of state secrets and classified and exclusively disseminated informa-
tion, and risks related to the physical security of assets (tangible and intangible) and human resources.

In order to contain the risk of unlawful influence and infiltration into the company's business, Fincantieri deploys
an integrity due diligence model, checking that third party companies meet reputational requirements, with par-
ticular regard to the strategic supply chain and companies with the highest risk of mafia infiltration, monitoring
them over time and defining preventive bans and phase-out plans for cases deemed higher risk, including within
the relevant company committees.

Information research activities (Threat Intelligence) are also carried out, through the collection and analysis of
information, mainly from publicly accessible sources, in order to evaluate known or emerging criminal risk scena-
rios, in areas of company interest in Italy and abroad.

In terms of institutional partnerships, within the scope of the guarantees provided by the National Framework
Tender Protocol signed with the Ministry of the Interior, Fincantieri subjects all company supply chains operating
in activities with a high risk of mafia infiltration to prefectural anti-mafia checks, thereby promoting the highest
standards of safety and legality, and reports any suspicions of external influence to the relevant Prefectures.

For the physical security of its Production Units, the Company has technological systems - including video-sur-
veillance, anti-intrusion and electronic access control systems - to support the activities to protect assets carried
out by an effective security service, the latter using suitable personnel and/or private security institutions, not
least to monitor the orderly use of the premises and to verify the transit, both incoming and outgoing, of people
and materials.

Some of these Production Units are also subject to maritime security regulations, including the National Maritime
Security Plan, the purpose of which is to provide for the application of specific security procedures, in synergy
with Authorities and Police Forces.

Management and protection procedures also cover classified information or state secrets and information subject
to controlled dissemination in compliance with the laws and regulations of the country and based on international
agreements for classified international contracts, as well as proprietary information that qualifies as a trade secret
and is managed with internal company rules and directives.

In order to increase awareness of security issues, the Group offers training activities to all personnel with access
to sites and shipyards.

In addition, as part of the travel risk management process, with the aim of protecting personnel travelling abroad
from risks related to terrorism / kidnapping / acts of violence, the Group puts in place mitigation measures in line
with the international best practices in the sector (ISO31030).

In 2024 the travel risk management system was certified as compliant with the guidelines 1SO31030:2021
“Travel Risk Management: guidance for organizations” within the Fincantieri S.p.A. boundary.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Si - Own workforce”
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Risk that the Group does not adopt an adequate stakeholder engagement and public relations strategy aimed at
building and consolidating long-term relationships with stakeholders. This risk covers corporate communications
on sustainability to meet rating targets by ESG agencies, disclosure to the market and investors, dialogue with tra-
de union representatives, and relations with institutions and governments aimed at building consensus on issues
relevant to corporate strategy. Poor relationships with local, national and international counterparts (e.g. local
communities and authorities/associations, judicial and governmental authorities, trade associations, SMEs, etc.)
can damage the company's image and reputation, diminish its credibility and creditworthiness, and compromise
its competitiveness and operations.

In order to ensure that the company operates in compliance with applicable regulations, while maintaining
positive relations with trade union representatives and protecting its strategic interests internationally, multiple
safeguards and controls have been implemented.

A key element is the correct flow of information and communication to trade union and employer organizations;
Fincantieri is part of the Federmeccanica delegation for national collective bargaining and ensures a correct trade
union management model by guaranteeing that all relevant information is shared promptly and accurately. This
is also supported by the collaboration and coordination activities with the HR Business Partners who ensure a
correct information flow/communication with the Site Trade Unions and monitor the correct application of the
supplementary contract and, in general, of second-level trade union agreements. The definition of trade union
agreements on labour regulations, and the subsequent operational management and monitoring of their correct
application, guarantees improved working conditions based on safety, well-being and work-life balance. In addi-
tion, the activation and management of joint bodies and the initiation of union discussion panels for supplemen-
tary bargaining are further measures taken to maintain participative, positive and collaborative labour relations.
With this in mind, with the supplementary agreement of 27 October 2022, Fincantieri further expanded its indu-
strial relations model with the establishment of new Joint commissions to increase the level of involvement of the
Trade Unions. Moreover, with a view to pursuing and enhancing integration among the various Group companies,
on 2 December 2024, a Memorandum of Understanding was signed with the trade unions which governs the
industrial relations system of the Italian subsidiaries related to the Infrastructure Cluster and Technology Cluster
with the creation of new joint bodies.

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “ESRS 2 - General disclosures”
Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Si1 - Own workforce”

Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “S3 - Affected communities”
Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “S4 - Consumers and end-users”
Chapter "Consolidated Sustainability Statement" - “Gl - Business conduct”
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The 2024 year was characterized by a favourable trend in the shipbuilding market and the easing of inflationary
pressures but also by a geopolitical context which continues to be unstable.

Energy transition and the spread of digital technologies are confirmed as the major levers influencing all markets
including shipping, guaranteeing further opportunities and the spread of new business models.

This situation is favourable to the Fincantieri Group due to its distinctive competencies in high value-added
shipbuilding.

The Group aims to excel in the construction and whole-life management of the digital and green ship for the cru-
ise, defence and energy sectors, with a particular focus on renewables, exploiting synergies between the various
sectors and maximizing the overall value offered to the customer. In addition, it is committed to extending its
range of action to the underwater domain, which is essential to the defence system and the security of strategic
infrastructure at sea.

All this translates into strengthening its international competitive positioning and the entire supply chain with
respect to sustainability issues.

Within the cruise ship segment, Fincantieri is leader with over 40% of the market share and 130 cruise ships bu-
ilt since 1990, i.e. over a third of the global fleet currently in operation. The Group counts 28 vessels in the order
book, with scheduled delivery up to 2033 and has globally leading players in cruise tourism among its customers.

With a long-standing presence in the defence industry, since 1990 the Group has delivered over 140 naval
vessels, of which over 50 to Italy, another 50 to the USA and about 40 vessels to foreign navies. Fincantieri is a
strategic partner of the Italian Navy, among the most advanced worldwide, and an accredited supplier to the US
Ministry of Defence. It is one of the leading operators for high-tech surface vessels, specializes in the production
of submarines and, over the past year, has taken a leading role in the development of the underwater sector.

Fincantieri is confirmed its place as the lead player in the construction of support vessels for the development of
the offshore wind sector, with 19 CSOV, SOV and 4 cable-laying vessels in its portfolio, new generation vessels
with high operational and environmental efficiency.

In addition, over the past year, it has been able to meet the emerging demand for flexible vessels, suitable for
construction or maintenance, which are capable of operating in a subsea environment to support projects in both
the offshore wind and Oil & Gas sectors.

For the cruise industry, 2024 could be a record year. The number of cruise passengers is thought to have reached
around 35 million, with ship occupancy rates for the major companies at around 105% to 108%.

Demand, bookings, cruise prices and on-board revenues are higher than expected. In fact, some leading cruise
operators have exceeded the targets set in the 2024 Guidance and set targets for further growth in 2025, or have
upped their forecasts for the whole year*®.

The high level of bookings makes it possible to optimize pricing policies and improve profitability. Leisure spen-
ding is growing and travel spending is increasing at a faster pace, a trend confirmed for the future. The trend
towards cruising is motivated by the intrinsic value for money in relation to the price, which is superior to land-ba-
sed holidays. Cruising has become a mainstream holiday product, attracting an increasingly broad audience,
including younger people.

The 2024 year marked a decisive resumption of investment programs by shipowners: orders were finalized for 19
ships (9 of which are with Fincantieri) and contracts, agreements and letters of intent were signed for a further 14
ships (including options), whose effectiveness is subject to customers obtaining financing, in line with industry
practices.

The upturn in orders affected all segments, including the mainstream large ships segment, with slots booked for
deliveries well beyond 2030. This reflects the complexity and high value of new generation ships, which require
a partnership with customers to harmonize desired design, environmental and digital technology choices and
increasing production lead times.

A virtuous cycle has been reactivated, similar to that of the 2016 - 2019 period, characterized by orders excee-
ding deliveries, resulting in the rebuilding of order backlog and increased visibility.

The forecast scenario in terms of new orders is affected by the expected growth in the number of cruise passen-

46 CCL and RCL exceeded the targets set in the 2024 Guidance and set targets for further growth in 2025, while NCLH exceeded its
targets for the third quarter for all key parameters and revised its full-year forecast upwards for the fourth time.
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gers and the change in the fleet size, in relation to the process of decommissioning less attractive older vessels
with lower marginality, also in response to new regulatory constraints.

With regard to the trend in the number of cruise passengers, CLIA estimates that it will reach 39.7 million in

2027 (CAGR +4.6%). In later years, further growth is expected reaching about 48.5 million by 2032 (CAGR
2024-2032 +4.3%).

EXPECTED CRUISE TRENDS

Million 60

50 /3%\/
CAGR p020-2032 & o
40

/,
——
30
CAGR 2024-2027 4.6% CAGR 2027-2032 4.1%
20
10
0
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

Comparison between available lower berths (based on deliveries of ships in the order book and assumed decom-
missioning) and needs related to passenger growth reveals a gap between demand and supply from 2027, which
justifies the investment plans of shipowners.

DEVELOPMENT OF SUPPLY AND DEMAND FOR LOWER BERTHS!
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B Fleet size M Supply/Demand GAP B LB requirements

1 LB = Lower berths, beds available on a ship considering the standard of two beds per cabin. Global fleet size, prepared by Fin-
cantieri using Shippax data.
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The business scenario for the coming years will be influenced by the development of the international economic and Offshore and Specialized In terms of offshore wind power, installed capacity worldwide reached 74.6 GW at the end of 2024 and, based
geopolitical environment, the application of environmental regulations on emissions reduction, reduced availability Vessels on the pipeline of known projects to date, is expected to increase to 410 GW in 2035.4°
of production slots, supply chain pressures and access to financial support (ECA).
Environmental regulations coming into force in 2023-2024 that impact vessel operation include: i) ETS - European INSTALLED CAPACITY TO 2035
Union Trading Systems, i.e. the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Trading Scheme, a taxation mechanism for greenhouse
gas emissions in force in Europe that may also impact ship itinerary planning; ii) Cll - Carbon Intensity Indicator, aw
according to which all ships (> 5,000 GRT) must report carbon emissions in relation to the distance travelled. The 250
calculation mechanism penalizes cruise ships, which spend more time in port than cargo ships. o5
400 —
Naval vessels As far as the naval segment is concerned, the global defence budget stood at approximately USD 2.48 trillion Tow

in 202447, (+1.1% compared to 2023, taking inflation into account), confirming an upward trend since 2014 350 —
(+2.8% a year). The current geopolitical scenario is fuelling an increase in defence spending: growth at an ave-
rage rate of +1.5% is expected in the period 2025-2029. The budget allocated to the naval domain is also set to 300 290.7 |
grow, supporting the demand for new ships.
In 2024, orders for naval vessels*® worth around euro 45.3 billion (or 167 vessels) were finalized, a significant 250  medium
increase compared to 2023. In terms of value, the major part (75%) was allocated to domestic shipyards and the
remaining 25% (or 46 vessels) to the export market. 200 —
In Europe, the naval industry is driven by individual European states each with their own budgets, resulting in 150
fragmentation and dispersion of resources, as well as greater fragility of EU companies compared to American 18.4 119.8
ones. The industry's weight in the shipbuilding domain is, however, significant: in 2024, the total value of pro- 100 26.8 -
grams acquired by the network of European shipyards from European and foreign navies will amount to 45% of - high
orders by value worldwide. .
So far as Fincantieri's cooperation initiatives in Europe are concerned, under the second call of the European
Fund, the bid for the European Patrol Corvette (EPC) program for the development of a Modular and Multirole 0
Patrol Corvette (MMPC), submitted by the consortium coordinated by Naviris, was selected by the European Wind farm Under Post Tot. approved —  New 2035 Project
CommISSIOn operatlve construction FID pro:|ects initiatives Credlblllty
In the domestic market, the Italian Navy's expansion and modernization program took concrete form with the } ) ) ) )
order for the construction of two “EVOLUTION" version FREMM Frigates, named 'FREMM EVO', a fourth new-ge- The demand for clean energy remains a solid demand driver for the growth of offshore wind power, although its de-
neration patrol vessel and a fourth U212NFS (Near Future Submarine). ' ' velopment is proceeding at a slow pace. Despite support for green transition policies and the setting of ambitious

targets by governments, there is still an implementation gap between declared targets and industry development.
With regard to the US market, options for the fifth and sixth next-generation Constellation-Class multi-role frigate Problems with permitting processes, financing, bottlenecks in the supply chain, and the implementation of ener-
were exercised in 2024. gy transmission networks remain an obstacle to faster growth.
In other countries, Fincantieri continues to develop established programs (e.g. FREMM and PPA) to meet custo- The direction of Trump's energy policy could halt the spread of wind power in the US; for some operators, howe-
mers’ needs, and to pursue opportunities in the smaller vessel segment, also through the conclusion of agree- ver, the consequences could be less dramatic as it is the individual states that can decide on the continuation of
ments with local operators. projects, regardless of the loss of federal state support.
The current geopolitical situation has highlighted the fragility of the world’s energy and communication infra- In general, the development of renewable energies is fuelling the demand for specialized vessels to support the
structure system, including national infrastructures. For the Mediterranean, a crossroads between three conti- construction and maintenance of offshore wind fields, such as CSOV, SOV and cable-laying vessels for grid and
nents, underwater is a strategic domain, where intelligence, surveillance, defence and deterrence activities take shore connection.
place. The area is characterized by significant economic flows, accounting for 20% of global maritime traffic, and ) ) ) o
is set in a context of increasing instability. In 2024, SOV and CSOV orders stood at 20 vessels, of which 8 were acquired by VARD, which also finalized the

sale of designs for two SOVs assigned to the Indian shipyard Cochin. The market therefore continued to record
Over the last two years Fincantieri has finalized a series of agreements aimed at strengthening its technological fairly high volumes (2023 closed with orders for 23 new constructions + 3 conversions).
leadership in the underwater domain, a crucial sector for the future of maritime security and technology. The first } ) o
steps included participation as leader in the National Underwater Dimension Cluster, established in 2023, which At the end of December, the SOV/CSOV fleet comprised 56 vessels, the same size as the order book (56 vessels).
was followed in 2024 by i) the signing of an MoU with WSense, a deep tech company specializing in underwater ) ) ) ) ) )
monitoring and communication systems; ii) the acquisition of Remazel, a leader in the design and supply of top- In 2024, the strong demand for energy also contributed to a revival of investments in the Oil & Gas sector, which
side equipment for submarines; iii) the Memorandum of Understanding with Saipem to assess opportunities for led to the emergence of a demand for particularly flexible vehicles for construction or maintenance activities, also in
commercial and industrial cooperation in the field of autonomous underwater vehicles and their integration with the subsea area, capable of supporting projects in both the offshore wind and Oil & Gas sectors.
surface vessels and submarines. ) ) ) o )

Against this backdrop, the year ended with the formalization of 21 orders for Multipurpose Supply Vessels (MSV),
The Group's growth strategy in the underwater domain continued with the acquisition, finalized in January 2025, including OECV/ECV®! (plus 4 conversions). The Norwegian subsidiary VARD was able to take advantage of these
of the Leonard S.p.A Underwater Armament Systems (UAS) business line, through the purchase of the entire new trends, achieving a significant market position, winning orders for 8 innovative ships, all with hybrid pro-
share capital of the newly established company WASS Submarine Systems Srl. With this transaction, Fincantieri pulsion. The order book at the end of December (including conversions) consisted of 33 vessels, 13 of which
integrates unique expertise in the field of underwater acoustic technologies and advanced weapons systems. belonged to VARD.

49 Source: 4CO0ffshore, Global Market Overview Q4 2024.

50 Source: DB 4COffshore, Wind Farm Service Vessels Database as at December 2024, Fincantieri calculation.

51 OECV = Ocean Energy Construction Vessel; ECV = Energy Construction Vessel.
47 Source: Global Defence Budget, Jane’s, 21 January 2025 - figures in real terms (taking inflation into account).
48 Excluding nuclear-powered naval vessels and vessels less than 45 metres in length.
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Within this sector, Fincantieri can play the role of Prime Contractor and Design Authority for traditional
submarines, as a core (physical and logical) integrator according to the concept of a ‘network’ of systems
and sensors, and as an aggregator within a national cluster to develop and enhance a national supply chain.

The achievement of these objectives requires an across the board commitment throughout the Group and the
development and subsequent implementation of multiple initiatives that relate in particular to continuous
improvement processes and the enhancement of assets.

In order to ensure that core markets are covered, it is becoming increasingly important to adopt solutions
capable of responding to the ever-increasing workload, looking at the possibilities offered by technological
innovation. In particular, the process of continuous improvement of its assets in order to adapt and con-
stantly raise the efficiency of production capacity enables the Group to optimize its operational processes,
improving their quality and effectiveness.

In the last three years, the Group has invested around euro 816 million in its production units, both in Italy
and abroad, to make its production process safer and more efficient. The main interventions focused on:

e adaptation of the operating areas and infrastructure of the Italian shipyards, with a particular focus on
Monfalcone and Marghera, to achieve the adjustment in production capacity and efficiency necessary to
deal with the expected workload and developments in the core market. The significant investment plan
launched at these two sites has led to the acquisition of state-of-the-art infrastructure, machinery and
equipment and allowed a reconfiguration of processes to provide greater efficiency;

e ongoing modernization of shipyards in the United States aimed at (i) updating infrastructure, including
technology, (ii) increasing the efficiency of production processes, and (iii) making sites consistent with
the Group's sustainability objectives. Actions to increase production efficiency were mainly driven by
the needs of the Constellation frigate programme, without neglecting the needs of other core markets;

e the completion, at the Vietnamese Vung Tau shipyard, of an expansion program aimed at increasing
the shipyard’s production capacity, so as to consolidate the company’s leadership position in the con-
struction of SOVs, for the offshore wind market in particular;

e constant improvement in the safety standards of machinery, equipment and buildings.

In addition, the Group is pursuing multiple initiatives to further raise its technological standard through the
introduction of advanced robotics solutions and the launch of a major digitalization program. In this area,
the most important initiatives concern:

e completion of the installation of the new panel line at the Riva Trigoso shipyard, a highly automated
line characterized by solutions at the most advanced technological level that will guarantee greater
production capacity at the site but above all an excellent level of quality for the processing carried out
by the automatic line;

e the introduction and progressive spread in Group shipyards of prototype robotic solutions for steel wel-
ding, also through partnerships with leading companies operating in related sectors. The first step in
this process concerns a mobile welding robot, consisting of a man-made arm equipped with a welding
head installed on a tracked mobile base controlled by an operator with a remote control system. This
solution will make the welding process more efficient by increasing the quality level of execution and
reducing processing time;

e the introduction of high-tech Mixed Reality and Augmented Reality instruments to support the pro-
duction process which, through the use of special visors, will allow the assembly plan for the various
components to be projected directly onto the production blocks.

In parallel with the aforementioned actions aimed at making the production process more efficient, incre-
asing product quality and site production capacity, the Group has demonstrated considerable commitment
and attention to the environment and the social context in which it operates. In 2024 Fincantieri continued
to support significant investments in the area of sustainability, both in Italy and abroad, mainly with the
aim of:

increasing safety in the workplace;

optimizing energy consumption;

introducing tools monitoring consumption and reducing waste;

improving and streamlining smoke extraction systems;

reducing noise pollution;

aligning shipyard standards with environmental regulations;

increasing the welfare of its employees with initiatives such as the equipping of new office space, re-
freshment areas, changing rooms and car parks.

Fincantieri believes that value can only be created through sustainable and responsible management of
growth, which will generate benefits for all stakeholders. In this context, Fincantieri is bringing ESG issues
to the centre of its processes and this is also reflected in its management of investments.
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The performance of the stock in 2024 recorded an extremely positive trend, rising from a price of euro 4.33 per
share on 29 December 2023 to euro 6.93 per share on 30 December 2024, with an increase of around 60.2%.
Over the same period the FTSE MIB, the index comprising Italy’s 40 largest stocks, rose by 12.6%, while the
FTSE Italia Mid Cap index, which includes Fincantieri, rose by 7.2%. The stock’s positive performance was driven
by the activities implemented by the parent company to increase stock liquidity, including the increased share of
institutional investors in the capital, and by the success of the capital increase transaction finalized in July 2024.
The average price of the stock during the year was euro 4.92 per share, with a peak value for the period of euro
6.93 recorded on 30 December, the last day of dealing for the year, corresponding to a market capitalization of
euro 2,238 million.

In terms of volumes, a total of 272.3 million shares were traded, with an average daily trading volume of around
1.1 million shares, more than three times higher than in 2023.

It should also be noted that on 17 June 2024, in view of the capital increase resolved on 11 June 2024 by
Fincantieri's Board of Directors, Fincantieri's ordinary shares, amounting to 1,699,651,360, were regrouped
into 169,965,136 newly issued ordinary shares, at a ratio of 1 new ordinary share for every 10 existing shares.
The capital increase was completed on 16 July 2024 with the subscription of 152,419,410 shares. An equal
number of 152,419,410 "Fincantieri 2024-2026 Warrants" were coupled with the new shares issued, entitling
their holders to subscribe 5 newly issued ordinary shares for every 34 2024-2026 Warrants exercised. As of 31
December 2024, 147,972,278 Warrants remained in circulation.

At 31 December 2024, Fincantieri’s Share Capital of euro 878,288,065.70 was held as follows: 71.30% by CDP
Equity S.p.A., 28.57% by the general market and 0.13% in treasury shares.

Key figures 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Share Capital Euro 878,288,066 862,980,726
Ordinary shares issued Number 323,038,536 1,699,651,360
Treasury shares Number 407,433 8,059,914
Market capitalization* Euro/million 2,238 948
Performance** 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Price at year end Euro 6.93 4.33
Year high Euro 6.93 5.07
Year low Euro 3.67 3.55
Average price Euro 4.92 4.16

* Number of shares outstanding multiplied by reference share price at period end.

** Prices recalculated on the basis of the stock consolidation (reverse stock split) carried out on 17 June 2024, in the ratio of no.
1 new ordinary share for every no. 10 existing ordinary shares, and adjusted for the K coefficient communicated by Borsa Italiana
on 21 June 2024, at the launch of Fincantieri's Capital Increase.
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On 4 March 2024, Fincantieri joined the prestigious Industrial Liaison Program (ILP) of the Massachusetts In-
stitute of Technology (MIT). By joining this program, the Group will be able to engage with researchers, faculty
members and students to stay at the forefront of innovation. This partnership is part of the course towards the
implementation of the 2023-2027 Business Plan. This agreement will become part of Fincantieri’s commit-
ment to innovate and be at the forefront of the development of new technologies on strategic topics, such as Di-
gital Transformation, with a focus on Artificial Intelligence, the Energy Transition and Maritime Sustainability.

On 12 March 2024, Fincantieri signed two MoUs in Doha. The first with the naval shipyard in Alexandria,
Egypt, which aims to define the principles for discussions that will mainly focus on finding new opportunities
for the construction of new ships. The partnership will concentrate on potential new ship programs of various
types for the defence sector. The second with Qatar Emiri Naval Forces (QENF) with the aim of starting discus-
sions with the goal of entering into new contracts for the provision to QENF personnel of cutting-edge education
and training courses.

On 4 June 2024, Fincantieri signed an agreement with iGenius, an ltalian scale-up active in the field of re-
search and development of Generative Artificial Intelligence technologies, to establish a partnership for the
development of Al systems based on an entirely Italian platform. This operation is part of the Artificial Intelli-
gence development plan that Fincantieri is pursuing with the aim of strengthening its control of a technology
with high development potential, evaluating solutions that can improve the performance, safety and efficiency
of its products and processes.

On 7 June 2024, the European Commission selected the bid for the European Patrol Corvette project submit-
ted by a consortium of industries bringing together the three European shipyards Navantia (ES), Fincantieri (IT)
and Naval Group (FR), together with Naviris (FR/IT) and Hydrus (GR) for the second European Defence Fund
call for tenders for the Modular and Multirole Patrol Corvette. The contract will be negotiated with OCCAR-EA
under a mandate from the European Commission.

On 29 July 2024, Fincantieri and Accenture announced a partnership with the strategic objective of creating
a joint capability between Fincantieri NexTech, a Fincantieri company active in the development of digital pro-
ducts and services for the Group, and Accenture, aimed at accelerating certain digital transformation initiatives
included in the Fincantieri Group's 2023-2027 Business Plan through the adoption of advanced technologies.

On 25 September 2024, Fincantieri and its subsidiaries Fincantieri NexTech and IDS announced their participa-
tion for the second consecutive year in REPMUS 2024 (Robotic Experimentation and Prototyping augmented by
Maritime Unmanned Systems), an annual military exercise held in Portugal, organized and hosted by the Portu-
guese Navy, NATO and EDA with the participation of foreign military forces, universities and hi-tech companies.

On 22 October 2024 Fincantieri and the Study Foundation of the National Council of Labour Consultants signed
an important Memorandum of Understanding for the application of ASSE.CO. certification, with the aim of fur-
ther promoting regular contributions, pay and economic conditions in the management of labour relations in the
shipbuilding supply chain. This project aims to further strengthen Fincantieri's corporate social responsibility
performance, ensuring compliance with labour regulations and improving the safety and well-being of workers.

On the same date, Fincantieri Group signed an MoU with Barzan Holdings, a company wholly owned by Qatar's
Ministry of Defence and responsible for enhancing the military capabilities of the state's armed forces, for the
joint development of the Omega360 radar program, a central sensor for Qatar's national anti-drone system.

On 25 October 2024 Fincantieri, in the presence of the Undersecretary of State for Defence Hon. Matteo Pe-
rego di Cremnago took part in the opening of an Innovation Antenna at the Mind the Bridge Innovation Center
in San Francisco. This strategic step consolidates the company's position within the world's most advanced
technology ecosystem, with the aim of exploring new trends and developing innovative solutions in the area of
dual-use technologies, applicable in both the civil and naval sectors.

On 31 October 2024 Fincantieri and BQ Solutions, a Qatari company dedicated to providing strategic support
to the country's military and security forces, signed an MoU in Doha with the aim of developing education and
training programs, created under Italian guidance, for the Naval Forces of the Emirate of Qatar.

On 7 November 2024 Fincantieri launched from the Monfalcone site 'Cantieri aperti, vista sul futuro' (Open
Shipyards, a view of the future), the roadshow that opens the doors of its shipyards to institutions with the
aim of showcasing the excellence of Italian shipbuilding, describing the transformations taking place in the
shipyards and the technological developments pursued by the Group. The initiative, which in its first stage saw
the participation and visit to the shipyard by Interior Minister Matteo Piantedosi, continued in the latter part of
2024 and will continue in 2025 with the involvement of the Group's other sites in Italy.

On 11 November 2024, Fincantieri announced the successful conclusion of the membership for the campaign
for the first widespread employee share ownership and co-investment plan, which saw significant participa-
tion by Group employees in Italy, Norway and the United States. The initiative, which was approved by the
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Shareholders' Meeting, is consistent with the company's desire to strengthen the sense of belonging to the
Group, making all personnel actors in achieving the objectives of the 2023-2027 Strategic Plan and creating
sustainable value.

On 27 November 2024, SIMEST, the CDP Group company which supports companies with their international
expansion, and Fincantieri signed a memorandum of understanding aimed at fostering new investments, grea-
ter competitiveness and market growth for companies in the shipbuilding industry.

On 9 December 2024, the Fincantieri Foundation opened a new chapter in its history, expanding its mission
with ambitious projects focused on culture, innovation and inclusion. This new era sees the Foundation strongly
committed to creating a more inclusive world, with the aim of building a bridge between the past and the future,
placing a vast historical heritage and its cultural contribution at the service of communities and new generations.

On 16 December 2024, it was announced that the Polytechnic University of Turin, the Fondazione Bruno
Kessler and ENEA, together with Engineering, Fincantieri, Reply, TIM and Tiscali will create a shared test en-
vironment to make use of the results of the activities of 8RA, the project funded by the European Community
under the IPCEI (Important Project of Common European Interest) programme.

1
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Key events after the
reporting period ended
31.12.2024

On 13 January 2025, the Parent Company and the Hera Group, one of the largest Italian multi-utility companies
operating in the environment, energy and water sectors, announced the establishment of CircularYard S.r.l., a
newco with the aim of creating, in the Group's eight Italian sites, an innovative integrated waste management
system, and extracting value from waste from a circular economy perspective. In the future, there are plans to
expand the newco's operations to other sites located abroad.

On 27 January 2025, the Group announced the signing of a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) in Saudi
Arabia. These agreements underline the interest in this region following the establishment of the subsidiary Fin-
cantieri Arabia for Naval Services during the year. In line with the Vision 2030 programme launched by Saudi
Arabia, these partnerships will strengthen the Group's role and status as the only shipbuilding complex in the
world active in all areas of high-technology shipbuilding.

On 29 January 2025, the Parent Company published the Information Document - prepared pursuant to art. 71
and in accordance with Appendix 3B, Schedule no. 3, of the Regulation adopted by Consob with resolution no.
11971 of 14 May 1999 (as subsequently amended and supplemented) - relating to the acquisition, completed
on 14 January 2025, of the Leonardo "Underwater Armaments & Systems" (UAS) business line, through the
purchase by Fincantieri of the entire share capital in the newly incorporated company WASS Submarine Systems
S.r.l., to which the UAS business line was previously contributed by Leonardo.

On 7th February 2025 Fincantieri and TUI Cruises, a joint venture between TUI AG and Royal Caribbean Cruises,
celebrated at the Monfalcone shipyard the delivery of “Mein Schiff Relax”, the first of two new dual-fuel (Lique-
fied Natural Gas - LNG and Marine Gas Oil - MGO) InTUltion class cruise ships that Fincantieri is building for
this shipowner. The sister ship will be launched in mid-2026.

On 17 February 2025, Fincantieri and EDGE, one of the world's leading advanced technology and defence groups,
announced that the Tawazun Council has awarded MAESTRAL, their Abu Dhabi-based shipbuilding joint ventu-
re, a major 'In-Service Support (ISS) Strategic Partnership Project' for the entire UAE Navy fleet. The Tawazun
Council is an independent government body that works closely with the Ministry of Defence and security agencies
in the United Arab Emirates. The value of the agreement is approximately euro 500 million with a five-year term.

On 24 February 2025, Fincantieri and EDGE announced the signing of a new MoU that expands and strengthens
the agreement signed in Paris in November 2024 in the rapidly evolving underwater segment. The agreement is
based on collaboration between the two companies to develop underwater technologies, supporting the United
Arab Emirates (UAE) in becoming a regional benchmark for innovation in this field.

On 21 march 2025, Fincantieri and the Guardia di Finanza (Finance Police) signed a Memorandum of Under-
standing to strengthen cooperation in preventing and combatting criminal infiltration and wrongdoing in the
economic and production sector. The agreement envisages joint action aimed at safeguarding legality, focusing
on preventing and combatting economic-financial crime, corruption and illegal employment.

It should be noted that in January and February 2025, 823,752 "Fincantieri 2024-2026 Warrants" were exerci-
sed, with the consequent subscription and simultaneous redemption of 121,140 Fincantieri ordinary shares for a
total countervalue of euro 537,862 (of which euro 12,114 is to be allocated to share capital and the remainder
to the share premium reserve). After this operation, Fincantieri's share capital consists of a total of 323,159,676
shares, with a countervalue of euro 878,300,180.
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The sectors in which Fincantieri operates reflect important growth prospects characterized by positive ma-
cro-trends in the cruise tourism market, geopolitical developments driving an increase in defence spending,
and the growing need for the development of offshore energy resources, both in the wind and oil & gas seg-
ments.

The Cruise business, where Fincantieri is a market leader, is seeing growth accelerate. All major shipowners
report a positive trend above expectations for key industry indicators such as bookings, cruise prices, on-board
revenues and profitability. The CLIA forecast is for 39.7 million cruise passengers by 2027 (CAGR +4.6%);
in later years further growth is expected with the achievement of about 48.5 million by 2032 (CAGR 2024-
2032 +4.3%). The upturn in orders in 2024 for all ship classes, from luxury to contemporary, is also fuelled
by the introduction of new environmental regulations that accelerate the fleet renewal process. This favourable
scenario, marked by the restart of investments with a long-term vision by the major cruise lines, is confirmed
by the recent transformation of the LOI signed in 2024 into an order for the construction of four new ships for
Norwegian Cruise Line, the largest ever ordered for this brand.

As far as the Defence business is concerned, the global defence budget stood at approximately US$ 2.48
trillion in 202452, (+1.1% compared to 2023, taking inflation into account), confirming an upward trend since
2014 (+2.8% a year).

In the naval sphere, the current rapidly changing international geopolitical context is expected to open up new
scenarios, marked by an increase in resources allocated to programs to strengthen fleets for defence and deter-
rence purposes. This trend offers attractive growth opportunities for the Group, in a potential market of around
euro 20 billion over the Plan period, particularly in Italy and the United States, and in strategically important
quadrants such as the Middle East and South East Asia, where the Group has strengthened its presence.

On the domestic market, the Italian Navy's fleet renewal plan continued in 2024 with the finalization of con-
tracts for the construction of new generation units, specifically two 'FREMM EVO' frigates and a fourth patrol
vessel, while for the underwater segment, the order for a fourth submarine was finalized. In the US market,
options for the fifth and sixth next generation Constellation-Class multi-role frigate were exercised.

In other countries, in addition to the contract for two MPCS (multipurpose combat ship)/PPA for the Indonesian
government, a series of agreements were concluded in the Middle East (Egypt, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and the
United Arab Emirates) and in Asia.

The numerous activities and agreements put in place to strengthen the technological leadership in the un-
derwater domain, a crucial segment for the future of maritime security and technology, culminating with the
acquisition of Remazel and Leonardo S.p.A.'s Underwater Armament Systems (UAS) business line, involve a
significant broadening of the Group's core market.

In the Offshore segment, the demand for renewable energy has been confirmed as a solid driver of demand for
offshore wind growth, albeit at a slower pace than expected.

In 2024, demand for specialized SOV/CSOV vessels remained high, totalling 20 orders, 8 of which were acqui-
red by the Norwegian subsidiary VARD, which confirmed its market leadership, holding one third of the world
order book.

Green transition policies and the setting of ambitious targets by governments, especially in Europe, will conti-
nue to support demand in the long term.

New market opportunities have emerged in 2024 with growing energy demand, which has helped to relaunch
investment in the Oil & Gas sector. This trend, expected to continue in the coming years, has generated a de-
mand for particularly flexible vehicles (MSV, OECV, ECV)%3 dedicated to construction or maintenance activities,
also in the subsea area, and able to provide support for both offshore wind and Oil & Gas projects. The Norwe-
gian subsidiary VARD was able to seize these opportunities by winning orders for 8 innovative ships during the
year (out of 21 vessels worldwide), all with hybrid propulsion.

The Group plans to continue implementing the 2023-2027 Business Plan during 2025, focusing on:
(i)  the creation of a distinctive portfolio of technologies, products and services in the underwater seg-
ment, capable of meeting the needs of customers in both the defence and civil sectors;
(ii) increased operational efficiency, with a focus on the performance of the supply chain and the indu-
strialization of robotics and automation solutions (robots, digital twin, logistics); entry into a new cruise
ship segment (over 200,000 gross tonnage) enabled by the investments planned in the Monfalcone shi-
pyard;
(iii) introduction of advanced digital technologies, such as artificial intelligence, to optimise engineering
and purchasing;

52 Source: Global Defence Budget, Jane’s, 21 January 2025 - figures in real terms (taking inflation into account).
53 MSV-Multipurpose Supply Vessel, OECV-Ocean Energy Construction Vessel, ECV-Energy Construction Vessel.
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(iv) development of the technology platform to enable functionality to be integrated on board using ad-
vanced digital products and services;

(v) further strengthening of Orizzonte Sistemi Navali's skills as a naval system integrator;

(vi) implementation of systems for decarbonization of the maritime sector (integration of hydrogen stora-
ge and utilization systems on board).

The expectation of continued growth in the Group's activities is reflected in the forecast of an increase in reve-
nues for 2025, expected to be around euro 9 billion, including the contribution from integration of Leonardo's
‘Underwater Armament Systems' business unit. The strong increase in profitability is also confirmed with an
EBITDA margin above 7% at the end of 2025. On the financial front, a further acceleration of the deleveraging
process is expected, with the NFP/EBITDA leverage ratio expected to be in line with 2024, a clear improvement
on the 2025 Business Plan target (between 4.5x and 5.5x). Finally, a positive net profit in 2025 is confirmed.

In compliance with the provisions of art. 2391-bis of the Italian Civil Code and the Regulation on related party
transactions adopted by Consob Resolution No. 17221 of 12 March 2010 and subsequent amendments and ad-
ditions (the “CONSOB Regulation”), also taking into account the guidelines provided by the Consob Communica-
tion of 24 September 2010, on 5 May 2014 the Board of Directors of Fincantieri S.p.A. adopted the Regulations
governing related party transactions (the “RPT Regulations”), which identify the principles to which Fincantieri
adheres in order to ensure the transparency and substantive and procedural propriety of related party transactions
entered into by the Company, directly or through its subsidiaries.

Subsequently, on 3 December 2015, the Parent Company also adopted the “Management of Related Party
Transactions” Procedure (“RPT Procedure”) in order to describe and define the process, terms and operating
procedures for the proper management of related party transactions, defining the responsibilities of the various
company organizational units involved in such operations carried out Fincantieri directly or through its subsidia-
ries as defined by the RPT Regulations.

Both the RPT Regulation and the RPT Procedure have been subject to subsequent revisions. In particular, the
RPT Regulation was last updated on 22 October 2024.

With reference to related party transactions concluded in 2024, it should be noted that on 9 May 2024, a sale
and purchase agreement was signed between Fincantieri and Leonardo S.p.A. ("Leonardo") for the acquisition by
Fincantieri of Leonardo's Underwater Armament Systems business line, which constitutes a significant related
party transaction. For further information, please refer to the information document drafted pursuant to Article 5
of the Consob Regulation and Article 8.4 of the RPT Regulation and the Information Document drafted pursuant
to Article 71, paragraph 1, and in accordance with Appendix 3B Schedule no. 3 of the Regulation adopted by
Consob Resolution no. 11971 of 14 May 1999 and subsequent amendments and additions, available on the
Company's website in the section "Governance and Ethics - Related Party Transactions".

The related party transactions concluded during the year do not qualify as either atypical or unusual, since they
fall within the normal course of business of the Group’s companies. These transactions benefit from the exclu-
sions from the procedural regime provided for ordinary transactions concluded at arm’s length or standard terms
or for transactions with subsidiaries.

Information about related party transactions, including the disclosures required by the Consob Communication
dated 28 July 2006, is presented in Note 33 of the Notes to the Financial Statements at 31 December 2024.

The Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting of 23 April 2024 approved the proposal to authorize the purchase and di-
sposal of treasury shares, subject to revocation of the previous Shareholders' Meeting authorization of 31 May
2023, to service the Fincantieri Group's Employee Share Ownership Plan approved by the Ordinary Shareholders'
Meeting of 23 April 2024. The purchase of treasury shares was authorized for a period of eighteen months from
the date of the resolution of the Shareholders’ Meeting, for a maximum amount of shares equating to 10% of the
Share Capital. The disposal of treasury shares was authorized without time limits. The purchases and deeds of
disposal of the aforesaid shares may be executed in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth by the
applicable regulation and accepted market practices and, in particular, purchases must be made at a price that
does not deviate downwards or upwards by more than 10% from the reference price recorded on the Euronext
Milan market organized and managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. in the stock exchange session preceding each
individual transaction.

No treasury shares were purchased during the year. At 31 December 2024, the treasury shares in the portfolio
amounted to 407,433 (equal to 0.13% of the Share Capital).
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Essential intangible resources In relation to the requirements of Articles 15 and 16 of Legislative Decree 125, the following information is pro-
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vided with respect to essential intangible resources, i.e. those without physical substance on which the business
model of the company fundamentally depends, which constitute a source of value creation and, by their very
nature, are only partially translated into assets recognized in the financial statements.

The pillars of the Business Plan take into account the relevance of factors related to essential intangible resour-
ces, considering that they constitute a distinctive and indispensable value for the achievement of the Group's
objectives.

The business model is developed to take into account the aforementioned resources and their contribution to va-
lue creation, including: (a) intellectual capital, understood as organizational capital, with its implicit knowledge,
systems, procedures and protocols, and value of knowledge, in terms of technical and technological capabilities
related to the design and management of complex worksites and projects; (b) human capital, embedded in the
skills of the workforce and permeated by shared ethical values, which allow for unity of purpose and coordinated
action when implementing the strategies reflected in the Plans; c) social and relational capital, expressed in ter-
ms of managing relations with the supply chain and with workers in the value chain, as well as the ability to create
relationships within the communities in which the Group operates, with institutions and various stakeholders, and
to nurture external partnerships aimed at innovative and technological development.

These elements have allowed the Group to stand out in terms of its capacity, developed over the years, to manage
highly complex projects, enabling it to offer one of the most advanced integrated platforms in the world.

In the Report on Operations, and in particular in the section on the Sustainability Statement, more extensive
information is provided on the above-mentioned resources and their contribution to value creation by the Group.
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Fincantieri’s management reviews the performance of the Group and its business segments, also using certain
measures not envisaged by IFRS. In particular, EBITDA, in the configuration monitored by the Group, is used as
the main earnings indicator, as it enables the Group’s underlying marginality to be assessed without the impact of
volatility associated with non-recurring items or extraordinary items outside the ordinary course of business (see
the reclassified consolidated income statement given in the section commenting on the Group’s economic and
financial results); the EBITDA configuration adopted by the Group might not be consistent with the configurations
adopted by other companies.

As required by Consob Communication no. 0092543 of 3 December 2015 which implements the ESMA Guide-
lines on Alternative Performance Measures (document no. ESMA/2015/1415), the components of each of these
measures are described below:

. EBITDA: this is equal to pre-tax earnings, before financial income and expenses, before income and expen-
ses from investments and before depreciation, amortization and impairment, as reported in the financial
statements, adjusted to exclude the following items:

e provisions for costs and legal expenses associated with asbestos-litigation;
e costs relating to reorganization plans and other non-recurring personnel costs;
e other extraordinary income and expenses.

. EBIT: this is equal to EBITDA after deducting recurring depreciation, amortization and impairment of a recur-
ring nature (this excludes impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
recognized as a result of impairment tests or after specific considerations on the recoverability of individual
assets).

e Adjusted profit/(loss) for the year: this is equal to the profit/(loss) for the year before adjustments for non-re-
curring or extraordinary items, which are shown net of the related tax effect.

. Net fixed capital: this reports the fixed assets used in ordinary operations and includes the following items:
Intangible assets, Rights of use, Property, plant and equipment, Investments, Non-current financial assets and
Other assets (including the fair value of derivatives classified in Non-current Financial assets) net of Employee
benefits.

e Net working capital: this is equal to capital employed in ordinary operations which includes Inventories and
advances, Construction contracts and client advances, Trade receivables, Trade payables, Other provisions for
risks and charges and Other current assets and liabilities (including Income tax assets, Income tax liabilities,
Deferred tax assets and Deferred tax liabilities, as well as the fair value of derivatives classified in Current
financial assets).

. Net invested capital: this is calculated as the sum of Net fixed capital, Net working capital and Assets held for sale.

. Net financial position includes:
e Net current cash/(debt): cash and cash equivalents, current financial assets, current financial payables
and current portion of medium/long-term loans;
e Net non-current cash/(debt): non-current bank debt and other non-current financial payables.

. ROI: Return on investment is calculated as the ratio between EBIT and the arithmetic mean of Net invested
capital at the beginning and end of the reporting period.

e  ROE: Return on Equity is calculated as the ratio between Profit/Loss for the period and the arithmetic mean of
Total Equity at the beginning and end of the reporting period.

e Total financial debt/Total Equity: this is calculated as the ratio between Total financial debt and Total Equity.

e Net financial position/EBITDA: this is calculated as the ratio between the Net financial position and EBITDA
in the configuration monitored by the Group and described above.

e Net financial position/Total Equity: this is calculated as the ratio between Net financial position and Total Equity.
e Revenue and income: this is equal to the sum of Operating revenue and Other revenue and income.

e Revenue and income excluding pass-through activities: Revenue and income excluding the portion relating to
sale contracts with pass-through activities, whose value is exactly offset by the corresponding cost; pass-throu-
gh activities are defined as contracts for which the whole value is entirely invoiced by the Group to the final
customer, but whose construction activities are not managed directly by the Group.

e Provisions: these refer to increases in the Provisions for risks and charges, and impairment of Trade receivables
and Other non-current and current assets.
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As required by the Consob Communication of 28 July 2006, the following table provides a reconciliation between
equity and profit/(loss) for the year of the Parent Company Fincantieri S.p.A. with the consolidated figures (Group

and non-controlling interests).

31.12.2024 31.12.2023

(euro/000) . Profit/(loss) . Profit/(loss)

=111 for the year Equity for the year
Parent Company Financial Statements 1,661,648 37,091 1,234,242 7,587
Share of eqylty and net result of consplldated subsidiaries, (668,089) 75,296 (733,553) (12,480)
net of carrying amount of the related investments
Consolidation afjjustments for dlffere_nce between purchase price 83,272 (11,364) 142,787 6,381)
and corresponding book value of equity
Reversal of dividends distributed by consolidated subsidiaries (88,434) (37,098)
Joint ventures and associates accounted for using the equity method 3,936 8,854 (4,965) 2,222
Elimination of intercompany profits and losses
and other consolidation adjustments 162 Sl (88,100) (6,680)
Exchar}ge translla.tm.n differences from line-by-line consolidation (122,842) (117.291)
of foreign subsidiaries
Equity and profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 849,463 32,833 433,120 (52,830)
Non-controlling interests (4,354) (5,456) 1,041 (281)
Total consolidated equity and profit/(loss) for the year 845,109 27,377 434,161 (53,111)
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Reconciliation of the reclassified financial statements used in
the Report on operations with the mandatory IFRS statements
31.12.2024 31.12.2023 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT ) : , : : :
Ceweo /it Liom Mandatory Amoun'ts. in Mandatory Amoun.ts' in OF FINANCIAL POSITION Partial values Amoun.ts. in  Partial values Amoun'ts' in
scheme reclassified scheme reclassified Couzo /million) mandatory reclassified mandatory reclassified
statement statement scheme statement scheme statement
A - Revenue 8,128 7,651 A - Intangible assets 571 474
Operating revenue 7,951 7,448 Intangible assets 571 474
Other revenue and income 177 203 B - Rights of use 124 125
B - Materials, services and other costs (6,245) (5,960) Rights of use 124 125
Materials, services and other costs (6,255) (5,964) C - Property, plant and equipment 1,715 1,684
Recl. to | - Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses 10 4 Property, plant and equipment 1,715 1,684
C - Personnel costs (1,371) (1,219) D - Investments 69 60
Personnel costs (1,371) (1,219) Investments 69 60
D - Provisions 3) (75) E - Non-current financial assets 94 668
Utilizations (37) (132) Non-current financial assets 108 683
Recl. to | - Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses 34 57 Recl. to F - Derivative assets (14) (15)
E — Depreciation, amortization and impairment (263) (235) F - Other non-current assets and liabilities 32 12
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (258) (235) Other non-current assets 99 67
Recl. to | - Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses (5) Recl. from E - Derivative assets 14 15
F - Financial income/(expenses) (178) (169) Other non-current liabilities (81) (70)
Financial income/(expenses) (178) (169) G - Employee benefits (54) (54)
G - Income/(expense) from investments 7 4 Employee benefits (54) (54)
Income/(expense) from investments 7 4 H - Inventories and advances 904 801
H - Income taxes (18) (4) Inventories and advances 904 801
Income taxes (9) 11 | - Construction contracts and client advances 1,163 632
Recl. to L - Tax effect of extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses (9) (15) Construction contracts - assets 3,377 2,498
| - Extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses (39) (61) Construction contracts - liabilities and client advances (2,011) (1,599)
Recl. from B - Materials, services and other costs (10) (4) Recl. from N - Onerous Contracts Provision (203) (267)
Recl. from D - Provisions (34) (57) L - Trade receivables 671 767
Recl. from E - Depreciation, amortization and impairment 5 Trade receivables and other current assets 1,036 1,150
L- Tax effect on extraordinary or non-recurring income and expenses 9 15 Recl. to O - Other current assets (365) (383)
Recl. from H - Income taxes 9 15 M - Trade payables (3,071) (2,471)
Profit/(loss) for the year 27 (53) Trade payables and other current liabilities (3,571) (2,872)
Recl. to O - Other current liabilities 500 401
N - Other provisions for risks and charges (212) (237)
Provisions for risks and charges (415) (504)
Recl. to | - Onerous Contracts Provision 203 267
O - Other current assets and liabilities 120 192
Deferred tax assets 248 231
Income tax assets 42 34
Derivative assets 35 35
Recl. from L - Other current assets 365 383
Deferred tax liabilities (40) (72)
Income tax liabilities (30) (18)
Recl. from M - Other current liabilities (500) (401)
P - Assets held for sale - 52
Assets held for sale and discontinued operations - 52
NET INVESTED CAPITAL 2,126 2,705
Q - Equity 845 434
R - Net financial position 1,281 2,271
SOURCES OF FUNDING 2,126 2,705
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Basis for preparation

BP-1 -
General basis for preparation
of sustainability statements
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The 2024 Consolidated Sustainability Statement, included in the Group's Annual Report, is a communication
tool which transparently and comprehensively describes the Group's environmental, social and governance achie-
vements and demonstrates the Group's commitment to sustainable development, with the aim of creating value
not only for the Company, but also for its stakeholders.

This document constitutes the Group's first Consolidated Sustainability Statement (hereinafter also "Statement")
pursuant to Legislative Decree 125/2024, for the 2024 financial year (1 January to 31 December 2024). The
content was prepared according to the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS) developed by the
European Financial Reporting Advisory Group (EFRAG).

The reporting boundary for the data in the Statement includes companies that are fully consolidated in the scope
of consolidation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Reporting has been extended to information related
to the Group's upstream and downstream value chain with reference to: qualitative information on material im-
pacts, risks and opportunities, for which reference should be made to the list of material IROs in section SBM-3
and IRO-1, and to chapter S2 Workers in the value chain, as well as information related to policies, actions and
targets defined by the Group, as set out in paragraphs E1-6 Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and Total GHG emissions and
S1-14 Health and safety metrics.

The Statement is published annually.

o
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BP-2 -
Disclosures in relation
to specific circumstances

The process of collecting data and information and preparing the Statement is coordinated and managed by the
Sustainability department. The document contents were defined in compliance with the qualitative characteristi-
cs of the information required by the ESRS, namely: relevance, faithful representation, comparability, verifiability
and understandability.

With regard to the definition of the time horizons adopted by the Fincantieri Group, the reference periods used
for the preparation of this document are in line with the short, medium and long-term definitions in the ESRS
standards. The only case for which Fincantieri used differentiated time horizons was for data related to the E1
Climate change chapter: these horizons are subject to variation to meet the needs of the Group's activities and to
better manage the nature of the long-term impacts and effects of climate change.

Specifically, Fincantieri's strategy on climate-related risks and opportunities, in line with the Task Force on Cli-
mate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), considers the 2023-2027 Business Plan as a short-term time horizon.
In line with the Group's R&I Plan, the medium-term period is extended to 10 years. Finally, the Group considers
a time horizon of more than 20 years in the long term and specifically only with reference to projects such as the
International Maritime Organization (IMO) 2050 project.

Under the transitional provisions of ESRS 1, the Group is not required to disclose comparative information in the
first year of reporting. However, where deemed directly comparable and subject to any restatement requirements,
certain data relating to previous financial years, already reported in the 2023 Non-Financial Statement, have
been included in this Statement.

The main areas of estimation reported within the document refer to disclosures related to air and water pollu-
tant emissions generated within its operations. These are reported in paragraph E2-4 Pollution of air, water and
soil, in relation to the value chain, to Scope 3 emissions reported in paragraph E1-6 Gross Scopes 1, 2, 3 and
Total GHG emissions. The complexity of measuring Scope 3 emissions is due not only to the Fincantieri Group's
extensive value chain, but also to the uncertainty associated with the methodology for estimating this category
of emissions, especially in cases where primary data are not available. In order to improve the accuracy of value
chain metrics, Fincantieri is committed to further refining its calculation processes in future in line with the latest
market standards and developments.

Finally, Fincantieri is required to disclose information related to article 8 of the Regulation (EU) 2020/852 (the
Taxonomy Regulation), reported in the chapter dedicated to the European Taxonomy within the Environmental
Information section. Specifically, the Fincantieri Group reports the portion of revenues, capital expenditure (Ca-
pex) and operating expenditure (Opex) related to activities that potentially contribute to the achievement of the
environmental targets covered by the Taxonomy ("Taxonomy-Eligible" economic activities) and the portion that
substantially contributes to the achievement of climate change mitigation objectives and the transition to a cir-
cular economy ("Taxonomy-Aligned" economic activities).

For any further information, please contact the Sustainability department at sustainability@fincantieri.it.
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GOV-1 - Fincantieri’s Corporate Governance model is in line with the recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code

The role of the

administrative, management
and supervisory bodies

currently in force and is structured as follows.

Shareholders’ Meeting

Board of
Statutory Auditors

Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager

Control and

H 1
Chairman Risk Committee

Supervisory Body —

Board of Directors

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee Sustainability Committee Independent auditors

Risk Officer General Counsel Chief Financial Officer

Data Protection Officer

Head of Anticorruption

Corporate Affairs and Model 2312

1 On 16 May 2022, the Board of Directors delegated powers to the Chairman concerning the internal control and risk management system, confirmed by the Board of Directors

on 1 August 2024 for the new Chairman.

2 Head of the Compliance Department for the prevention of corruption in accordance with UNI ISO 37001:2016.
38 Also responsible for the certification of sustainability reporting.

Board of Directors

and Board Committees

124

The Board of Directors is the key body of the Company’s corporate governance system, as it holds the broadest
powers for ordinary and extraordinary administration of the Company, including the definition of the strategic,
organizational and control policies of the Company and the Group.

In particular, the Board plays a guiding role, at the proposal of the Chief Executive Officer and with the support of
the competent Board Committees, in defining policies and strategies in pursuit of sustainable growth and identi-
fying medium and long-term objectives, also in relation to the variable component of management and executive
director remuneration, including consideration of sustainability impacts, risks and opportunities, and in verifying
the related results, which are presented to the Shareholders' Meeting. With specific reference to sustainability
issues, the Board, subject to the opinion of the Sustainability Committee, defines sustainability guidelines, ap-
proves sustainability policies, the Company's Sustainability Plan, the double materiality analysis and, subject to
the Committee’s prior review, the sustainability statement.

The Board of Directors of Fincantieri S.p.A. does not include members representing employees or other workers,
nor members directly elected by the workforce or their representatives.

The Chairs of the Board Committees report to the Board on their committee’s activities at the first available me-
eting. The Board of Directors, both directly and through its Committees, oversees the management of impacts,
risks and opportunities, as well as the implementation of policies and strategies and the achievement of set
targets. This oversight includes periodic meetings with Company management. Furthermore, it supervises the
conduct of the company and the integrity of the business by monitoring, among other things, the trend in the rate
of injuries and measures to prevent accidents in the workplace, the trend in litigation involving the company, and
annually assessing the appropriateness, adequacy and effectiveness of the Anti-Corruption Management System.
The Board consists of 8 non-executive Directors and 2 executive Directors, namely the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Board has further structured its organization by establishing four Board Committees, each with investigative,
advisory and consultative functions:

Officer in Charge?®

Responsabile
Internal Audit

e  the Control and Risk Committee performs investigative, advisory and consultative activities whenever the
Board is tasked with making assessments or taking decisions concerning the Company's internal control and
risk management system. In particular, this Committee supports the Board in defining the guidelines of the
internal control and risk management system; examines the Company and Group Business Plan; assesses
the correct application of accounting standards and their uniformity for preparation of periodic financial
reports; and reviews the content of the Sustainability Statement, given its importance for the purposes of
the internal control and risk management system. This Committee is also responsible for related party tran-
sactions, with the exception of resolutions with regard to remuneration;

e the Remuneration Committee, which assists the Board in drawing up the remuneration policy, monitoring its
correct application and submitting proposals or expressing opinions to the Board on the remuneration of exe-
cutive Directors and other Directors holding special offices, as well as on the setting of performance targets
related to the variable component of such remuneration, including sustainability targets. This Committee is
responsible for related party transactions, in the case of resolutions with regard to remuneration involving
Executive Directors and Executives with strategic responsibilities in the specific cases provided for by the
Regulation governing related party transactions adopted by the Company;

e  the Nomination Committee, which assists the Board with the self-assessment activities of the Board and its
Committees; in identifying candidates for the office of Director in cases of co-optation; in preparing guide-
lines on the maximum number of offices; in preparing, updating and implementing any succession plan for
the Chief Executive Officer and the other Executive Directors; and in the preliminary investigation related to
the annual checks on the requirements of Directors;

. the Sustainability Committee, which carries out investigative, advisory and consultative activities, whenever
the Board needs to make assessments or take decisions that involve sustainability issues, in the exercise of
the Company's business or in its interaction with stakeholders, including through the integration of sustai-
nability issues into corporate strategies.
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The Sustainability Committee, together with the other Board Committees, supports the Board in the creation of
long-term value for the benefit of shareholders, considering the interests of other stakeholders.
More specifically, the Sustainability Committee:

e examines the adequacy of Fincantieri's sustainability policies in the light of its strategic guidelines;

e supports the Board in reviewing policies with an impact on the environment, society or stakeholder relations,
and in particular on issues such as, among others, respect for and promotion of human rights, health and
safety in the workplace environmental management, business integrity, transparency, anticorruption, etc.

° identifies and indicates to the Board specific financial and sustainability risks;

o monitors trends in the main sustainability ratings;

e reviews the sustainability statement, the Sustainability Plan?, the strategic guidelines in the Business Plan
and other sustainability issues.

The Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board on the Committee's activities at the earliest available meeting.

Committees are composed of four Directors. In accordance with the recommendations for large companies in the
Corporate Governance Code, the Board appoints the members of the Committees while avoiding an excessive con-
centration of offices. All the members of the Committees are Non-Executive Directors, the majority of whom are
independent (70%); in particular, the members of the Nomination Committee and the Sustainability Committee
are all independent and have the functional powers to perform the tasks assigned to them.

All Committee’s Chairmen, appointed by the Board of Directors, are Independent Directors.

1 More information on the setting of the objectives 1in the 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan can be found 1in chapter "ESRS 2 SBM-1i
Strateg business model and value chain"
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Composition of the Board of Directors and its Committees

Board Member

Office

Expiry List
of term

Role Indep.

Code Indep. Legal
indep.

No. of other
Appointments*

CRC RC NC

Biagio Mazzotta

Chairman
of the Board
of Directors

From approval
of 2024 1
financial
statements

Executive -

Pierroberto Folgiero

CEO

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

CDP Industria
S.p.A?

Executive -

Paolo Amato

Director

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

INARCASSA

Non-Executive N

Barbara Debra Contini

Director

From approval
of 2024 5
financial )
statements

Non-Executive N

Alberto Dell’Acqua

Director

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

CDP Industria
S.p.A2

Non-Executive N

Massimo Di Carlo

Director

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

CDP Industria
S.p.A?

Non-Executive -

Paola Muratorio

Director

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

INARCASSA

Non-Executive N

Cristina Scocchia

Director

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

CDP Industria
S.p.A?

Non-Executive N

Valter Trevisani

Director

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

CDP Industria
S.p.Az2

Non-Executive N

X+ X X

Alice Vatta

Director

From approval
of 2024
financial
statements

INARCASSA

Non-Executive N,

* This column shows the number of directorships or auditor appointments held by the person concerned in other large or listed companies, as of 31 December 2024.

1 Following the untimely death of Claudio Graziano, who was elected by the Shareholders' Meeting of 16 May 2022 and taken from the list provided by the majority shareholder,
the Board of Directors of 1 August 2024 appointed by co-optation, pursuant to Article 2386 of the Italian Civil Code and Article 19.10 of the By-Laws, following the opinion of
the Nomination Committee and approval of the Board of Statutory Auditors, without applying the list voting mechanism. Pursuant to Article 20.1 of the By-lLaws, the Board elected
Biagio Mazzotta as Chairman of the Board of Directors. For the purpose of the appointment, the Board accepted the recommendation made by the shareholder CDP Equity S.p.A. which,

by letter dated 1 August 2024, submitted the relevant candidacy for its independent evaluation.

2 With effect from 31 December 2022, CDP Industria S.p.A., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CDP S.p.A., was merged into CDP Equity S.p.A, also a wholly-owned subsidiary of CDP S.p.A.

8 Barbara Debra Contini was appointed Director of the Company to replace Alessandra Battaglia (who resigned on 24 March 2023), as proposed by the shareholder CDP Equity S.p.A.,
by the Shareholders' Meeting of 31 May 2023. Since this was a mere addition to the Board of Directors, the legal majorities were applied instead of the list voting mechanism
pursuant to Article 19.8, letter e) of the By-Laws.

4 CRC member who stands in for the non-independent director Di Carlo when the Committee, meeting as the RPT Committee, examines material related party transactions.

CRC: Control and Risk Committee.
RC: Remuneration Committee.

NC: Nomination Committee.

SC: Sustainability Committee.

> 1 <0

: Chairman of the Committee.
: Requirement fullfilled.

: Not applicable.

: Member of the Committee.
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Upon request of the Independent Directors, on January 27th, 2023 the Board of Directors of Fincantieri appoin-
ted Independent Director Valter Trevisani as Lead Independent Director of the Company, pursuant to article 3,
recommendation 13, letter c) of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Lead Independent Director will remain in office until the end of the Board of Directors term and, therefore,
until the Shareholders’ Meeting for the approval of the Financial Statements as of December 31, 2024.

Areas of expertise of the Board of Directors

Area of expertise* %
Environmental 80
Social 80
International relations 60
Financial 90
Specific experience in the sectors in which Fincantieri operates 90
Planning and strategy 90
Internal control and risk management system 80
Anti-corruption 80
Cybersecurity 50

128

* A self-assessment questionnaire considered both the experience gained during both professional careers and the training sessions

organized by the Company. All Directors have international experience in the Group's key geographic areas.
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In 2024, the Board of Directors consisted of 10 members, 40% of whom were women and 60% of whom were
men, with a female to male ratio of 0.67.

_ Gender -
(%)

[0 <50 years 20% 1 Men 60%
W 50/65 years 70% Women 40%
>65 years 10%

To enable Directors to fully perform their functions, in line with the reference context and the material impacts,
risks and opportunities for the Group, induction activities are provided on an ongoing basis that allow them to
deepen their knowledge and enhance their skills from an industrial, operational, commercial, ESG, financial and
governance perspective.

In 2024, the Board of Directors received an illustration of the Group's organizational structure, and the project
set out in the SG&A and Industrial Governance Business Plan.

The Board was also briefed about cyber security, related risks and the mitigation plan drawn up by Fincantieri.
The Board of Directors received a detailed briefing from the Investor Relations function on the outcome of the
Shareholder Identification carried out to obtain an accurate picture of the new institutional investors following
the capital increase.

Also, the Board visited the Castellammare di Stabia shipyard and received an illustration of its operations and the
quotation system used by the Merchant Ships Division and the Infrastructure Overview & Industrial Plan.

As part of the Board induction program in 2024, initiatives were implemented to enhance the Board's understan-
ding of sustainability, ensuring a comprehensive grasp of the related social, economic, political and regulatory
aspects, as well as the material impacts, risks and opportunities. This program equips the governance body to
effectively steer its activities and ensure the pursuit of the Sustainability Plan’s goals.

In this context, the Board received an illustration of the project envisaged in the Energy Transaction & Innovation
Strategy Business Plan, and the Sustainability Committee continued the meetings started in 2023 with the cor-
porate departments most closely involved, aimed at deepening their knowledge of the initiatives undertaken to
achieve the goals of the 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan.

Furthermore, for the purposes of obtaining and maintaining ISO 37001 certification, the Company provides an-
ti-corruption training to all Directors following their appointment and every three years. During the term of office
of the actual Board, this activity was carried out at the Board meeting of 7 November 2022.

In accordance with the requirements of the ISO 37001 standard, the Board of Directors conducts an annual

review of the Anti-Corruption Management System established by Fincantieri to ensure its ongoing suitability,
adequacy and effectiveness.
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Board of Statutory Auditors  The Board of Statutory Auditors consists of three Standing Auditors and three Alternate Auditors appointed Management Regarding the role of Management, Fincantieri has designated the Administration, Finance and Control Depart-
by the Shareholders’ Meeting using a dedicated procedure. The acting Statutory Auditors satisfy the integrity ment as primary point of contact for sustainability issues. Within this Department, the Sustainability function
and professionalism requirements along with the independence requirements. The Board of Statutory Auditors guides, coordinates and supervises the Company’s sustainability processes. It also identifies the Company’s mate-
currently in office was appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 31st, 2023, for the financial years rial sustainability issues through double materiality analysis, initiates and supervises the collection of information
2023, 2024 and 2025. according to the ESRS standards, and prepares the annual Sustainability Statement. Additionally, it ensures
Fincantieri’'s commitments to sustainability by monitoring progress on Sustainability Plan’s targets and regularly
informing the Sustainability Committee on all aspects of sustainability. The department is supported in its mana-
Composition of the board of Statutory Auditors at the date of the report” gement of initiatives related to sustainability and ESG objectives by the Multifunctional Working Group composed
of representatives of the main Parent Company Departments/Functions most involved in sustainability issues.
Member Role Expiry of term The Sustainability Committee periodically meets with management to review and monitor the implementation
) ) ) ) ) of actual initiatives, due diligence and the effectiveness of policies and metrics for impact, risk and opportunity
Gabriella Chersicla Chairman Sh. meeting to app. Fin. Stat. 2025 management.
Elena Cussigh Standing auditor Sh. meeting to app. Fin. Stat. 2025
Antonella Lillo Standing auditor Sh. meeting to app. Fin. Stat. 2025
Marco Seracini Alternate auditor Sh. meeting to app. Fin. Stat. 2025
Ottavio De Marco Alternate auditor Sh. meeting to app. Fin. Stat. 2025
Arianna Pennacchio Alternate auditor Sh. meeting to app. Fin. Stat. 2025

* The Board of Statutory Auditors in office until 31 December 2024 was appointed by the Shareholders' Meeting on 31 May 2023.

The Board of Statutory Auditors is entrusted with the supervisory tasks provided for by the applicable regulations
and the Corporate Governance Code, including, among other things, the task of monitoring the adequacy of the
Company's organizational structure, the internal control and risk management system and administrative-accoun-
ting system, and the implementation of the corporate governance rules provided for in the Corporate Governance
Code.

Areas of expertise of the Board of Statutory Auditors

Area of expertise* %
Environmental 67
Social 67

International relations -

Financial 100
Industry Experience in Fincantieri’s Business Sectors 100
Planning and strategy 67
Internal control and risk management system 100
Anti-corruption 100
Cybersecurity 67

* A self-assessment questionnaire took account of experience gained during both the professional career and the training sessions
organized by the Company. All Statutory Auditors have international experience in the Group's main geographic areas.
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Through the Group's sustainability governance framework the Board of Directors is actively engaged in sustaina-
bility matters beyond a merely informational role, as outlined in paragraph ESRS 2 GOV-1 The role of the admi-
nistrative, management and supervisory bodies. The assessment of material impacts, risks and opportunities is
detailed in paragraph ESRS2 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy
and business model.

Sustainability governance relies on internal regulatory procedures and tools to ensure the active participation of
all administrative and supervisory bodies, as well as top management. This engagement spans the entire process,
from identifying impacts, risks and opportunities to defining strategic guidelines and monitoring targets. The
Group ensure the participation of all governance bodies, with differentiated responsibilities: they may act as
managers, validators or approvers within these processes, ensuring informed participation. All impacts, risks and
opportunities are incorporated into strategy development and risk management, with continuous monitoring by
administrative, management and supervisory bodies or their Committees.

Fincantieri's Remuneration Policy aims to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives while fostering medium-
to long-term sustainable value creation. Closely aligned with the new 2023-2027 Business Plan, the Policy
reflects Fincantieri’s growing commitment to environmental, social and governance (ESG) principles. The policy
is approved annually by the Board of Directors upon the proposal of the Remuneration Committee. The Board is
responsible for its proper implementation, relying on the Committee’s propositional and advisory support. Moreo-
ver, the Remuneration Committee assesses the Policy’s adequacy, overall consistency, and effective application,
in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code and Committee’'s Regulations.

Stakeholders opinions are always considered when defining the Policy, particularly the feedback of the Sharehol-
ders' Meeting vote on its approval.

If necessary, the Committee may seek support from independent external consultants, provided they are bound by
confidentiality agreements and have been verified to be free from any conflicts of interest that could compromise
their judgement impartiality.

The parties covered by the Remuneration Policy are the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and General Mana-
ger, Executives with Strategic Responsibilities and other Key Executives (Top Management).

The implementation of the Remuneration Policy for Executives with Strategic Responsibilities and other Key
Executives is entrusted to the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager, supported by the Company's Human
Resources and Real Estate Department. This is without prejudice to the authority of the Remuneration Committee
in defining the general criteria for the remuneration of Executives with Strategic Responsibilities.

The 2024 Remuneration Policy, while introducing new instruments, is aligned and consistent with the 2023
Policy adopted by the Company.

The remuneration structure for the Company's Top Management ensures a balanced distribution between fixed
and variable components, with the variable component representing a significant proportion of total remuneration.
The short-term variable incentive plan (MBO) is designed to translate Business Plan strategies into annual targets
that drive the performance of the executives involved. Top Management is assigned economic-financial targets,
as well as corporate and individual targets tailored to their respective the roles. These include EBITDA Margin,
Free Cash Flow, order intake, sustainability and additional targets related to the business plan and specific roles,
along with segment-specific targets for the remaining proportion.

In 2024, the Board of Directors, on a proposal of the Remuneration Committee, confirmed the presence of a
sustainability index in the MBO of the Chief Executive Officer and General Manager, increasing the weight from
15% to 20% of total variable remuneration. In continuity with the previous year, the target is developed on Group
targets in Environmental (Environmental Management), Social (Health and Safety in the Workplace) and Gover-
nance (Sustainable Supply Chain) areas.
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The targets, assigned annually by means of individual target sheets, are predefined, measurable and divided into
the following categories:

e  Corporate objectives of an economic-financial nature;
o Sustainability Objectives, divided into three aspects:

e  Environmental - Environmental Management: the focus is on waste reduction, with a target of 5%
reduction in the amount of waste produced in relation to production hours in 2024 compared to 2021.

e  Social - Health and Safety in the workplace: the focus is on an improvement of occupational health and
safety performance, with a view to zero injuries to protect workers' health and the working environment
With respect to this target, the access gate is to contain the severity index within 0.2 for the 2024
year, and, subject to passing the access gate: containing the frequency rate for work-related injuries
below 7.5 for 2024.

o Governance - Sustainable Supply Chain: the focus is on developing a Sustainable Supply Chain by
integrating sustainability criteria into the supplier qualification system, while effectively managing
associated risks. The target for this objective is to assign an ESG score to at least 50% of strategic
qualified suppliers. Strategic suppliers are those listed in the Register, net of suppliers referenced and
imposed by the customer (500 out of 1,000 strategic qualified suppliers in total).

o Function/Role targets;
o Business Plan targets.

Moreover, in alignment with the Company’s principles of transparency and ethics, Fincantieri’'s MBO system is
applied using the same mechanisms, such as proportionality with respect to fixed remuneration and the clawback
clause, across all “high risk employees”, namely senior and middle managers identified as Company’s attorneys,
as well as the rest of the target company population.

The principles governing the short-term variable component, while considering the diversity of the core markets,
are consistent within the Group.

In defining the long-term variable components, and in continuity with the 2019-2021 Long Term Incentive (LTI)
Plan, the Shareholders' Meeting of April 8th, 2021 approved the 2022-2024 LTI Plan. This plan mantains essen-
tially the same structure and reaffirms the inclusion of an objective linked to a sustainability index.

The sustainability index for the 2022-2024 LTI Plan, Cycle 1 (2022-2024), was updated in relation to the 2019-
2021 LTI Plan in the light of a benchmark analysis conducted with the support of a consultancy firm. The goal
includes obtaining a certain rating from international rating agencies, in combination with the achievement of the
sustainability targets set out in the corporate Sustainability Plan during the reference period (obtaining at least
a B rating in the Carbon Disclosure Project' (CDP) index and inclusion in the highest band (Advanced) for the
Moody's, formerly Vigeo Eiris, index).

The ratings can be found on the official website on the "Sustainability Ratings and Awards" page.

It should be noted that the climate targets are included in the 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan and refer to the
Scope 1 and 2 emission reduction targets for 2025, 2027 and 2030. In addition, a specific Scope 3 target was
included in the Plan to reduce GHG emissions related to GHG Protocol Category 11 'Use of Sold Products', which
represents over 91% of the total emissions for the Fincantieri Group. The ultimate goal is to achieve a net-zero
cruise ship by 2050. The Group is committed and working, subject to technological, regulatory and infrastructure
availability, to bring this target forward to 2035.

The sustainability index makes it possible to measure the achievement of the sustainability targets set by the
Company, combined with and/or in addition to targets related to economic and financial performance and stock
performance, also in order to align with best practices and the growing expectations of the financial community
on sustainable development. In light of the above, the Board of Directors, as proposed by the Remuneration
Committee, taking into account the growing importance of ESG issues, provided, for the 2022-2024 LTI Plan,
2nd Cycle (2023-2025) and 3rd Cycle (2024-2026), for an increase in the weight of the sustainability objective
(from 20% in Cycle | to 25% in Cycle Il and Il1) and a change in the performance bands.

The creation of sustainable value in the medium/long term, the alignment of the interests of management with
those of the shareholders and support the retention are the primary objectives of this Plan, in line with the guide-
lines of the Corporate Governance Code and in accordance with the best and most widespread market practices.
The LTI plans, for which the allocation process has been concluded (2019-2021 LTI and 2022-2024 LTI), link
part of the remuneration of Top Management to the achievement of economic-financial (EBITDA) and non-finan-
cial targets (linked to a sustainability index). Furthermore, these targets are linked to stock performance (the TSR
against both the FTSE Italia All Share Modified index and an International Peer Group).
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Through the materiality analysis conducted in 2024, Fincantieri identified and assessed both actual and poten-
tial negative impacts related to sustainability issues. This analysis enabled the Group to begin defining a due
diligence process to manage and mitigate the negative impacts associated with the issues deemed material to
Fincantieri.

In response to the evolving regulatory requirements set out by the European Parliament and Council in the Cor-
porate Sustainability Due Diligence Directive (CSDDD), Fincantieri established a human rights due diligence
process in 2023. This process is aligned with the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human
Rights, the OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises, as well as the CSDDD.

o
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The following provides an overview of the information included in the Statement, highlighting the due diligence
processes for the topics material to the Group.

Due Diligence steps

Report reference

Embedding due diligence in gover-
nance, strategy and business model

GOV 2 - Information provided to and sustainability matters addressed by the undertaking’s administrative,
management and supervisory bodies

e GOV-4 - Statement on due diligence
e  S1-1 - Policies related to own workforce
e  S2-1 - Policies related to value chain workers
e  S3-1 - Policies related to affected communities
e  S4-1 - Policies related to consumers and end-users
e  GI1-1 - Corporate culture and Business conduct policies
e  G1-2 - Management of relationships with suppliers
Engaging with affected stakeholders e  GOV-4 - Statement on due diligence
in all key steps of the due diligence . ESRS 2; S1; S2; S3; S4 SBM - 2 Interests and views of stakeholders
e  S1-2 - Processes for engaging with own workers and workers’ representatives about impacts
e S2-2 - Processes for engaging with value chain workers about impacts
e  S3-2 - Processes for engaging with affected communities about impacts
e S4-2 - Processes for engaging with consumers and end-users about impacts
Identifying and assessing adverse e GOV-4 - Statement on due diligence
impacts o ESRS 2 IRO-1 Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities
e  S1 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model
e  S2 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model
e  S3 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model
e S4 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model
e GI1 IRO-1 Description of the processes to identify and assess material impacts, risks and opportunities
e  GI1-3 - Prevention and detection of corruption and bribery
Taking actions to address those e GOV-4 - Statement on due diligence for sustainability purposes
adverse impacts e  S1-3 - Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for own workers to raise concerns
e  S1-4 - Taking action on material impacts on own workforce, and approaches to mitigating material risks and
pursuing material opportunities related to own workforce, and effectiveness of those actions
e S2-3 Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for value chain workers to raise concerns
e S2-4 Taking action on material impacts on value chain workers, and approaches to managing material risks
and pursuing material opportunities related to value chain workers, and effectiveness of those actions
e  S3-3 - Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for affected communities to raise concerns
e S3-4 - Taking action on material impacts on affected communities, and approaches to managing material ri-
sks and pursuing material opportunities related to affected communities, and effectiveness of those actions
e S4-3 - Processes to remediate negative impacts and channels for consumers and end-users to raise concern
e S4-4 - Taking action on material impacts on consumers and end-users, and approaches to managing ma-
terial risks and pursuing material opportunities related to consumers and end-users, and effectiveness of
those actions
Tracking the effectiveness of those e GOV-4 - Statement on due diligence
efforts and communicating e S1 - Own workforce - Metrics and targets
e S2 - Workers in the value chain - Metrics and targets
e S3 - Affected communities - Metrics and targets
e  S4 - Consumers and end-users - Metrics and targets
L]

G1 - Business conduct - Metrics and targets
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The human rights due diligence process initiated by the Group, following the requirements of international stan-
dards, is divided into six stages, all characterised by the active involvement of stakeholders:
E’— Risk assessment E— Prevention and mitigation ‘\\' i
[
Commitments and policies
on human rights
E’— Communication E— Monitoring m m
I T :
S R TR RN
O MLl W ERAHLLE |
and remedial mechanisms vr—
. W b 5 A ..
The process started in 2023 with the preliminary activity of identifying salient human rights issues? for the Group.
This was carried out through consultation with relevant stakeholders, considering business activities, operating
contexts, and employing a risk-based approach. The salient issues, which are also outlined in the Group Policy
Human Rights - Commitment for the Respect of Human Rights and Diversity?, include:
e  Child labour; e R
. Forced labour, modern slavery and human trafficking;
° Freedom of association and collective bargaining;
o Decent working conditions;
° Health and safety in the workplace;
° Right to privacy;
. Rights of local communities;
° Protection of the environment and biodiversity.
In this first step, an analysis of actual and potential negative impacts specific to human rights was structured,
following a risk-based approach. The Human Rights Risk Assessment (HRRA) was conducted using the following
methodological framework:
° Identification of areas of impact: the analysis of corporate documentation and the involvement of some
internal stakeholders of the Parent Company and selected subsidiaries, as well as site visits to a number of
production sites and shipyards both in Italy and abroad, made it possible to identify specific risk events on
which the Group's activities and business relationships could generate negative impacts. The results of the HRRA revealed that the political and social conditions of the countries in which Fincantieri
e  Assessment of actual and potential negative impacts: the probability of occurrence of the impact and its operates — directly through subsidiaries and indirectly through suppliers — represent one of the key elements to
severity, defined as the product of severity, spread and remediability, were assessed for each identified risk be considered in the risk analysis. With regard to the supply chain, the analysis identified suppliers operating
event. This activity identified which risk events Fincantieri needs to manage more carefully, including those in countries with a high risk of possible human rights violations and where Fincantieri is aware that there are
related to forced labour, modern slavery and human trafficking, decent working conditions, and the rights inherent difficulties in managing possible negative impacts, due to socio-political conditions that expose workers
of local communities. to possible violations. Despite this, over the years Fincantieri has adopted various safeguards and implemented
° Residual risk assessment: in addition to assessing the possible negative impacts that could occur, a map- mitigation and prevention actions, including the obligation to implement the Supplier Code of Ethics as a binding
ping of the safeguards in place for the protection of human rights by the various corporate departments was contractual obligation (clause) for the establishment of business relationships, the formalisation of a supplier
carried out, in order to identify any possible areas of improvement to strengthen their mitigation, prevention selection and qualification process that takes ESG parameters into account, the definition of a corporate structure
and remedial actions. dedicated to site management and in charge of monitoring suppliers and contractors, and the implementation of
on-site audits, both at subsidiaries and at suppliers.
2 These are the salient human rights issues as defined by the UNPG Reporting Framework, i.e. those human rights that are at risk of
the most severe negative impact through the Company’s activities and business relationships. This concept of salience uses the lens
of risk to people, not the business, as the starting point, while recognizing that where risks to people’s human rights are greatest,
there is strong convergence with risk to the business. The salient issues identified are subject to periodic review and update.
3 As a further confirmation of the Group's commitment to respect human rights, the Policy was updated in 2024 to more effectively
integrate the activities carried out within corporate processes.
136
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GOV-5 - In 2024, the Fincantieri Group established an "Internal Control Over Sustainability Reporting System" (ICSRS), The Group adopts the most appropriate mitigation strategies through a three-tiered control system. Risks mitiga-

Risk management
and internal controls
over sustainability reporting

138

designed to meet the requirements of the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRS). This system is a
structured process designed to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the sustainability information reported
in this Sustainability Statement and to ensure compliance with the ESRS reporting standards. Fincantieri has
adopted the "COSO - Internal Control Integrated Framework" and "COBIT - Control Objectives for Information and
related Technology" frameworks as the main "company-wide" ICSRS assessment tools.

The system operates in line with applicable regulations and the principles of good corporate governance, and is
fully integrated into the Group's Internal Control and Risk Management System. The main regulatory sources and
reference standards are: Directive (EU) 2022/2464 - Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD), Italian
Legislative Decree no. 125 of 6 September 2024 on Corporate Sustainability Reporting (transposing EU Directive
2022/2464), Delegated regulation (EU) 2023/2772 and Regulation (EU) 2020/852 (the Taxonomy Regulation).
The boundary of the Internal Control System for the Sustainability Statement, in terms of material companies and
processes, is developed according to an approach aimed at guaranteeing adequate control of the areas most expo-
sed to the risk of material errors in the Fincantieri Group's sustainability reporting, prioritising them according to
the scale of the risk. The concept of materiality is dictated by significance in relation to the double materiality
analysis. The boundary for the companies in scope is defined according to a quantitative and size-based approa-
ch, considering the companies that individually contribute to the achievement of a Group total value large enough
to meet the threshold for the individual reporting indicators for the "Environmental”, "Social" & "Governance"
aspects, and taking into account qualitative aspects for specific activities or defined ESG objectives.

The main actors involved in managing the control of risks related to the Sustainability Statement are:

o The Chief Executive Officer of the Parent Company, who certifies in the relevant report that the sustainabi-
lity reporting included in the management report was prepared in accordance with the applicable reporting
standards and the provisions of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 (the Taxonomy Regulation);

o The Officer in Charge of Financial Reporting periodically reports to the Chief Executive Officer on the plan-
ning of activities, results and critical issues highlighted following the monitoring process for the essential
controls implemented relevant for assessing the adequacy of the Internal Control System and any other
issues to be urgently submitted to the Board of Directors;

e The Chief Approvers, who are the directors at Parent Company level, globally approve the data already vali-
dated by the Group Approvers, who verify the information on each Group company or site received from the
Local Data Approvers. After assessing the correctness and completeness, as well as consistency with ESRS
standards of the data and information reported by the Sustainability Department, the Officer in Charge
issues the certificate required by Legislative Decree No. 125 of 6 September 2024.

The most significant potential risks identified at the basis of the ICSRS refer to the fact that sustainability re-
porting:

° is not timely, i.e. not included in the information flows within a reasonably short time of the occurrence of
the event to which it relates;

o is inaccurate, i.e. contains approximations or outright inaccuracies;

° is incomplete, i.e. only partially reflects the event to which it refers;

o is not authorized or has been produced and communicated without the appropriate level of authorization
required internally.

In addition to these risks, there are others typical of the standard processes as set out below:

e  transactional processes: i) risk of omitted or incorrect detection, which refers to the possibility that tran-
sactions or events that have occurred are not recorded in the information systems and that recorded tran-
sactions or events have not actually occurred;

e assessment and estimation processes: i) risk that estimates and assessments are made without documentary
support for the information sources used, or that they are based on information sources that are inadequate
for the assessment or, finally, that they are not consistent with the information sources used to support
them; ii) risk of adopting calculation methodologies that do not comply with the sustainability reporting
standards adopted by the company or of their inaccurate application; iii) risk of non-homogeneity of calcula-
tion methodologies or in the application of calculation formulas for the same types of case and in different
reporting periods.

tion is ensured by the Company’s Internal Control System, which operates at the following levels:

1. Entity Level: encompasses organization-wide controls to establish an adequate and reliable control environment.

2. Process Level: assesses activities and risks related to the sustainability data collection and processing, with
controls defined in special Risk Control Matrixes (RCM), periodically updated by Group Approvers.

3. IT General Control: evaluates the IT systems used in reporting processes, ensuring that application and IT
controls are effective and support the proper handling of information.

The periodic verification of the adequacy and effective operation of controls over sustainability reporting is carried
out through:

e second-level monitoring carried out by management, within the scope of its responsibilities, which include
an obligation to monitor the actual implementation and tracking of controls;

° independent third-level monitoring, aimed at verifying the effective implementation of the activities related
to the Internal Control System for the Sustainability Statement.

At the end of the monitoring activities, the Officer in Charge Structure prepares a final report containing details of
the activities performed. This report is shared with the Chief Executive Officer and subsequently with the Control
and Risk Committee. Annually, when issuing sustainability reporting, the Officer in Charge reports to the Board
of Directors and the Supervisory Bodies.
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Fincantieri is one of the world’s leading shipbuilding groups, the only one active in all areas of high technology
shipbuilding. It is a leader in the construction and conversion of cruise vessels, with a market share of over 40%,
defence and offshore vessels. It operates in the wind, Oil&Gas, fishing vessel and specialized vessel segments, as
well as in the production of mechatronic and electronic marine systems, naval accommodation solutions and the
provision of after-sales services such as logistical support and assistance to fleets in service. shipbuilding groups
at global level and is the only actor present in all high value-added shipbuilding sectors. The Group stands out
as a world leader in the design and construction of cruise ships, with a market share of more than 40%, and is
a major player in the naval vessels and offshore segment. Fincantieri's presence also extends to sectors such as
wind power, Oil&Gas, and the construction of fishing vessels and specialized vessels. In addition, the Group is
engaged in the production of mechatronic and electronic naval systems, naval accommodation solutions and the
provision of after-sales services, including logistical support and assistance to fleets in service. Specifically, the
Group operates through the following three main operating segments:

e Shipbuilding: includes the Cruise Ships, Naval Vessels and Ship Interiors business areas;

e  Offshore and Specialized Vessels: encompassing the design and construction of high-end offshore support
vessels for offshore wind farms and the Qil&Gas industry, specialized ships such as cable-laying vessels and
ferries, unmanned vessels, offering innovative products with reduced environmental impact;

o Equipment, Systems and Infrastructure: includes the following business areas: i) Electronics and Digi-
tal Products Cluster, which focuses on advanced technological solutions, from the design and integration
of complex systems (system integration) to telecommunications and critical infrastructure, ii) Mechanical
Systems and Components Cluster, i.e., integration of mechanical components and power electronics in
naval and onshore applications and iii) Infrastructure Cluster, which includes the design, construction and
installation of steel structures for largescale projects as well as the production and construction of maritime
works and the supply of technology and facility management for the health segment, industry and the service
sector. The Group also relies on a global network of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that support
the Group's activities, such as Fincantieri S.p.A., VARD Group and Marine Interiors.

For more information on the groups of products and services offered by the Fincantieri Group, please refer to
the chapter "Group overview" in the Annual Report

Finally, the number of Fincantieri Group employees in 2024, at 22,588, is broken down as follows: Italy 11,897,
Norway 1,440, Romania 4,575, USA 2,281, Vietnam 1,378, other countries 1,017.

Fincantieri's value chain is mainly focused on the design and production of ships, which is the Group's core bu-
siness and area of greatest specialization.

Fincantieri's value chain represents a complex and integrated process involving a series of interconnected acti-
vities required for the design, production and after-sales management of ships. The Group acts as a system
integrator by managing the shipbuilding project as a whole, taking responsibility for it. Typically, although there
are differences by strategic business area and product type, the Group directly develops the project management,
design, procurement and production of the hull for each order.
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Initial activities include the acquisition of new contracts, a competitive process requiring careful internal prepa-
ration and coordination of various professionals, and the design phase, managed by a dedicated team under the
guidance of a project manager. The latter is responsible for the overall planning, which includes the basic design
and the management of any changes over the entire project cycle. Specifically, design is broken down into several
highly integrated and interconnected phases: basic design; functional design; development design; technical
assistance for production; change management.

The company adopts procurement strategies, balancing in-house production with the purchase of components
from third-party suppliers. This approach takes into account the entire production and processing cycle for raw
materials, from the extraction and processing of materials to their distribution. The main purchasing procedu-
res include: turnkey suppliers, supply of materials and contracts. The main materials include steel for the hull
structure, copper for electrical cables, steel and plastic materials for on-board pipes, welding materials and paint
products. Most goods are transported by ship, road and rail. Air cargo handling accounts represents a minority
share.
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Ship manufacturing
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After-sales
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The production process is developed through several well-defined stages. It starts with sheet metal cutting, which
consists of the treatment of ferrous materials for hull construction by in-house labour. In parallel, the pipes are
manufactured, either in-house or by specialist suppliers. Subsequently, in the prefabrication phase, the ferrous
materials, suitably processed, are assembled in groups, ensuring efficient management of fluctuations in order
backlog using tendered contracts, again under the close supervision of Fincantieri. During the pre-outfitting,
outfitting of plant and systems and painting activities begin. During pre-assembly, the already formed blocks are
assembled into sections, an activity which, like the previous ones, involves external suppliers under Fincantieri
supervision. The assembly phase then involves joining the prefabricated sections together to form the complete
hull. In this phase, welding, outfitting of plant and systems, finishing and installation of on-board equipment
take place, together with the outfitting of the interior spaces and the installation of the payload. In this phase
Fincantieri also relies on contracting, ensuring at the same time a close monitoring. Finally, the final outfitting
consists of the completion of the minor installations and the payload, including equipment, furnishings and other
elements required for use of the ship. All these operations take place under the constant supervision of Fincan-
tieri, with the support of external suppliers where necessary.

After delivery of the ship, Fincantieri offers a warranty period during which it remains available for on-board
issues, in cooperation with customers and suppliers. This approach ensures effective after-sales service aimed at
maintaining high quality standards.

To maintain and consolidate its role as a global leader, Fincantieri carefully monitors commercial, regulatory and
environmental developments, anticipating customers' needs with innovative and technologically advanced solu-
tions. The Group's strategic value lies in its ability to design and integrate complex tailor-made systems, stren-
gthening partnerships along the entire value chain and creating shared value through co-design activities and the
dissemination of best practices, with tangible benefits for customers, investors and stakeholders.

Fincantieri presides over all the high value-added segments in which it operates, consolidating its role as a global
leader. To do so, it closely monitors commercial, regulatory and environmental developments, anticipating custo-
mers' needs with innovative and technologically advanced solutions. The Group's strategic value lies in its ability
to design and integrate complex tailor-made systems, strengthening partnerships along the entire value chain and
creating shared value through co-design activities and the dissemination of best practices, with tangible benefits
for customers, investors and stakeholders. Fincantieri's customers can be grouped into three major categories:
Cruise, Naval and Offshore. For more information, please refer to paragraph S4 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks
and opportunities and their interaction with strategy and business model. Finally, at the end of the ship's use,
there is the disposal phase, an activity managed directly by the shipowners.
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The Group's strategy, increasingly oriented towards the energy and digital transition and addressing new socio-e-
conomic changes, is reflected in the objectives of the 2023-2027 Business Plan and Sustainability Plan. To
demonstrate its response to the challenges of strengthening the international competitive positioning of the Group
and the Italian shipbuilding industry, Fincantieri aims to become a world leader in the design, construction and
life-cycle management of digital and green ships for the tourism, defence and energy sectors.

In support of this strategic vision, the 2023-2027 Business Plan, approved by the Board of Directors of Fincan-
tieri S.p.A. in December 2022, identifies five fundamental pillars and ten strategic projects that will guide the
Group in the pursuit of its sustainability and innovation objectives.
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2023-2027 Business Plan

Strategic pillars and actions

AN

> Focus on core Business

e  Operations excellence, with the aim of increasing the efficiency of manufacturing and engineering processes, digitalizing and automating
support processes and low added value activities;

o Improving competitive positioning in the specialized vessels business to seize opportunities in the fastmoving offshore wind industry;

e  De-risking and partnering of the Infrastructure business area;

e  Strengthening the accommodation business area, reinforcing performance in support of the captive business and enhancing the
noncaptive one;

e  Contracts management and support for the growth of satellite businesses.

K2

Life Cycle Management

e Development of digital applications and data platforms to enable the transition from Capex provision to leadership also in service
provision.

£V

System Integration

° Reinforcing the Group’s role as Design Authority to maximize the capabilities to act as integrator of complex systems in the de-

fence business.

Financial discipline

e Adoption of a cross-functional and inter-divisional approach, extending and systematizing the Group best practices and provi-
ding greater flexibility in procurement practices.
e  Cost optimization, identifying assigning specific and cross-Group responsibilities to control and standardize expenditure practi-

ces.

Industrial sustainability <

o Achieving zero net emissions by 2050, with the delivery of the first Net Zero ship and investing in research and innovation;

o Development and protection of human resources, promotion of equity and inclusion and respect for human rights, improvement
of health conditions and dialogue and support for local communities.

o Improving health and safety conditions throughout the whole supply chain.
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2023-2027 The 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan is an integral part of the strategic vision and is aimed at creating value for Global socio-economics trends

Sustainability Plan

146

all stakeholders. At this time of transformation, sustainability represents a pivotal point in the evolution of pro-
duction processes and an essential objective in the development of the product portfolio in line with customer
needs, helping to ensure a high level of resilience and sustainable development for the Group.

In order to respond to socio-economic trends, the new 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan identifies 3 Directions
for development that represent the Group's strategic vision in terms of sustainability, ensuring that Fincantieri's
commitments are met and contribute to the achievement of the 17 United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs). In particular, 9 SDGs were recognized by Fincantieri as relevant to its business and in line with its
strategic guidelines.

‘ Climate issues and ecosystem depletion

Strong drive towards new technologies and digital transformation

Geopolitical tensions

‘ Central role of human resources and growing inequalities ‘ ‘ Awareness of the strategic nature of the supply chain

‘ Economic, social and cultural changes

The 3 Directions for development

a ¥
- -
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Innovation
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Inclusion \ \ Integrity
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Innovative and technological development
for energy and digital transition

Protection, inclusion and development

i Industrial excellence
of people and communities

Sustainable Development Goals
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Fincantieri, in particular, contributes to the achievement of 9 of the 17 goals of the UN's 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

umaEary
1o D s

Focus on energy transition, development of innovative and sustainable solutions,
maintaining the central role of the human capital, and sustainable supply chain.
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The 3 Directions for development, defined in synergy with the Business Plan, cover the 15 material topics iden-
tified by the Group from the 2023 materiality analysis, and confirmed by the double materiality analysis carried
out in 2024, 7 of which are strategic topics for business development which the Group has decided to focus on:

Climate change;
Environmental impact of products and services;
Innovation, research and development;

Development and safeguarding of human resources;

Diversity and equal opportunity;
Health and safety in the workplace;
Sustainable supply chain.
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Strategic guidelines and sustainability

The 3 Directions for development
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Innovation \

| Inclusion

Integrity

Innovative and technological development
for energy and digital transition

Protection, inclusion and development
of people and communities

Industrial excellence

Strengthening activities focused
on innovation and digitalization,
to offer increasingly advanced, sustainable
and safe solutions in line with market needs
and decarbonization and circular
economy strategies.

Safeguarding the wealth of skills acquired
by the Group, promoting its growth
and enhancement in an inclusive
and international environment and ensuring
the protection of the human capital,
to encourage the development of local
communities with a view to shared value.

Increasing competitiveness through
continuous improvement of efficiency
and safety, maintaining standards
of excellence and promoting professional
culture and ethics to strengthen world
leadership in shipbuilding.

15 material topics, 7 of which are strategic

Climate Change

Development and safeguarding
of Human Resources

Health and safety in the workplace

Environmental impact
of products and services

Human rights

Product quality and safety

Innovation, research and development

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

Sustainable supply chain

Environmental management

Company welfare

Governance and business integrity

Customer satisfaction

Local communities and relations
with the local area

Cyber security
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The objectives defined in the Plan make the Group's path towards sustainable development transparent and
verifiable. Periodically, these objectives are updated, and new targets are defined, according to a process of
continuous alignment with strategic guidelines and results achieved, to further integrate sustainability along the
entire value chain, taking into account potential impacts on the economy, environment and people.

The 2023-2027 Sustainability Plan was approved by the Board of Directors of Fincantieri S.p.A. on February
16th, 2023.

Top Management has been consistently involved in the definition of all objectives. Top Management, the Chief
Executive Officer, and the Board of Directors, each according to their respective roles and responsibilities, are
tasked with ensuring that the Company’s functions have the necessary conditions to achieve the established
objectives. The relevant corporate functions are responsible for achieving the Sustainability Plan’s goals and
targets and they allocate resources, tools, and expertise to implement the actions underpinning the objectives.
Since 2023, the Sustainability Plan’s objectives have been monitored on a quarterly basis, presented to Top
Management and shared on a half-yearly basis with the Sustainability Committee. The objectives and their pro-
gress are made public and accessible to all the Group’s customers and stakeholders through the Consolidated
Sustainability Statement.

For further details on the identified targets in relation to relevant impacts, risks and opportunities, please refer to
the specific sections of each Topical Standard.

SBM-2 - With the introduction of CSRD, listening to and involving stakeholders has become more and more of a priority
Interests and views to understand their needs, interests and expectations. Through a proactive, multi-channel approach, stakeholder
of stakeholders engagement enables the establishment of long-term relationships, turning them into a source of competitive

advantage for the Group.

During 2024, the Group continued to involve stakeholders, including the financial community, suppliers and
partners, customers, associations, and other stakeholders, through a "Sustainability survey", an important initia-
tive aimed at assessing and understanding the impact of material topics for Fincantieri. This activity provided a
crucial opportunity to gather the perspectives of more than 500 stakeholders, improving understanding of their
priorities and concerns. In addition, a financial analysis of risks and opportunities was carried out, as required
by the double materiality analysis. In paragraph ESRS 2 SBM-3 Material impacts, risks and opportunities and
their interaction with strategy and business model, more detail is provided on the process, as well as evidence
of the interaction between sustainability and business performance. In this context, the Group continues to
develop new processes for engaging with stakeholders to ensure constant updating of results and an ever-better
integration of their demands into corporate strategies. For each stakeholder category, the main tools, listening
channels and frequency of contact have been identified, with the aim of gathering expectations and needs and
communicating the results achieved and the programs promoted by the Group. Observations arising from such
engagement activities are always considered, processed and shared within the Group. In particular, the interests
and views of the company's own workforce, workers in the value chain, affected communities, consumers and
end-users, where significant, are taken into account when defining business objectives and strategy, as well as
when updating relevant policies. Responsibility for managing the relationship with the various stakeholders is
spread throughout the Group, where specific functions constantly liaise with their respective stakeholder groups.
Furthermore, stakeholder interests and views about impacts of the company on sustainability are periodically
reported to the administrative, management and supervisory bodies, in order to integrate this information into
decision-making processes.
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Stakeholder +
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Tools and Channels

[ 11

Frequency ¢

Environment

B Fincantieri's mission is to become a model of excellence in environmental protection and it therefore adopts, in
its strategic choices and corporate processes at all levels, the principles of environmental sustainability when
carrying out its work.

A Direct contact with bodies and ad hoc working parties.
o Continuous dialogue and periodic meetings.

Human resources

® For Fincantieri, people come first. Constant collaboration and cooperation allow for individual and group growth,
making ideas and practices, responsibilities and actions a common factor.

A Days dedicated to training, individual performance reviews, discussions with trade unions and employee repre-
sentatives, involvement in specific initiatives, and performance evaluation meetings. Courses, various activities,
e-learning related to health and safety topics.

© Continuous dialogue and periodic meetings.

Suppliers B Fincantieri suppliers are a valuable strategic resource. That is why the Company promotes long-term relationships
and sharing of responsibilities and development.
A Meetings with strategic suppliers, dedicated audits at selected suppliers, feedback questionnaires. Various acti-
vities related to health and safety topics.
© Continuous dialogue and periodic meetings.
Partner B Fincantieri's partners represent a fundamental and strategic asset. The Company therefore favours lasting partner-
ships based on shared skills and mutual development.
A Meetings with partners, feedback questionnaires. Various activities related to health and safety topics.
© Continuous dialogue and periodic meetings.
Community B Fincantieri is aware of its role in the local community and considers the demands of the latter, collaborating

systematically with all the relevant figures in the area. Fincantieri promotes proactive initiatives that foster the
development of the local community and areas where the company operates.

A Participation in working parties, meetings with representatives from NGOs and non-profit organizations, civil so-
ciety institutions and associations, press conferences. Periodic meetings with schools and universities to discuss
and develop topics for research, internships.

© Continuous dialogue and periodic meetings.

Trade Unions

152

B Fincantieri confirms the importance of hands-on representation of its workers through suitable levels of involve-
ment, awareness and the assignment of co-responsibility for production objectives and issues of common interest.
Accordingly, a new system of industrial relations has been implemented in line with the relevant commercial,
economic and production context.

A Meetings, working parties/discussions and the establishment of appropriate joint bodies to address various topics
with the trade unions on all levels.

o Continuous dialogue and periodic meetings.

o
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Financial community

m Dialogue with the financial community is constant, in compliance with the law and in line with best working
practices, ensuring complete transparency.

A Press releases, periodic presentation of financial results, conference calls, Shareholders’ Meetings, meetings
with investors and analysts, one-to-one presentations, road shows and shipyard tours. E-mail address dedicated
to Investor Relations for institutional investors and small shareholders.

o Frequency as set by law and internal organizational models; dialogue with investors is continuous and related to
Analyst engagement strategies.

Institutions and Public
Administration

B The distinct nature of Fincantieri’s business calls for a continuous relationship with Institutions and the Public
Administration.

A Direct contacts, internet, ad hoc working groups, definition and development of common projects.

© Continuous dialogue and periodic meetings.

Customers

B Fincantieri always listens to its customers’ needs, each ship is the product of a strong relationship with the shi-
powner.

A The entire shipbuilding process calls for a continuous relationship between the project manager and the customer
and their staff.

© Direct and continuous relationship.

Regular meetings are held with clients, employees, suppliers and community representatives to foster with whom
the Group works, promoting continuous engagement and improvement.

The Group engages with legislators and national and international institutions to foster constructive cooperation,
interpret and apply new regulations correctly and share expertise, initiatives and projects, contributing to public
consultations for the definition of new measures and laws and regulations specific to the industry, and providing
concrete guidance.

To support the development of its business, Fincantieri S.p.A. and its subsidiaries participate in the governance
of various national and international associations, stimulating, along with the other associates, a propulsive and
systematic action in the areas of 